Penallta House,
Tredomen Park,
¥strad Mynach,
Hengoed CF82 7PG

Dear Sir/Madam,

Public Document Pack

Ty Penalita, ‘
Parc Tredomen,
¥strad Mymach, c A E R PH’ '. LY

CEIINTY BOORONGH COIINCTL
EVNGDR BWREDBEISTREF SIRDL

CAERFIFILY
>

Hengoed CFB2 7PG

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Amy Dredge
(Tel: 01443 863100 Email: dredga@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Date: 16th April 2019

A meeting of the Audit Committee will be held in the Sirhowy Room - Penallta House, Tredomen,
Ystrad Mynach on Tuesday, 23rd April, 2019 at 2.00 pm to consider the matters contained in the
following agenda. Councillors and the public wishing to speak on any item can do so by making a request
to the Chair. You are also welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, both these requests require a minimum
notice period of 3 working days, and a simultaneous translation will be provided if requested.

All Committee meetings are open to the Press and Public, observers and participants are asked to
conduct themselves with respect and consideration for others. Please note that failure to do so will result
in you being asked to leave the meetings and you may be escorted from the premises.

Yours faithfully,

Christina Harrhy
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA

Pages

To receive apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest.

Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for
both Councillors and Officers.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

®)
o < Q$Q

| Wz

H"

v ‘l.,-“- W) @ @
qdence ay beihany ’anguage or for i =
mat

/

o
Gallweh oheby mewn unrhyw iaith NeY #o




To approve and sign the following minutes: -

3 Audit Committee held on the 29th January 2019.

1-6
To receive and consider the following reports: -
4 Audit Committee Forward Work Programme.
7-12
5 2019 Audit Plan - Caerphilly County Borough Council.
13-36
6 Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/19.
37 - 46
7 Internal Audit Services: Audit Charter.
47 - 64
8 Internal Audit Services: Annual Audit Plan 2019/20.
65 - 82
9 Internal Audit Reports - "In Need of Improvement".
83-98
To receive and note the following information items:-
10 Wales Audit Office WHQS Review.
99 -172
11 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.
173 -174
12 Officers Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality - October to December 2018.
175 - 180
13 Minutes of the Corporate Governance Panel - 11th January 2019.
181 - 182

*If a member of the Audit Committee wishes for any of the above information reports to be brought
forward for discussion at the meeting please contact Amy Dredge, 01443 863100, by 10.00 a.m. on
Thursday 18th April 2019.

Circulation:

Councillors Mrs E.M. Aldworth, J. Bevan, D.T. Davies, C. Elsbury, A. Gair, Ms J. Gale, D.T. Hardacre,
B. Miles, Mrs T. Parry, Mrs M.E. Sargent (Chair), G. Simmonds and J. Simmonds

Lay Member — Mr N.D. Yates (Vice Chair)

Auditors —Ms N. Jenkins (Wales Audit Office), Ms G. Hawkins (Grant Thornton UK LLP) and Mr B. Morris
(Grant Thornton UK LLP)

And Appropriate Officers.



HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting,
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed. Minutes of Meetings including details
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving
confidential or exempt items.

You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed.

For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy
Notice on our website http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy or contact Legal Services by email

griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028.



http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

N
CAERPHILLY

CUINTY BORODUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, TREDOMEN, YSTRAD
MYNACH ON TUESDAY 29TH JANUARY 2019 AT 2.00 PM

PRESENT:

Councillor M.E. Sargent — Chair
N. Yates — Vice Chair

Councillors:

Mrs E. Aldworth, D.T. Davies, C. Elsbury, Mrs A. Gair, Ms J. Gale D. Hardacre, Mrs B. Miles,
Ms T. Parry, G. Simmonds and J. Simmonds.

Together with:
G. Hawkins (Grant Thornton) and G. Jones (Wales Audit Office).
N. Scammell (Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer), D. Gronow (Acting
Internal Audit Manager), G. Jenkins (Assistant Director for Children’s Services) R. Roberts
(Performance Manager), S. Couzens (Chief Housing Officer), P. Smythe (Housing Technical
Office), and Kim Houghton (Committee Services Officer).

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J. Bevan,

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at the beginning or during the course of the
meeting.

3. MINUTES - 16TH OCTOBER 2018

Councillor T. Davies requested that it be noted that in regard to Item 4 (Wales Audit Office -
Overview and Scrutiny Fit for the Future? — Caerphilly County Borough) of the minutes in that
it should reflect that the apology offered should come from the Welsh Audit Office.

It was moved and seconded that, subject to the above noted comments, the minutes of the
meeting held on the 16th October 2018 be agreed as a correct record and by a show of hands
this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that subject to the above noted comments, the minutes of the Audit
Committee held on the 16th October 2018 (Minute No. 1 —11) be approved as a
correct record.

Page 1



REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Consideration was given to the following reports.

AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer presented the report which outlined
the draft Forward Work Programme from January 2019 to October 2019. Members were
asked to consider the work programme and agree the proposed changes, make any
amendments or propose any additional items to be included in future meetings.

Following consideration of the report it was moved and seconded that the recommendation in
the report be approved and by a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that the work programme appended to the report be approved.

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS - “IN NEED OF IMPROVEMENT”

The Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer and Acting Internal Audit Manager
presented the report which aimed to inform Members, in line with agreed processes, of audit
assignments undertaken and to allow Members to seek clarification or explanation where
there are areas of concern and to identify where further action is deemed necessary.
Members were also asked to assess whether the recommendations made by Internal Audit
and agreed management responses are reasonable and support an improvements in internal
control processes.

Members were referred to the Appendices of the report which presented the Final Internal
Audit Report for WHQS Validation Progress 2018/19 and the Final Internal Audit Report for
Section 17 Payments 2017/18.

In consideration of these reports, the Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer
asked the Members to consider the potential increased work load that the inclusion of Internal
Audit reports on Audit Committee agendas would be and whether it may be necessary to
increase the number of Audit Committee meetings held each year to accommodate this.

The Chair thanked the Officers for their report and Members comments were welcomed.

Members discussed the Final Internal Audit Report for Welsh Housing Quality Standard
(WHQS) Validation Progress 2018/19 (Appendix 1). A Member referred to the ‘In need of
Improvement’ judgement in relation to control procedures and compliance with the controls.
They enquired as to what staff would do to improve on these areas. The Acting Internal Audit
Manager explained that there was a rigorous testing and monitoring system in place around
the controls and there is constant dialogue between Housing Officers and Internal Audit
Officers where concerns are addressed. There is already work being undertaken within the
Service to make the improvements required.

Members discussed the projected end date for Control Risk 1, being December 2019 versus
the Welsh Government deadline of December 2020 for completion of the whole WHQS
Programme. They considered the length of time given to address the Control and whether the
objectives set were achievable in the timeframe and how this would be affected by the
Acceptable Fails rate and Refusal of Access properties. The Acting Internal Audit Manager
responded that the last Audit was conducted between August and October 2018 with the
report issued on the 30th November 2018; a lot of work went into the report to ensure that the
objectives were achievable. The Technical Housing Manager informed Members that there
were approximately 10,000 properties in the programme and the timeframe for Control
compliance was reflective of the time needed to gather data on the Acceptable Fails

Page 2



properties. The Chief Housing Officer confirmed to Members that the Acceptable Fails would
not impact on property compliance and that the deadline of December 2019 was one year in
advance of the final WHQS Programme deadline, allowing time to ensure the work carried out
was right. A Member asked Officers if there was further scope to improve the process. The
Acting Internal Audit Manager advised Members that a specialist audit staff member had been
seconded to the WHQS programme to address the risks.

The Acting Internal Audit Manager introduced the Section 17 Payments 2017/18 report
(Appendix 2), explaining to Members that Section 17 Payments are the provision of services
and payments to families with children not in care but at risk of going into care therefore the
scope of the payments is narrow and related to a specific part of legislation. The audit found
this area to be generally good with some areas in need of improvement.

A Member in reference to 3.2.1 and 3.2.2 of the report relating to policy update/review and
policy awareness and access, enquired as to why a review had not been conducted in this
area and what would be done to ensure this process is compliant and frontline staff policy
awareness was raised. The Acting Internal Audit Manager informed the Member that a Policy
review is conducted every three years as it is not considered a high risk process however a
task and finish group has been set up to address this process with identified procedures to be
in place by June 2019 with a follow up review scheduled in place. The Assistant Director for
Children’s Services further commented that Section 17 legislation is incorporated into the
Social Services & Wellbeing Act and the internal Policy needs to be revised to reflect the
update in legislation. He said that there would be a focus on revising these policies and once
this had been completed then the policies will be issued to staff and team managers
instructed to brief staff on what steps to follow.

Members raised concerns regarding staff adherence to established protocols and why the
timeframe for carrying out the identified actions to address this risk was so long. They
enquired as to whether the issue with protocol adherence was down to management or staff
resourcing pressures. The Assistant Director for Children’s Services advised Members that
the Service needed to be more specific and realistic with the deadlines set to address points
made in the internal audit report and prioritise those points that need addressing sooner rather
than later. He provided Members with reassurance that the points had been taken on board
and highlighted that the risks identified were relatively low level and related to gaps in
processes. He also informed Members that the Section 17 work in frontline team’s is only a
very small part of their overall workload. He confirmed that the cuts affecting that service have
been made in the administrative support area of the service in order to strengthen the frontline
services.

Members discussed the future process in relation to the reporting of completed and issued
audit assignments to Committee and agreed that there should be an additional meeting added
to the timetable of meetings to accommodate the additional workload.

Following consideration of the report and appendices, it was moved and seconded that the
report would be noted and that an additional meeting of Audit Committee would be scheduled
to accommodate the future process for reporting completed and issued audit assignments.

RESOLVED that:-

0] the content of the report be noted and the comments of the Audit Committee be
noted by Internal Audit;

(i) as part of the future process in relation to the reporting of completed and

issued audit assignment to Audit Committee, an additional meeting be added to
the Committee’s timetable of meetings.

Page 3



CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2017-18 - CAERPHILLY COUNTY
BOROUGH COUNCIL

The External Auditor introduced the report which sought to inform Members of the certification
of grants and returns 2017-18 and answered the question - Does Caerphilly County Borough
Council have satisfactory arrangements in place to ensure the production of co-ordinated,
accurate, timely and properly documented grant claims?

The External Auditors informed Members that in 2017-18, they certified 10 grant claims and 1
narrative report and confirmed that the Council had submitted all claims on time and Grant
Thornton had certified all of the claims. They referred Members to the summaries of key
outcomes and issues within the report and called particular attention to the recommendation
made in relation to unapproved/ineligible expenditure included — Housing Benefit.

A Member requested that the progress made in carrying out the External Auditors
recommendation to implement training to address the issues identified could be reported back
to the Audit Committee. It was agreed with the Head of Corporate Finance and Section151
Officer that an information only report be brought to Audit Committee at its June 2019
meeting. The External Auditors added that Housing Benefits and Council Tax was very
complex and 90% of staff across the local authority is qualified, the issue identified is very
small and so the response should be proportional.

The Chair thanked the External Auditors and Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151
Officer for their report and Members for their questions and comments.

REGULATOR PROPOSALS FOR IMPROVEMENT PROGRESS UPDATES

The Performance Manager introduced the report which updated Members on the progress
against proposals or recommendations made by all regulators since the last Audit Committee
update in July 2018 and advised Members on any new proposals that had been added since
that time.

She informed Members that since July 2018 two reports have been provided with two
received in draft and currently going through the clearance process. Currently, there is one
recommendation and twelve proposals on the register, totalling thirteen altogether. There are
four proposals completed if agreed by the Committee leaving 9 outstanding.

Members were referred to the details of the report and asked to notes its contents and agree
to the closure of the proposals noted as recommended to be closed, within Appendix A.

Members sought clarification in regard to the reporting process for the Asset Management Co-
ordinator and which Committee would be expected to receive updates. The Head of
Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer informed Members that progress would be
reported to the Interim Head of Property Services who would then report to the Interim
Corporate Director for Communities. Updates could potentially go to Policy and Resources
Scrutiny Committee as this is an authority wide issue however this would need to be agreed
by the Chair of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and the Interim Corporate
Director for Communities.

Members discussed the four proposed closures particularly whether it was appropriate to
close the WHQS and Leisure Review proposals. The Performance Manager advised
Members that the WHQS proposal was at and end with a new one expected to come on to the
register in its place. In regards to the Leisure Review, the work on this has concluded and
therefore has been recommended for closure.

Page 4



Following consideration of the report, it was moved and seconded that the contents of report
be noted and that the four recommended proposals for closure be closed.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted and the proposals noted
as recommended to be closed contained within Appendix A be closed.

. INFORMATION ITEMS

The Committee received and noted the following information items:-

0] Caerphilly Certificate of Compliance — Audit of Caerphilly County Borough Council’s
Assessment of 2017-18 Performance

(i) Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

(iii) Officers Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality — July to September 2018

(iv) Corporate Governance Panel Minutes — Monday 24" September 2018

The meeting closed at 15.10pm.

Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 23rd April 2019, they were signed by the
Chair.

CHAIR

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME — 2019 (As at 11.04.19)

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019
(Deadline for reports: 12 noon 8TH APRIL 2019)

TITLE

PURPOSE

KEY ISSUES

PRESENTING OFFICER

Audit Committee Forward Work Programme

To ensure that the committee
agendas reflect its responsibilities
in the reviewing and
consideration of the Authorities

financial affairs and financial
statements, including the
oversight of the internal and

external audit arrangements of
the Council and the reviewing

and assessment of risk
management, internal control and
corporate governance
arrangements.

It includes all reports that were
identified at the Audit Committee on
29th January 2019.

Outlines the reports planned for Audit
Committee until December 2019

R. Edmunds

“Bnnual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
QD

J ab

To inform Members of the Audit
Committee of the Internal Audit
Managers overall opinion on the
Authority’s Internal Control
Systems derived from the work
undertaken by Internal Audit
Services during the financial year.

R. Harris

2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borough
Council

The purpose of the plan is to set
out the external Auditors
proposed work, when it will be
undertaken, how much it will cost
and who will undertake it.

Grant Thornton

Internal Audit Services: Audit Charter

To present the Audit Committee
with proposed changes to the
Audit Charter

The current Audit Charter was
approved by the Audit Committee on
the 10th September 2014. The
purpose of this report is to present an
updated Charter to the Audit
Committee for consideration

R. Harris

7 wal epuaby



AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME — 2019 (As at 11.04.19)

Internal Audit Services: Annual Audit Plan

The report seeks Audit

R. Harris

order to better inform the
Committee of the work being
undertaken, risks identified
agreed actions and any
associated impact on the
Authority’s  Annual Governance
Statement Process.

2019/20 Committee approval for the

Internal Audit Services Annual

Audit Plan for the financial year

2019/20.
Internal  Audit Reports - "In Need of|To update Members with the S. Harris/R. Harris
Improvement". audit assignments undertaken in

TINFORMATION ITEMS

‘ AO — WHQS Service Users Perspective and
ollow Up Report

o

To update Members following
presentation of the reports at
Cabinet, CHTG and Policy and
Resources Scrutiny Committee.

WAO

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

To advise Members of the
numbers of covert surveillance
operations undertaken by the
Council in accordance with the
provisions of the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000
(RIPA

To provide an update on the number
of operations undertaken in
accordance with RIPA for the period
1st January to 31st March 2019.

R. Tranter/L. Lane

Officers Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality —
October to December 2018

To provide the Audit Committee
with the information regarding the
Register of Employees’ Interests
Forms completed by officers of
the Council (excluding Schools)
regarding Gifts and Hospitality for
the period Oct to Dec 2018 and a
comparison with the previous

L. Donovan

2




AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 2019 (As at 11.04.19)
three quarters.

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 11TH JUNE 2019

(Deadline for reports: 12 noon 28TH MAY 2019)
TITLE PURPOSE KEY ISSUES PRESENTING OFFICER
Audit Committee Forward Work Programme To ensure that the committee | It includes all reports that were | R. Edmunds
agendas reflect its responsibilities | identified at the Audit Committee on
in the reviewing and | 23rd April 2019.
consideration of the Authorities
financial affairs and financial | Outlines the reports planned for Audit
statements, including the | Committee until December 2019.
oversight of the internal and
external audit arrangements of
the Council and the reviewing
and assessment of risk
management, internal control and

corporate governance
S-DU arrangements.
o)
‘Regulator Proposals for Improvement Progress R. Roberts/S. Harris
gpdate
Corporate Risk Register (Q4 — 2018/19) R. Roberts/S. Harris
Draft Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 R. Edmunds
Progress Report on the Public Sector Internal To update the Audit Committee N. Scammell
Audit Standard (PSIAS) Action Plan on progress against the PSIAS
Action Plan
Corporate Governance Local Code and Terms of | To Prepare the Terms of N. Scammell
Reference for the Review Panel Reference for the Review Panel
INFORMATION ITEMS
Annual Review of Complaints Received Under L. Lane

the Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy — April
2018 — 31st March 2019




AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME — 2019 (As at 11.04.19)

Corporate Governance Panel Minutes — TBC

S. Harris

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

To advise Members of the
numbers of covert surveillance
operations undertaken by the
Council in accordance with the
provisions of the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000
(RIPA)

To provide an update on the number
of operations undertaken in
accordance with RIPA for the period
TBC to TBC, 2019.

L. Lane

Officers Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality —
January to March 2019

To provide the Audit Committee
with the information regarding the
Register of Employees’ Interests
Forms completed by officers of
the Council (excluding Schools)
regarding Gifts and Hospitality for
the period TBC 2019 i.e the first
quarter of the financial year
2018/19 and a comparison with
the previous three quarters.

L. Donovan

P Forensics Software

N. Scammell

OT ed

SPECIAL AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD JULY 2019
(Deadline for reports: 12 noon 8TH JLULY 2019)

TITLE

PURPOSE

KEY ISSUES

PRESENTING OFFICER

Local Government Financial Statements and the
Role of the External Auditor

Grant Thornton

Audit Committee Assurance Over Management N. Scammell
Processes and Arrangements
Financial Statements for 2018/19 N. Scammell

INFORMATION ITEMS

None




AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME — 2019 (As at 11.04.19)
AUDIT COMMITTEE - 15TH OCTOBER 2019

(Deadline for reports: 12 noon 30TH SEPTEMBER 2019)

TITLE

PURPOSE

KEY ISSUES

PRESENTING OFFICER

Audit Committee Forward Work Programme

To ensure that the committee
agendas reflect its responsibilities
in the reviewing and
consideration of the Authorities

financial affairs and financial
statements, including the
oversight of the internal and

external audit arrangements of
the Council and the reviewing

It includes all reports that were
identified at the Audit Committee on
11th June 2019

Outlines the reports planned to Audit
Committee until December 2019

R. Edmunds

April to June 2019

with the information regarding the

and assessment of risk
management, internal control and
corporate governance
arrangements.
~Oorporate Risk Register Monitoring (Q2 — R. Roberts/S. Harris
8019/20)
o))
Hiternal Audit Services — Annual Outturn Report R. Harris
F2018/19
Internal Audit Services Mid-Year Progress Report R. Harris
INFORMATION ITEMS
Caerphilly County Borough Council — Annual N. Scammell
Audit Letter 2018/19
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 To advise Members of the L. Lane
numbers of covert surveillance
operations undertaken by the
Council in accordance with the
provisions of the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000
(RIPA)
Officers Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality — To provide the Audit Committee L. Donovan

5




AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME — 2019 (As at 11.04.19)

Register of Employees’ Interests
Forms completed by officers of
the Council (excluding Schools)
regarding Gifts and Hospitality for
the period TBC 2019 i.e the first
quarter of the financial year
2018/10 and a comparison with
the previous three quarters.

SPECIAL AUDIT COMMITTEE - 17TH DECEMBER 2019
(Deadline for reports: 12 noon 2ND DECEMBER 2019)

TITLE PURPOSE KEY ISSUES PRESENTING OFFICER
o
= Dates to be confirmed

MDITLE PURPOSE KEY ISSUES PRESENTING OFFICER
FSorporate Complaints 6 monthly update L. Lane/R. Tranter

N




=

WALES AUDIT OFFIGE Archwnydd Cyffredinol Cymru
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU Auditor General for Wales

2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County
Borough Council

Audit year: 2018-19
Date issued: April 2019

Document reference: 1197A2019-20




This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions.
Further information on this is provided in Appendix 1.

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General, the staff of the Wales Audit Office or, where
applicable, the auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor General, in relation to any member, director,
officer or other employee in their individual capacity, or to any third party.

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention is
drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. The
section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public authorities,
including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor General for
Wales, the Wales Audit Office and, where applicable, the auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor
General are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document
should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at infoofficer@audit.wales.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffén yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh.

This document was produced by Huw Rees, Non Jenkins and Gareth Jones of the Wales Audit Office
supported by Barrie Morris, Gail Turner-Radcliffe and Grace Hawkins of Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Page 14


mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales

Contents

2019 Audit Plan

Summary

Audit of accounts

Performance audit

Certification of grant claims and returns

Fee, audit team and timetable

Future developments to my audit work
Appendices

Appendix 1 — respective responsibilities
Appendix 2 — performance work in last year’s audit outline still in progress
Appendix 3 — summary of grant certification work

Appendix 4 — other future developments

Page 3 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County BoroudR @J@i 15

10

12

15

16

19

20

22



2019 Audit Plan

Summary

1

As your external auditor, my objective is to carry out an audit which discharges my
statutory duties as Auditor General and fulfils my obligations under the Public Audit
(Wales) Act 2004, the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure),
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, the Local Government Act
1999, and the Code of Audit Practice, namely to:

o examine and certify whether your financial statements are ‘true and fair’;

o assess whether you have made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources;

° audit and assess whether you have discharged the duties and met the
requirements of the Measure; and

° undertake studies to enable me to make recommendations for improving
economy, efficiency and effectiveness or for improving financial or other
management arrangements.

The purpose of this plan is to set out my proposed work, when it will be undertaken,

how much it will cost and who will undertake it.

There have been no limitations imposed on me in planning the scope of this audit.

My responsibilities, along with those of management and those charged with
governance, are set out in Appendix 1.

Audit of accounts

5

It is my responsibility to issue a certificate and report on the financial statements
which includes an opinion on their ‘truth and fairness’. This provides assurance that
the accounts:

o are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error;

° comply with statutory and other applicable requirements; and

° comply with all relevant requirements for accounting presentation and
disclosure.

| also consider whether or not Caerphilly County Borough Council (the Council) has
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources and report by exception if the Annual Governance Statement does
not comply with requirements.

Appendix 1 sets out my responsibilities in full.

The audit work | undertake to fulfil my responsibilities responds to my assessment of
risks. This understanding allows me to develop an audit approach which focuses on
addressing specific risks whilst providing assurance for the financial statements as a
whole. My audit approach consists of three phases as set out in Exhibit 1.

Page 4 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County BoroudR &J@i 1 6



Exhibit 1: my audit approach

This table summarises the three phases of my financial audit approach, being planning,
testing and reporting.

Planning: ( A ( A
Enaui Execution: Concluding and
quiry, Testing of ing:
observation and ; gl reporting:
inspection to tracnc;r;(r:ct}i 3"15 Evaluation of
understand the balances and evidence obtained
entity and its disclosures in to conclude and
internal controls in response to those report
order to identify P risks appropriately
and assess risks
. J . J . J
9 The risks of material misstatement which | consider to be significant, and which

therefore require special audit consideration, are set out in Exhibit 2 along with the
work | intend to undertake to address them. Also, included are other key areas of
audit attention my team will be focusing on.

Exhibit 2: financial audit risks

This table summarises the key financial audit risks identified at the planning stage of the
audit

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response

Significant risks

The risk of management override of My audit team will:

controls is present in all entities. Due tothe | 4 test the appropriateness of journal
unpredictable way in which such override entries and other adjustments made
could occur, it is viewed as a significant risk in preparing the financial statements;
[ISA 240.31-33].

e review accounting estimates for
biases; and

e evaluate the rationale for any
significant transactions outside the
normal course of business.

Page 5 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Boroudr &gJ@i 1 7



Financial audit risk Proposed audit response

Significant risks

Valuation of property, plant and equipment | My audit team will:

e review management's processes and
assumptions for the calculation of the
estimate, the instructions issued to
valuation experts and the scope of their
work;

e consider the competence, expertise and
objectivity of any management experts
used;

e discuss with the valuer the basis on
which the valuation is carried out and
challenge of the key assumptions where
appropriate;

e review and challenge the information
used by the valuer to ensure it is robust
and consistent with our understanding;

o testrevaluations made during the year
to ensure they are input correctly into
the asset register; and

e evaluate the assumptions made by
management for those assets not
revalued during the year and how
management has satisfied themselves
that these are not materially different to
the current value.

Valuation of Pension Fund Net Liability My audit team will:

¢ identify the controls put in place by
management to ensure that the pension
fund liability is not materially misstated.
We will also assess whether these
controls have been implemented and
operated as expected and whether they
are sufficient to mitigate the risk of
material misstatement;

e evaluate the competence, expertise and
objectivity of the actuaries who carried
out your pension fund valuations. We
will gain an understanding of the basis
on which the valuations are carried out;

e undertake procedures to confirm the
reasonableness of the actuarial
assumptions made; and

e check the consistency of the pension
fund asset and liability and disclosures
in notes to the financial statements with
the actuarial reports from your actuaries.

Page 6 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County BoroudR 8gj@il 18



Financial audit risk Proposed audit response

Other areas of audit attention

New accounting standards My audit team will assess the likely impacts
IFRS 9 financial instruments applies from 1 | of the new IFRSs and undertake work to
April 2018 and brings in a new principles- respond to any identified risks of material
based approach for the classification and misstatement.

measurement of financial assets. It also
introduces a new impairment methodology
for financial assets based on expected
losses rather than incurred losses. This will
result in earlier recognition of expected
credit losses and will impact on how the
bad debt provision is calculated.

IFRS 15 revenue from contracts with
customers introduces a principles-based
five-step model for recognising revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Itis
based on a core principle requiring revenue
recognition to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to the customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration
a body expects to be entitled to, in
exchange for those goods or services. It will
also require more extensive disclosures
than are currently required.

10 1 do not seek to obtain absolute assurance on the truth and fairness of the financial
statements and related notes but adopt a concept of materiality. For planning
purposes, we have determined that materiality is £6.132 million, which is 1% of total
gross expenditure. Final materiality will be reported to the Audit Committee prior to
the completion of the audit. My aim is to identify material misstatements, that is,
those that might result in a reader of the accounts being misled. The levels at which |
judge such misstatements to be material will be reported to the Audit Committee
prior to completion of the audit.

11 For reporting purposes, | will treat any misstatements below a ‘trivial’ level (the lower
of 5% of materiality) as not requiring consideration by those charged with
governance and therefore | will not report them.

12 My fees and planned timescales for completion of the audit are based on the
following assumptions:

o the financial statements are provided in accordance with the agreed
timescales, to the quality expected and have been subject to a robust quality
assurance review;

Page 7 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Boroud? @@ 19



13

14

15

16

17

o information provided to support the financial statements is in accordance with
the agreed audit deliverables document?;

o appropriate accommodation and facilities are provided to enable my audit
team to deliver the audit in an efficient manner;

° all appropriate officials will be available during the audit; and

° you have all the necessary controls and checks in place to enable the

Responsible Financial Officer to provide all the assurances that | require in the
Letter of Representation addressed to me.

As part of the 2017-18 audit, | identified a number of deficiencies in the planning,
reporting and communication of the work of Internal Audit. Our discussions with
officers as part of the 2019-20 audit planning process have indicated that progress is
being made to address the issues that | identified in the audit. | will undertake a
review of the current arrangements to inform the conclusion of the 2019-20 audit
opinion, reporting on the progress made and where, if necessary, further actions
should be focussed.

In addition to my responsibilities in respect of the audit of the Council’s statutory
financial statements set out above, | am also required to certify a return to the Welsh
Government which provides information about Caerphilly County Borough Council to
support preparation of Whole of Government Accounts.

In addition to the audit of the accounts, | have statutory responsibilities to receive
questions and objections to the accounts from local electors. These responsibilities
are set out in the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004:

o Section 30 Inspection of documents and questions at audit; and
o Section 31 Right to make objections at audit.

Audit fees will be chargeable for work undertaken in dealing with electors’ questions
and objections. Because audit work will depend upon the number and nature of any
questions and objections, it is not possible to estimate an audit fee for this work.

If I do receive questions or objections, | will discuss potential audit fees at the time.

Performance audit

18

| need to balance my existing, new and proposed statutory duties with the need to
continue to undertake meaningful, risk-based and proportionate audits and
assessments. In discharging my responsibilities, | will continue to seek to strike the
most appropriate balance and add value by:

o providing assurance on the governance and stewardship of public money and
assets;

" The agreed audit deliverables document sets out the expected working paper
requirements to support the financial statements and includes timescales and
responsibilities.

Page 8 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Boroudr &j@ii2 0



19

20

21

22

23

o offering insight on the extent to which resources are used wisely in meeting
people’s needs; and

o identifying and promoting ways by which the provision of public services may
be improved.

As it is likely that the anticipated Local Government Wales Bill will propose that the
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 no longer applies to councils, | will
continue to minimise work that focuses on the process of improvement planning.

In my audit plan for 2018, | explained that in previous years | had placed reliance on
my work under the Measure to help discharge my duty under the Public Audit
(Wales) Act 2004 to satisfy myself that councils have made proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money) in the use of
resources. Given that in the future it is likely that | will be unable to rely on my work
under the Measure, in 2019-20, and subsequent years, the focus of my local
performance audit programmes will continue to be more clearly aligned to
discharging my Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 duty.

In 2018-19, | undertook an examination of the extent to which you are acting in
accordance with the sustainable development principle in taking steps to meet your
wellbeing objectives. During 2019-20, | will undertake a further examination to
assess the extent to which you are applying the sustainable development principle
when taking steps towards meeting your wellbeing objectives. This will be the final
piece of work | will undertake to discharge my duties under the Well-being of Future
Generations Act at the Council prior to laying my first cyclical report with the National
Assembly in 2020. During 2019-20, | will also be considering how to discharge my
duties under the Act over the period 2020 to 2024 and | will seek to engage with
local authorities as well as other stakeholders in developing my approach.

The Wales Audit Office also undertakes a programme of local government studies.
This work is included within the Wales Audit Office estimates for funding from the
Welsh Consolidated Fund and not local fees. These studies primarily lead to a
national report augmented by good practice and shared learning outputs rather than
by local reports. Local findings, where relevant, will be captured in improvement
assessment work and reported in annual improvement reports depending on the
timing and the focus of conclusions.

Taking all these factors into consideration, my 2019-20 programme of work will
comprise:

Exhibit 3: performance audit programme

Performance audit programme Brief description

Improvement audit and assessment work | Audit of discharge of duty to publish an
including improvement planning and improvement plan, and to publish an
reporting audit assessment of performance.

Page 9 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County BoroudR @J@ii2 1



Well-being of Future Generations Act
(Wales) 2015 (WFG Act) examinations

Examination of the extent to which the

Council has acted in accordance with the
sustainable development principle when
taking steps to meet its wellbeing
objectives.

Assurance and Risk Assessment

Project to identify the level of audit
assurance and/or where further audit work
may be required in future years in relation
to risks to the Council putting in place
proper arrangements to secure value for
money in the use of resources.

Financial Sustainability

A project common to all local councils that
will assess financial sustainability in light
of current and anticipated future
challenges.

Transformation

This project will review the effectiveness
and impact of the Council’s transformation
programme in driving sustainable and
efficient improvement. We will discuss the
focus and approach to this project with the
Council.

2019-20 Local Government Studies

(Funded by the Welsh Consolidated Fund)

The Auditor General has recently

completed his consultation on his forward

work programme and his local government

studies for 2019-20 are;

1. Public Service Boards

2. Impact of austerity on local authority
discretionary services

3. Commercialisation in local authorities

We will confirm whether the Council will be

a fieldwork site for any of these studies

shortly.

24  The performance audit projects included in last year’s Audit Plan, which are either
still underway or which have been substituted for alternative projects in agreement

with you, are set out in Appendix 2.

Certification of grant claims and returns

25 | have been requested to undertake certification work on the Council’s grant claims

and returns as set out in Appendix 3.

26  As was the case last year, the Welsh Government will not require me to provide any
report of factual findings related to any activity levels or outcomes.

Page 10 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtaigj@c 2




27 My audit fee for this work is set out in Exhibit 5.

Overall issues identified

28  Exhibit 4 summarises the more significant and/or recurring issues | identified when
undertaking grant certification work in 2017-18.

Exhibit 4: overall issues relating to grant claim and return certification

Qualified grant claims and returns qualified in 2017-18

Housing Benefit and Authority Tax Subsidy

A number of issues were identified, which resulted in a qualification, including:

Rent Allowances

o Total expenditure related to cases not requiring referral to the rent officer — this
error was identified in-year where the incorrect rent liability was used when
calculating the benefit. This led to an extrapolated overstatement in cell 102 of £71
with a corresponding understatement of cell 113.

o Total Expenditure (Benefit Granted) — this is an error that has also been identified in
prior years, where the average weekly income was calculated incorrectly, this led to
an extrapolated overstatement of £541 with a corresponding understatement in cell
113.

e Eligible Overpayments (current year) — this is an error that has also been identified
in prior years, where expenditure was misclassified as eligible overpayment rather
than LA Error, this led to an extrapolated overstatement in cell 114 of £0.46 with a
corresponding understatement of cell 99.

Two of the ‘In-year reconciliation’ cells on the claim form did not agree. This was
reported in the Qualification Letter.

An amendment was also made to the claim to ensure the accuracy of information
reported. Cell 229 (Average actual weekly rent per dwelling for 2017-18) was adjusted
by £2.43 and Cell 230 (Rental Income for 2017-18) was adjusted by £177,868 to read
£82.64 and £45,743,368 respectively. These adjustments had no impact on the
subsidy claimed.

Local Transport Grant

e The claim was incorrectly completed in £000’s, causing an overstatement of the
expenditure on the claim form. This was adjusted and has no impact on the grant
award claimed.

Effectiveness of grant co-ordination arrangements

The Authority has adequate arrangements for preparing its grants and returns and
supporting our certification work.

Page 11 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtatgj@c2 3



Issues related to specific grant claims and returns

29 In addition to the overall issues identified above, | summarise the more significant
issues | have identified relating to individual grant claims and returns in Appendix 3.

Fee, audit team and timetable

Fee

30  Your estimated fee for 2019 is set out in Exhibit 5. There have been some small
changes to my fees rates for 2019, however, my audit teams will continue to drive
efficiency in their audits to ensure any resulting increases will not be passed on to
you. This represents a 0.03% increase compared to your actual 2018 fee. [Insert
short explanation for change if appropriate].

Exhibit 5: audit fee

This table sets out the proposed audit fee for 2019, by area of audit work, alongside the
actual audit fee for last year.

Audit area Proposed fee (£)2  Actual fee last year (£)

Audit of accounts? 250,000 250,000

Performance audit work* 104,815 104,776

Total fee 354,815 354,776

Grant certification work® Scope of work to be 41,788
confirmed

31 Planning will be ongoing, and changes to my programme of audit work and therefore
my fee, may be required if any key new risks emerge. | shall make no changes
without first discussing them with the Council.

32  Further information on my fee scales and fee setting can be found on our website.

2 Notes: The fees shown in this document are exclusive of VAT, which is not charged to
you.

3 Payable November 2018 to October 2019.

4 Payable April 2019 to March 2020.

5 Payable as work is undertaken.

Page 12 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtatgj@c24


http://www.audit.wales/about-us/fee-scales-and-fee-setting

Audit team

33  The main members of my team, together with their contact details, are summarised
in Exhibit 6.

Exhibit 6: my audit team

This table lists the members of the local audit team and their contact details.

Name Role Contact number | E-mail address

Huw Rees Engagement Director and 029 20320 599 huw.rees@audit.wales
Engagement Lead —
Performance Audit
Barrie Morris Engagement Lead — Financial | 0117 305 7708 barrie.morris@uk.gt.com
Audit
Grace Hawkins | Financial Audit Team Manager | 02920 347542 grace.e.hawkins@uk.gt.com
Non Jenkins Performance Audit Manager 029 20320 595 non.jenkins@audit.wales
Gareth Jones Performance Audit Lead 029 20320 548 gareth.jones@audit.wales
34 | can confirm that that my team members are all independent of Caerphilly County

Borough Council and your officers. In addition, | am not aware of any potential
conflicts of interest that | need to bring to your attention.

Page 13 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtaig@c25


mailto:huw.rees@audit.wales
mailto:non.jenkins@audit.wales
mailto:gareth.jones@audit.wales

Timetable

35 I will provide reports, or other outputs as agreed, to Caerphilly County Borough
Council covering the areas of work identified in this document. My key milestones

are set out in Exhibit7.

Exhibit 7: timetable

This table sets out the proposed timetable for completion and reporting of my audit work at

the Council.

Planned output Work undertaken | Report finalised

2019 Audit Plan December 2018 to | March 2019
January 2019

Financial accounts work:

e Audit of Financial Statements February to September 2019

Report September 2019

e Opinion on Financial Statements September 2019

¢ Financial Accounts Memorandum October 2019

Performance work:

e Improvement Plan Audit April 2019 April 2019

o WFG Act Examination May to August September 2019*
2019

e Assessment of Performance Audit | October to November 2019
November 2019

e Assurance and Risk Assessment | October to December 2019
November 2019

¢ Financial Sustainability TBC TBC

e Transformation September to December 2019*
December 2019

Annual Improvement Report April 2019 to May June 2020
2020

2020 Audit Plan October to January 2020
December 2019

*Estimated

Page 14 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtaigj@c 6




Future developments to my audit work

36  Details of other future developments including forthcoming changes to key
International Financial Reporting Standards, the Wales Audit Office’s Good Practice
Exchange (GPX) seminars and my planned work on the readiness of the Welsh
public sector for Brexit, are set out in Appendix 4.

Page 15 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borogtatgj@ci2 /



Appendix 1

Respective responsibilities

Audit of accounts

As amended by the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2013, the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004
sets out my powers and duties to undertake your financial audit. It is my responsibility to
issue a certificate and report on the financial statements which includes an opinion on:

. their ‘truth and fairness’, providing assurance that they:
- are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error;
- comply with the statutory and other applicable requirements; and
- comply with all relevant requirements for accounting presentation and
disclosure.
. the consistency of information in the Annual Report with the financial statements.

| must also state by exception if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with
requirements, if proper accounting records have not been kept, if disclosures required for
remuneration and other transactions have not been made or if | have not received all the
information and explanations | require.

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to assess whether Caerphilly County
Borough Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources. To achieve this, | consider:

. the results of the audit work undertaken on the financial statements;

. Caerphilly County Borough Council ’s system of internal control, as reported in the
Annual Governance Statement and my report thereon;

. the results of other work carried out including work carried out under the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure), certification of claims and
returns, and data-matching exercises;

. the results of the work of other external review bodies where relevant to my
responsibilities; and

. any other work that addresses matters not covered by the above, and which |
consider necessary to discharge my responsibilities.

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 sets out the rights of the public and electors to inspect
Caerphilly County Borough Council’s financial statements and related documents, to ask
me, as the Appointed Auditor, questions about the accounts and, where appropriate, to
challenge items in the accounts. | must also consider whether in the public interest, |
should make a report on any matter which comes to my notice in the course of the audit.

My audit work does not relieve management and those charged with governance of their
responsibilities which include:

. the preparation of the financial statements and Annual Report in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and guidance;

Page 16 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County BorOLBrag®0128



. the keeping of proper accounting records;
. ensuring the regularity of financial transactions; and
. securing value for money in the use of resources.

Management agrees to provide me with:

. access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other
matters;

. additional information that | may request from management for the purpose of the
audit; and

o unrestricted access to persons within Caerphilly County Borough Council from

whom | determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Management will need to provide me with written representations to confirm:

. that it has fulfilled its responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements;

. that all transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial
statements;

. the completeness of the information provided to me for the purposes of the audit;
and

. to support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements or specific

assertions in the financial statements if | deem it necessary or if required by ISAs.

Performance audit

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me, by examination of the accounts or
otherwise, to satisfy myself that the body has made proper arrangements for:

. securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources; and

. that the body, if required to publish information in pursuance of a direction under
section 47 (performance information) has made such arrangements for collecting
and recording the information and for publishing it as are required for the
performance of its duties under that section.

The Measure places a general duty on improvement authorities to ‘make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement in the exercise of [their] functions’. It also places specific
requirements on authorities to set improvement objectives, and to publish annual
improvement plans and assessments of performance. Improvement authorities are
defined as county and county borough councils, national park authorities, and fire and
rescue authorities.

The Measure also requires me to carry out an improvement assessment for each
improvement authority every year, to determine whether the authority is likely to comply
with its general duty and requirements of the Measure. | must also carry out an audit of
whether the authority has discharged its improvement planning and reporting duties.

The Auditor General may also in some circumstances carry out special inspections
(under section 21), in respect of which he will provide a report to the relevant authorities

Page 17 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Boro@&@@cjzg



and Ministers, and which he may publish (under section 22). The Auditor General will
summarise audit and assessment reports in his published Annual Improvement Report
(under section 24). This will also summarise any reports of special inspections.

Section 15 of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 requires me to carry
out examinations of public bodies for the purposes of assessing the extent to which it has
acted in accordance with the sustainable development principle when:

(a) setting wellbeing objectives; and
(b)  taking steps to meet those objectives.

| must carry out such an examination of each public body at least once during a five-year
period. Before the end of the period | must report on the results of those examinations to
the National Assembly.

Page 18 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Boro@&@@c@()



Appendix 2

Performance work in last year’s audit outline still
in progress

Exhibit 8: performance work in last year’s audit outline still in progress

Performance audit project | Status Comment

Environmental Health Scoping We are conducting a short
Review of the arrangements follow-up of the Council's

the council has put in place progress in addressing the

to deliver environmental recommendations made in the
health services building on Auditor General’'s national

the study previously study. We aim to conclude this
undertaken by the Auditor work by early Autumn 2019.

General as part of the
‘delivering with less’ themed

studies.

Leisure Services Scoping We are conducting a short
Review of the arrangements follow-up of the Council’s

the council has put in place progress in addressing the

to deliver leisure services recommendations made in the
building on the ‘study Auditor General’'s national
previously undertaken by the study. We aim to conclude this
Auditor General as part of work by early Autumn 2019.

the ‘delivering with less’
themed studies.

Corporate Safeguarding Scoping We are conducting a short
Arrangements follow-up of the Council’s
Review of the effectiveness progress in addressing the

of corporate safeguarding recommendations made in the
arrangements building on Auditor General’s national

the study previously study. We aim to conclude this
undertaken by the Auditor work by early Autumn 2019.

General in this area.

Page 19 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtarg@cB 1



Appendix 3

Summary of grant claim certification work

Exhibit 9: summary of grant claim certification work
This table summarises my 2018-19 programme of grant claim certification work

Qualified
certificate

Grants and returns Adjustment

(>£10,000)

Adjustment
(<€£10,000)

Unqualified
certificate

received

Claim due | Claim Late

gBENO1 Housing Benefits and Authority Tax 30/04/2018 | 25/04/2018 | No
ECD Subsidy Yes Disclosure
WIRA15 | Local Transport Grant 30/09/2018 | 25/09/2018 | No
)] Disclosure
RGO03 Communities First — All Clusters 31/07/2018 | 06/07/2018 | No Yes
EDU18 | 21st Century Schools 30/09/2018 | 26/09/2018 | No Yes
LAO1 Non-Domestic Rate 31/05/2018 | 31/05/2018 | No Yes
HLGO1 | Gwent Frailty Partnership 27/04/2018 | 25/04/2018 | No Yes
HLGO3 | Section 28a Annual Voucher — Wanless 30/09/2018 | 07/09/2018 | No Yes
HLGO3 | Section 28a Annual Voucher — Learning 30/09/2018 | 07/09/2018 | No Yes
and Disability
PENO5 | Teachers Pensions 31/05/2018 | 30/04/2018 | No Yes
LA99 Summary of Certified Welsh Government 15/06/2018 | 31/05/2018 | No Yes
Grants

Page 20 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borough Council




Ref Grants and returns Claim due | Claim Late Qualified Adjustment | Adjustment | Unqualified
received certificate | (>£10,000) (<£10,000) certificate

TRA23 | Free Concessionary Travel

(The financial element of this claim is now
included in the ‘Summary of Certified
Welsh Government Grants (LA99)'.
Auditors were required to report on the
management of Smartcard Data and ISAM
chips under ClI TRA23).

Total 1 £177,870 £0 8

he overall grants work programme in 2019 is expected to include Housing Benefit subsidy, 21st Century Schools, Non-domestic rates, Teachers
(Pensions, Communities First, pooled budgets and money transfers, and the Summary Schedule of Welsh Government funding.

w
‘-L-bcally, there may also be Communities First, pooled budgets and money transfers grants claims.

Page 21 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borough Council



Appendix 4

Other future developments

A. Forthcoming key IFRS changes

Exhibit 10: changes to IFRS standards

This table details the key future changes to International Financial Reporting Standards

Standard Effective date | Further details

IFRS 16 leases | Expected in IFRS 16 will replace the current leases standard IAS
2020-21 17. The key change is that it largely removes the
distinction between operating and finance leases for
lessees by introducing a single lessee accounting
model that requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
It will lead to all leases being recognised on the
balance sheet as an asset based on a right of use
principle with a corresponding liability for future rentals.
This is a significant change in lessee accounting.

B. Good Practice Exchange

The Wales Audit Office’s GPX helps public services improve by sharing knowledge and
practices that work. Events are held where knowledge can be exchanged face to face
and resources shared on line. The main areas of work are regarding financial
management, public-sector staff and governance.

Further information, including details of forthcoming GPX events and outputs from past
seminars.

C. Brexit: preparations for the United Kingdom’s departure from
membership of the European Union

In accordance with Article 50 of the Treaty of Rome, on 29 March 2019 the United
Kingdom will cease to be a member of the European Union. Negotiations are continuing,
and it currently remains unclear whether agreement will be reached on a transition period
to 31 December 2020, or whether a ‘no deal’ immediate exit will take place next March.

The Auditor General has commenced a programme of work looking at the arrangements
that the devolved public sector in Wales, including all NHS bodies, is putting in place to
prepare for, and respond to, Britain’s exit from the European Union. This will take the
form of a high-level overview to establish what is being put in place across the Welsh
public sector, and what the key issues are from the perspectives of different parts of the
Welsh public service.

Page 22 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtaig@c84


http://www.audit.wales/good-practice
http://www.audit.wales/good-practice

The Auditor General intends to carry out this initial work in two tranches. In autumn 2018,
he issued a call for evidence to compile a baseline summary of arrangements being put
in place. On 19 February 2019, the Auditor General issued a report® on preparations in
Wales for a ‘no deal’ Brexit. This will be followed up by further audit fieldwork during the
rest of 2019.

6 http://www.audit.wales/publication/preparations-wales-no-deal-brexit

Page 23 of 24 - 2019 Audit Plan — Caerphilly County Borolgtatg@cB85



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone : 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon testun: 029 2032 0660

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru



mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/

Agenda Iltem 6

Y
CAERPHILLY

OROUGH COUNCIL
OR DEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL]
4

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019
SUBJECT: ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2018/19

REPORT BY: INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES MANAGER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to inform the Audit Committee of the Internal Audit Manager’s
overall opinion on the Authority’s Internal Control Systems derived from the work undertaken
by Internal Audit Services during the 2018/19 financial year.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 It is a requirement the Council’s Financial Regulations, the Internal Audit Charter and the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) that the Head of Internal Audit provides an
annual report to support the Annual Governance Statement. The report should: -

¢ Include an opinion on the overall systems of internal controls.

e Present a summary of the audit work that has been undertaken on which this opinion is
based.

o Draw attention to any issues which may impact on the level of assurance provided.

2.2 This audit opinion will inform the annual governance review process and be incorporated into
the Annual Governance Statement which will be reviewed by the Audit Committee at its
meeting in June 2019.

3 LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1  Strong corporate governance arrangements are an essential element of ensuring that the
Council’s key priorities are effectively delivered and this in turn contributes to the following
Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: -

A prosperous Wales.

A resilient Wales.

A healthier Wales.

A more equal Wales.

A Wales of cohesive communities.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language.
A globally responsible Wales.

4. THE REPORT

4.1 Both the Council’s Financial Regulations and the Internal Audit Charter set out the reporting
requirements for Internal Audit Services and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS) introduced in 2013 have also reinforced the links with corporate governance and the
assurance framework.

Page 37



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

413

The purpose of this report is to provide Members of the Audit Committee with an opinion or
view of the robustness and effectiveness of the internal control systems and procedures in
place within the organisation during the 2018/19 financial year.

The opinion is a key element of the annual governance review process and forms part of the
published Annual Governance Statement.

The approach adopted for reviewing and evaluating the internal controls and processes
revolves around a flexible well constructed plan that considers several factors such as risk,
impact, nature and history etc. Audits undertaken are evaluated against pre-set criteria to
provide a ranking which is used to feed into the overall assessment.

Information used within the assessment process can also be obtained from other work
undertaken such as grant certification work, system advice, participation on working groups
and special investigations etc. all of which provide audit staff with intelligence which can both
inform the audit planning function and inform the overall assurance provided by the audit
opinion.

The prolonged sickness absence of the Internal Audit Manager during the year has impacted
on both the day-to-day running of the Internal Audit Team as well as the completion of the
improvement initiatives. Additionally, a number of large or complex pieces of work have taken
resource away from previously planned areas; however, as previously discussed with the
Audit Committee through having the ability to prioritise and reschedule the Team is able to
respond to emerging or new risks.

The audits completed and used to generate the overall opinion are shown at Appendix 1 and
Appendix 2 which also highlight the extent of the work completed and its diversity. Throughout
the year some amendments to terminology and categorisations have been made but for clarity
summaries of both appendices are included below.

During 2018/19 two investigations have been undertaken, one within a school and the other
relating to operational activities within a service area. The school issue is an isolated incident
relating to one member of staff and is not something that is common across our school estate.
The service area investigation is ongoing and relates to contract administration/management
and once the investigation is concluded any changes or system improvements identified will
be reported on and an appropriate action plan agreed and implemented.

Systems audits have been carried out over a wide range of areas in order to gain an overall
opinion of the effectiveness of the internal control system operating within the Council. These
audits cover the key financial systems but may also address non-financial systems which are
considered to be high risk or high impact. In the main systems or processes related to cash,
income, payments or where high transaction volumes exist are covered in this way.

Some high risk areas traditionally covered by systems work received audit coverage via the
evaluation and investigation of data matches identified from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
exercise and this work was rolled over from the previous year.

System audits risk rate each individual finding which then informs an overall opinion on the
adequacy of the system of controls and the compliance with the system in place (if
transactional tests were performed).

Where findings are reported, recommendations are made to management, who are required
to indicate the actions they are planning to take to address the findings noted. These form part
of an action plan which are either followed up as a separate process or built into the planning
of the next audit of that particular system.

In the main auditees and management accept recommendations made and an overall opinion
is reported. Furthermore, in line with PSIAS, systems reports now also contain a “direction of
travel” indicator to show whether there baéﬁge%@ improvement/ reduction in the nature or
type of risks reported.



4.14 The following table summarises the opinions reported in respect of finalised audit

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

421

assignments. Not all audits generate an opinion for example grants certification, and where no

compliance testing is performed there is no opinion generated on this aspect.

Opinion System (Nos) Compliance (Nos)
Good/Effective 9 2
_Satisfactory/Effective with room for 11 4
improvement
In need of Improvement 3 4
Inadequate/unsatisfactory 1
Total 24 10

Audit reports with at least one “in need of improvement” opinion noted above are as follows: -

NFI payroll.

PCI compliance.

WHQS data validation.
Treasury Management.
School transport — Taxis.
Section 17 payments.

Those reports issued before October’s Audit Committee meeting would not have been
reported due to the introduction of the 4 tier opinions from that point. Due to the timings of the
reports, the Audit Committee cycle and other factors there may be a delay between the issue
of the report and the reporting to the next Audit Committee.

Council operational establishments i.e. Schools etc. are audited on a rotational basis. The
control systems and processes in establishments cover most of the administrative/financial
operations carried out at the establishment, some of which feed into corporately managed
systems which are audited centrally. In respect of establishment audits one overall opinion is
given and as part of the audit process school governors are tasked with ensuring
improvement takes place as agreed by the Head teacher and this is also followed up by audit
staff.

While a formal action plan review process is not in place those establishments identified as
being in need of improvement are required to complete an action plan and are subject to a
follow up review to monitor progress of the implementation of the recommendations and an
enhancement of the control processes in place.

Periodic visits to these sites may not only detect and correct poor practices, it may also give
an opportunity to issue advice and guidance, correct poor or bad practice and enhance or set
up a better control environment in situ. Regular visits may also act as a deterrent to any mal-
practice.

Establishments visited included primary and secondary schools, a selection of libraries, social
services establishments, a leisure facility and Blackwood Miners Institute.

When an irregularity is identified at an establishment it is normally contained within the
individual establishment as a stand alone event which has no effect on the other
establishments.

Opinion Numbers

Good/effective 5

Satisfactory/effective with room for impma/g@erong 23




4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

In need of Improvement 6

Unsatisfactory/inadequate 1

Total 35

Audit reports with an “in need of improvement” opinion noted above are as follows:-
Llanfabon Infants, Park Primary, Risca Primary, White Rose Primary, YG Bro Allta, Gilfach
Fargoed Primary and Islwyn High School. Those reports issued before October’s Audit
Committee meeting would not have been reported due to the introduction of the 4 tier
opinions. Due to the timings of the reports, the Audit Committee cycle and other factors such
as school holidays there may be a delay between the issue of the report and the reporting to
the next Audit Committee.

Other audit work undertaken during the period under review included regularity work, advisory
work, supporting working parties and advising on best practise in relation to new systems and
processes.

Grant certification - A number of Welsh Government grants are received by the Authority that
are subjected to a review of accuracy and compliance with terms and conditions requiring a
year-end certification. Significant revenue streams arise from these grants. 7 grant audits
with a value of over £12 million were audited in 2018/19.

Audit staff supported the IT section in retaining the authority’s PCI (Payment Card Industry)
accreditation. This required certain systems and processes to be in place and for these to be
reviewed and checked at least annually. Failure to adhere to these Standards could result in
the withdrawal of the facility to accept card income and the imposition of fines and penalties.
In 2018/19 all locations that accept debit and credit card income were visited and reminders of
best practice and any breaches noted were reported to site managers and a full report was
issued to the PCI forum and IT security Officer. Recommended improvements were put in
place and the Authority remains fully compliant with the Standard.

Audit staff had continued to provide advice and guidance to the Purchase Ledger Section in
respect of best practices in administering and complying with the requirements of HMRC in
paying contractors and limited companies and identifying instances of “deemed employment”.
This is considered to be a high risk area as the regulations issued are recent and case law
and practice is emerging in this area whilst fines and penalties imposed by HMRC for non-
compliance have the potential to be major.

Primary school meal income amounts to over £1million per annum and issues relating to the
administration and collection are a recurring theme in schools, and an audit review in 2017/18
had indicated this area was in need of improvement. Further ongoing advice and support has
been provided to Catering Services and individual schools as the cashless primary school
meals system was rolled out to a pilot of 5 schools and initial results are showing a reduction
in cash handled in the pilot schools, with an associated reduction in risk of cash losses and
arrears.

The Group Auditor was assigned as the Corporate Finance Information Governance Steward
during 2017/18, a role that has continued into 2018/19. As Members are aware the General
Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) came into force in May 2018 and this gives the
Information Commissioner much greater powers in cases of breach and the value of fines has
also increased. Recognising this as a risk a great deal of time was allocated to this role which
included supporting the various sections within Corporate Finance in drafting Privacy Notices.
This work has carried on into the current year. In addition, as part of this a significant one-off
exercise was undertaken which involved reviewing all audit files and editing, archiving or
destroying them to support the Section’s compliance with the Regulations.

The Internal Audit Manager is a member of the Corporate Governance Panel which met
during the year. Corporate Governance Panel minutes were reported to the Audit Committee
and the Panel informed the Annual Gotéag@edtlatement process.



4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

Internal Audit Services has continued to undertake final account reviews and other contract
audit work with 63 contractors’ final accounts being reviewed during the year (70 in 2017/18).
These had a value of £23.5m (£9.5m 2017/18).

The Group Auditor is the primary contact for the NFI and uploads for the 2018/19 exercise
were performed and coordinated by the Group Auditor in October 2018. Matches were
released in January 2019 and work will be undertaken during 2019/20 to investigate these.

Anonymous letters, reports and complaints are received and assessed within Internal Audit to
ensure that they are properly considered and if necessary they are then passed to appropriate
Departments for further investigation or review. Resource demand for this process is difficult
to forecast. During the year there were 59 letters logged (66 in 2017/18). These
communications cover a range of possible issues and include highways, planning, anti-social
behaviour, tipping, animal control, neighbour issues, child protection and safeguarding and
possible other illegal activities. Each report is assessed individually and referred appropriately.
Where allegations relate to criminal activities, benefit fraud, staff irregularities or safeguarding
immediate referrals are made to relevant parties.

Internal Audit also log and record cheques returned to the Authority. These are scrutinised to
ensure they do not relate to breakdowns in control processes. 61 were logged in 2018/19 (84
in 2017/18).

Compliance work was undertaken to assist with the IT security accreditation and 5 areas
received coverage in 2018/19.

A member of the Internal Audit Team assisted the Corporate Accountancy Team following
year-end 2017/18 in relation to closing down a number of grant claims. Another member of
the Team has also been seconded to Caerphilly Homes since January 2019 to assist with
addressing some of the recommendations contained in an audit report including data
validation procedures following an audit of this area. This member of staff will continue with
the project into the new financial year.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) came into force on the 1t April 2013 and
consist of the following: -

e Definition of internal audit.
e Code of Ethics.
e Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

The Standards aim to promote further improvement in the professionalism, quality and
effectiveness of Internal Audit across the public sector. The Standards require that each
public sector Internal Audit Service has in place robust arrangements for quality assurance
and requires that Internal Audit is subject to an external assessment at least once every 5
years.

The results of an external assessment in 2017/18 were reported to the Audit Committee in
January 2018. The assessment noted that there were no significant deviations from the
Standards but a small number of recommendations to improve conformance were made and
these are being progressed. The Internal Audit Service continued to conform to the Standards
during 2018/19 and no significant deviations have been noted.

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGERS OPINION

The Internal Audit Manager’s opinion is that overall the Council’s systems and control
procedures are effective but there is need for improvement in some specific areas.

The investigation undertaken in respect of an education establishment is an isolated incident
and does not reflect the position across all of the Council’s establishments. Indications from

Page 41



the ongoing departmental investigation are that there may be specific issues requiring
attention that will need to be addressed moving forward.

5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

51 Strong corporate governance arrangements are a key element in ensuring that the Well-being
Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met.

6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no equalities implications.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no financial implications.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no personnel implications.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1  Any comments received have been reflected in the report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 To note the opinion expressed by the Internal Audit manager.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
11.1 To ensure that: -

e The Audit Committee is aware of the level of Internal Audit coverage and the overall
opinion derived from undertaking this work.

e Adequate supporting information and evidence has been supplied to the Audit Committee
to enable the Committee to meet its requirements under the Committee’s terms of
reference.

e Adequate assurance is provided to support the Annual Governance Statement process.

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 Local Government Act 2000

Author: R. Harris, Internal Audit Services Manager
Consultees: N. Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance & Section 151 Officer

R. Edmunds, Director of Education & Corporate Services
S. Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services

Page 42



APPENDIX 1

Audit type |Planned Done |Final QTR |QTR |QTR [QTR |Audit
in Report 1 2 3 4 opinion
this |Issued
year |Date
ESTABLISHMENTS
Tourism
Action plan  |Cwmcarn Scenic Drive visitor 1|n/a n/a
centre
Education
est Aberbargoed primary 1117.1.19 effect room
for improv
Action plan [Abercarn primary 1l|n/a n/a
est Bedwas Comp 1/27.9.18 1 satis
est Bedwas infants 1/12.9.18 1 satis
advice Bedwas Junior 1l|n/a n/a
Action plan  [Blackwood Comp 1l|n/a n/a
est Coed-y-brain Primary 1/18.5.18 satis
Action plan  [Crumlin Primary 1l|n/a n/a
Action plan |Cwm Ifor Primary 1|n/a n/a
advice Cwmcarn Primary 1|n/a n/a
Action plan |Derwendeg Primary 1l|n/a n/a
Advice Fochriw Primary 1|n/a n/a
est Gilfach Fargoed Primary 1122.2.19 in need of
improv
Advice Graig-y-Rhacca Primary 1|n/a n/a
est Greenhill Primary 1/1.10.18 1 good
est Hendre Infants 1/7.6.18 satis
est Hendre Juniors 1/8.6.18 good
Advice Hengoed Primary 1|n/a n/a
est Lewis Girls 1]16.11.18 1 eoi
Action plan _|Lewis School Pengam 1l|n/a n/a
est Libanus Primary 1/12.9.18 1 good
est Llancaiach Juniors 1/12.3.19 effect room
for improv
est Llanfabon Infants 1/10.12.18 1 in need of
improv
est Islwyn High 1/25.1.19 inadeq
Action plan |Pantside Primary 1l|n/a n/a
est Park Primary Bargoed 1]121.2.19 in need of
improv
Action plan _ [Pentwynmawr Primary 1l|n/a n/a
est Phillipstown Primary 1/7.9.18 satis
Action plan  [Risca Comp 1|n/a n/a
est Risca Primary 1|22.2.19 in need of
improv
est St. James Primary 1/30.8.18 satis
Action plan _|Ty Sign Primary 1l|n/a n/a
est White Rose Primary 1/13.3.19 in need of
improv
est YG Bro Allta 1|7.1.19 in need of
improv
Action plan |YG Cwm Gwyddon 1|n/a n/a
Action plan |YG Trelyn 1|n/a n/a
est YGG Caerffili 1]9.5.18 satis
est YGG Y Castell 1/23.4.18 good

Page 43




Advice Ysgol Bro Sannan 1|n/a n/a
est Ysgol Y Lawnt 1/11.7.18 satis
libraries
est Bedwas library 1/3.12.18 1 satis
est Blackwood library 1/3.12.18 1 satis
est Blackwood Miners Institute 1/26.4.18 1 satis
est Deri library 1{3.12.18 1 satis
est Machen Library 1/3.12.18 1 satis
est Nelson Library 1/3.12.18 1 satis
est Newbridge Library 1/3.12.18 1 satis
est Oakdale Library 1/3.12.18 1 satis
Leisure centres
Action plan |Bedwas LC 1|n/a n/a
Action plan  [New Tredegar LC 1l|n/a n/a
est Ystrad Mynach LC 1/3.12.18 1 satis
Social Services
est Elderly - Beatrice Webb HFE 1/3.12.18 1 satis
Advice Elderly - Brodawel HFE 1|n/a n/a
est Elderly - Brondeg Day Centre
est Elderly - Min Y Mynnydd HFE
est Elderly - Rhymney Day Centre 1/3.8.18 good
est Elderly - Twyncarn Day Centre 1/23.4.18 1 satis
Action plan [Elderly - Ty Clyd HFE 1l|n/a n/a
est Learn. Diff. - Pont woodcraft 1/3.5.18 1 satis
8 15 35

Page 44




Gy abed

APPENDIX 2

Audit type [Planned Done in|Final QTR |QTR |QTR [QTR |Audit Audit opinion
this Report 1 2 3 4 opinion compliance
year Issued System,

Date
Corporate Finance

Sys Benefits Discretionary Housing Payments 1/26.6.18 satis satis

sys Cashiers/IT PCI card security systems 114.7.18 1 satis inoi

sys Council Tax 1113.2.19 effect effect with

improv

Sys Council tax reduction scheme 1|126.4.18 satis satis

Sys Debtors high level control review 1/13.9.18 1 good

Sys NNDR 1/30.8.18 1 good

Sys Treasury management 1/15.1.19 inoi

reg NFI match review Council Tax Reduction scheme 1|23.8.18 1 good

matches (29 data reports)

reg NFI match review Payroll matches (6 data reports) 1/16.8.18 1 inoi

reg NFI match review Houisng Benefit mtaches (9 data 1/16.8.18 1 good
reports)

reg NFI match review Creditors matches (9 data reports) 1113.9.18 1 satis

IT

system BS standards no 1 1 effect n/a

system BS standards no 2 1 1 satis n/a

system BS standards no 3 1 1 satis n/a

system BS standards no 4 1 1 satis n/a

system BS standards no 5 1 1 satis n/a

EDUCATION SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES

Sys Early years free childcare offer 114.12.18 1 satis satis

certification |School uniform grant 1117.9.18 1 satis

vfm Youth service vehicle hire and use 1/13.8.18 1 satis




o abed

Social services

Sys Section 17 payments (prevention and support) 1/10.12.18 1 good inoi
HOUSING (including WHQS)

system WHOQOS data validation 1/30.11.18 1 inoi inoi
ENGINEERING TRANSPORT AND HIGHWAYS

system School Transport Taxi contracts 1]14.9.18 1 unsatis inoi
COMMUNITY & LEISURE SERVICES

system Civic Amenity Van Trailer waste permits 1/17.9.18 1 good good
PUBLIC PROTECTION

reg cctv control centre 1/9.8.18 good good

24.00 11 24 10




Agenda Item 7

A AEREHILLY

CYNGOIRR BWIRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAE [ o 4 of of 4 5 4

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES: AUDIT CHARTER

REPORT BY: INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES MANAGER

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek Audit Committee approval of the updated Internal Audit Charter

SUMMARY

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Internal Audit Section to have
a Charter. The existing Charter has been revised and updated and this report outlines the
revisions and updates that have been made and the reasons for those revisions.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

Strong corporate governance arrangements are an essential element of ensuring that the
Council’s key priorities are effectively delivered and this in turn contributes to the following
Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015:-

A prosperous Wales.

A resilient Wales.

A healthier Wales.

A more equal Wales.

A Wales of cohesive communities.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language.
A globally responsible Wales.

THE REPORT

The existing Internal Audit Charter, previously agreed by the Audit Committee and introduced
in September 2014, is in need of updating as a consequence of both the internal and external
assessments undertaken as required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Additional wording has been incorporated into the existing document to more accurately
reflect the requirements set out within the Standards.

The new Audit Charter is attached at Appendix 1. The previous version showing the proposed
changes is attached at Appendix 2 (with underlining for deletions and italics in brackets for
additions).

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

Strong corporate governance arrangements are a key element in ensuring that the Well-being

Page 47



Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met.

6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no equalities implications.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 None.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 None.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 Any comments received have been reflected in the report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 Members are asked to note and endorse the amended Charter.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 To ensure that the document underpinning the operation of Internal Audit Services is up to
date and relevant and reflects the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

(PSIAS).
Author: R.M. Harris, Internal Audit Manager
Consultees: N. Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance & Section 151 Officer
R. Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education & Corporate Services
S. Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services
Appendices:

Appendix 1 Proposed new Internal Audit Charter
Appendix 2 Old/current Internal Audit Charter

Page 48



Appendix 1

Caerphilly County Borough Council
Internal Audit Services

Audit Charter
April 2019

A Y
Man gwyrddach CAERPHILLY
A greener place CAERFFILI
> <

1
Page 49



Introduction

The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document, required by the Public Sector Internal
Auditing Standards (PSIAS), that defines the Internal Audit Services activities, purpose,
authority and responsibility. The Internal Audit Charter establishes Internal Audit’s position
within the organisation, including the nature of the Internal Audit Manager’s functional
reporting relationship with the Audit Committee; authorises access to records, personnel and
physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines the scope of
Internal Audit activities.

The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed annually with any resulting updates or
amendments clearly documented and approved by the Council’s Audit Committee.

Throughout the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which Internal Audit Services are
mandated to comply with, reference is made to the ‘Board’ and ‘Senior management’ and in
respect of Caerphilly County Borough Council and this Charter specifically these terms are
taken to mean ‘the Council’s Audit Committee’ and the ‘Section 151 Officer’ respectively.

Mission

The Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards set out the mission of Internal Audit as being
to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk based and objective
assurance, advice and insight.

Internal audit is also defined within the Standards as an independent, objective assurance
and advisory service designed to add value and improve the Council's operations. It helps
the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance
processes.

The Standards also set out a mandatory code of ethics by which Internal Auditors must
abide in order to promote an ethical culture in the internal auditing profession.

The function provides independent and objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and control
in the Authority in an economical, efficient and timely manner.

This includes identification of risks and assessment of their management, and
implementation of changes to strengthen the governance framework. The Internal Audit
Manager’s opinion is a key element of the framework of assurance that the Section 151
Officer needs to inform the completion of the Annual Governance Statement.

Scope of work
The scope of work of Internal Audit Services is to determine whether the Council’s network

of risk management, control, and governance processes, as designed and represented by
management, is adequate and functioning in a manner to ensure:

] Risks are appropriately identified and managed;

1 Interaction with the various governance groups occurs as needed;

2
Page 50



1 Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate, reliable, and

timely;

1 Employees’ actions are in compliance with policies, standards, procedures, and
applicable laws and regulations;

[l Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently, and adequately protected;

[0 Programs, plans, and objectives are achieved;

[0 Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the Council’s control process;

1 Significant legislative or regulatory issues impacting the Council are recognised and
addressed appropriately; and

1  Opportunities for improving management control, profitability and the Council’s image

may be identified during audits. They will be communicated to the appropriate level of
management.

The scope of internal audit work may include audit activity both within the Council and on
functions that the Council has delegated or contracted out, where the Council remains
accountable for the expenditure involved.

Where other internal or external assurance providers may have undertaken relevant
assurance and audit work, Internal Audit Services will seek to rely on the work of these other
assurance providers where professional standards would make it appropriate to do so.

Fraud and Irregularity

The Council’s Financial Regulations requires the relevant Head of Service to report any
suspected or actual irregularity to the Section 151 Officer to ensure that satisfactory
enquiries are undertaken in all such instances and that appropriate steps are taken to
resolve and deal with any resultant findings. Whilst the initial responsibility for such enquiries
rests with the Director concerned, the Section 151 Officer may require that the Internal Audit
Manager manages and reports on any matter for investigation

All audit staff undertake their duties in the knowledge that they may come across or identify
potential fraud or financial irregularity. Within the operational procedures for audit staff a
formal notification / escalation process is set out which dovetails into the procedures
required within the Authority’s Financial Regulations. Internal Auditors may also under the
Direction of the Internal Audit Manager assist with an investigation into a potential irregularity
in order to support a formal investigation process.

Internal Audit staff also co-ordinate and support the work undertaken by the Authority in
respect of the National Fraud Initiative including providing the Audit Committee with update
reports following the conclusion of each exercise.

Authority of Internal Audit

Internal Audit Services derives its authority from those authorising this Charter to provide a
free and unfettered ability to plan and undertake audit assignments deemed necessary to
fulfil its purpose, and have a right of direct access to the Chair of the Audit Committee in
doing so.

To enable the service to discharge its duties fully, the Internal Audit Manager and his
Internal Audit staff are authorised to:

3
Page 51



O O O

Have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, and personnel;
Have full and free access to the Audit Committee;

Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine scopes of work, and
apply the techniques required to accomplish audit objectives; and

Obtain the necessary assistance of personnel in service areas of the Council where
they perform audits, as well as other specialised services from within or outside the
Council.

Responsibility

The Internal Audit Manager and staff of the Internal Audit function have a responsibility to:

Plan

Develop a flexible annual strategy and audit plan using a risk-based methodology,
including any risks and concerns identified by management, and submit that strategy
and plan to the Audit Committee for review and approval;

L1 Agree significant changes to the plan with the Section 151 and the Audit Committee;

Act

1 Implement the annual strategy by assessing third party assurance sources and
conducting audits in accordance with the approved plan, and relevant professional
standards and policies;

1 Evaluate and assess areas of significant change;

1 Assist, as needed, in the investigation of significant suspected fraudulent activities
within the organisation;

Report

L1 Agree a reporting protocol with the Audit Committee and associated escalation
procedures. The reporting protocol should also include agreements on, and the
timescales for, following up audit reports and tracking issues raised and their
clearance;

1 Issue periodic reports to the Audit Committee summarising results of Internal Audit
activities;

1 Consider the scope of work of other assurance providers for the purpose of providing

optimal assurance coverage;

Communicate

(]

Communicate regularly with Internal Audit stakeholders and customers to ensure that
changes in the business, its activities and the control environment are factored into the
Internal Audit strategy and plan where appropriate;

During audits, raise significant issues for the attention of line management as soon as
identified, and discuss all draft reports with the auditee before finalisation to confirm
facts and incorporate management responses:

4
Page 52



Reporting lines

Day to day management of the Internal Audit team will be undertaken by the Internal Audit
Manager. The Internal Audit Manager reports to the Council’s Audit Committee for
organisational purposes but will report significant audit findings and audit progress directly to
the Section 151 Officer as appropriate. The Internal Audit Manager will keep the Section
151 Officer and the Audit Committee informed of progress and developments on a regular
basis. The Internal Audit Manager has a direct right of access to the Section 151 Officer as
and when required.

Should the Internal Audit Manager not be satisfied with management’s response to a given
audit report then this will be highlighted to the Audit Committee and significant weaknesses
escalated to the Section 151 Officer if they remain unresolved.

Independence and objectivity

To provide for the independence of Internal Audit, its personnel report to the Internal Audit
Manager, who reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the Section
151 Officer in a manner outlined in the section below on ‘accountability’.

Impairment to organisational independence and individual objectivity is managed in line with
the auditing standards and is not considered an ongoing or common problem. Annual
declarations are made by all audit staff confirming that they understand the independent role
of internal audit and sets out any issues that may need to be considered by the internal audit
management as a potential conflict of interest.

No routine non audit activities are undertaken and all potential additional duties or roles are
considered by the Internal Audit Manager and the Section 151 Officer prior to their
implementation. Additionally, upon allocation of audit tasks consideration is given to the
suitability of audit staff to the task. Those who have previously worked in the specific area to
be audited or have a live declaration of interest relating to the area to be audited will if
appropriate, be removed from undertaking the task.

Accountability

The Internal Audit Manager, in the discharge of his duties, shall be accountable to the Audit

Committee and the Section 151 Officer for:

L1 Providing, at least annually, an objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s framework of governance, risk
management and control;

[1 Reporting significant issues related to the processes for controlling the activities of the
Council and its affiliates, including recommendations and status of implementation of
improvements;

L1 Periodically providing information on the status and results of the annual audit plan and
the sufficiency of the Internal Audit function’s resources;

1 Co-ordination with other significant assurance functions.
Management responsibilities

Internal Audit Services can only be effective if it receives the full co-operation of
management. By approving this Internal Audit Charter the Section 151 Officer and the Audit

5
Page 53



Committee are mandating management to co-operate with Internal Audit in the delivery of
the service by:

1 Agreeing Terms of Reference, to include agreements on duration, scope, reporting and
response;

1 Sponsoring each audit at Head of Service level;

1 Providing Internal Audit Services with full support and co-operation, including complete
access to all records, data, property and personnel relevant to the performance of their
responsibilities at all levels of operations, without unreasonable delay;

[0 Responding to the draft internal report, including provision of management responses
to recommendations, within the timescale requested by the audit team;

1 Implementing agreed management actions in accordance with the agreed timescales;

1 Updating Internal Audit Services with progress made on management actions,
informing Internal Audit Services of proposed changes and developments in process
and systems, newly identified significant risks and cases of a criminal nature.

Instances of late responses to reports and agreed actions not being implemented will be
escalated, when appropriate, to the Section 151 Officer and the Audit Committee.

Whilst the annual internal audit report is a key element of the assurance framework required
to inform the Annual Governance Statement, there are also a number of other sources from
which those charged with governance should gain assurance. Additionally the annual
Internal Audit opinion does not discharge the responsibility of those charged with
governance from forming their own overall opinion on internal controls, governance
arrangements, and risk management activities.

Advisory work

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards allow that internal audit effort may sometimes be
more usefully focused towards providing advice rather than assurance over core controls.
Where appropriate, Internal Audit will act in a consultancy capacity by providing guidance
and advice for strengthening the control environment within the Authority, providing:

[1 The objectives of the Consulting engagement address governance, risk management
and control processes to the extent agreed upon with the Authority;

[1 The request has been approved by the Section 151 Officer;

1 Internal Audit Services is considered to have the right skills, experience, and available
resource;

1 Internal Audit’s involvement will not constitute a conflict of interest in respect of
maintaining an independent stance, and Internal Audit will not assume a management
role in providing this advice.

When performing consulting services, the auditor must maintain objectivity and not take on
management responsibility.

The Internal Audit Manager is responsible for ensuring that all requests are reviewed in
accordance with the above criteria and for making the final decision. The role which Internal

6
Page 54



Audit Services will assume on any particular advisory assignment will be agreed with the
sponsor, will be documented within the assignment plan.

Relationships

The Internal Audit Manager and Internal Audit staff are involved in a wide range of
relationships and the quality of those relationships impact on the quality of the audit function
and the effective delivery of that function.

O

Relationships With Management

The Internal Audit Manager and Internal Audit staff will maintain effective relationships

with managers of the Council. Regular meetings will be held with key stakeholders and
management will be consulted with in the audit planning process. Timing of audit work
will be in conjunction with management.

Relationships With External Auditors

Internal Audit Services and the Council’s external auditors have an established working
relationship where internal and external audit can rely on each other’s work, subject to
the limits determined by their responsibilities, enabling them to evaluate, review and
only re-perform where necessary. Regular meetings will be held and plans and reports
shared.

Relationships With Regulators And Inspectors

The Internal Audit Manager and his staff will take account of the results and reports
from any inspections when planning and undertaking Internal Audit work. Where
appropriate the Internal Audit Manager will establish a dialogue with representatives of
the appropriate inspection agencies.

Relationships With Elected Members

The Internal Audit Manager will establish a working relationship with members, in
particular with members of the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Manager and the
Chair of the Audit Committee will meet regularly with a view to discussing emerging
issues or concerns as well as development opportunities with regard to the ongoing
relationship between the Audit Committee and Internal Audit Services.

Standards of Internal Audit Practice

This charter recognises the mandatory nature of the 1A definition of Internal Auditing and
code of ethics, and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

The Internal Audit team will comply with the standards that came into effect on 1 April 2013
along with any subsequent additions or revisions.

Quality assurance

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the Audit Function is subject to a
guality assurance and improvement programme that must include both internal and external
assessments.

7
Page 55



Internal assessments

All of Internal Audit Services engagements are subjected to a thorough internal peer review
of quality to ensure that its work meets the standards expected from its staff. For example,
the internal file quality reviews undertaken cover the following:

[0  All work undertaken is in accordance with PSIAS.

[0 The work is planned and undertaken in accordance with risks associated with areas
under review.

[0 Sampling is undertaken in accordance with an agreed methodology.
[0 The conclusions are fully supported by the detailed work undertaken.

External assessments
An external assessment must be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified,
independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. The Internal Audit

Manager will discuss options for the assessment with the Section 151 Officer and the Audit
Committee.

R Y
A greener place LAERPHILLY
Man gwyrddach CAERFFILI
>

8
Page 56



Appendix 2

" & q

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIE
Internal Audit Service's

AUDIT CHARTER

September 2014

A greener place CAERPHILLY
Man gwyrddach CAERFFILI

1
Page 57



[Introduction]

The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document, [required by the Public Sector Internal
Auditing Standards], that defines the Internal Audit Services activities, purpose, authority
and responsibility. The Internal Audit Charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the
organisation, including the nature of the Internal Audit Manager’s functional reporting
relationship with the Audit Committee; authorises access to records, personnel and physical
properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines the scope of Internal
Audit activities. Final approval of the Internal Audit Charter resides with the Audit
Committee.

[The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed annually with any resulting updates or
amendments clearly documented and approved by the Council’s Audit Committee.]

[Throughout the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which Internal Audit Services are
mandated to comply with, reference is made to the ‘Board’ and ‘Senior management’ and in
respect of Caerphilly County Borough Council and this Charter specifically these terms are
taken to mean ‘the Council’s Audit Committee’ and the ‘Section 151 Officer’ respectively.]

Mission

[The Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards set out the mission of Internal Audit as being
to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk based and objective
assurance, advice and insight.

Internal audit is also defined within the Standards as an independent, objective assurance
and advisory service designed to add value and improve the Council's operations. It helps
the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance
processes.

The Standards also set out a mandatory code of ethics by which Internal Auditors must
abide in order to promote an ethical culture in the internal auditing profession. ]

The function provides independent and objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and control
in the Authority in an economical, efficient and timely manner.

This includes identification of risks and assessment of their management, and
implementation of changes to strengthen the governance framework. The Internal Audit
Manager’s opinion is a key element of the framework of assurance that the [Section 151
Officer] Director of Corporate Services needs to inform the completion of the Annual
Governance Statement.

Scope of work

The scope of work of Internal Audit Services is to determine whether the Council’s network
of risk management, control, and governance processes, as designed and represented by
management, is adequate and functioning in a manner to ensure:

[1 Risks are appropriately identified and managed;

2
Page 58



1 Interaction with the various governance groups occurs as needed;

[1 Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate, reliable, and
timely;

1 Employees’ actions are in compliance with policies, standards, procedures, and
applicable laws and regulations;

[0 Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently, and adequately protected;

[0 Programs, plans, and objectives are achieved;

J  Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the Council’s control process;

1 Significant legislative or regulatory issues impacting the Council are recognised and
addressed appropriately; and

1  Opportunities for improving management control, profitability and the Council’s image

may be identified during audits. They will be communicated to the appropriate level of
management.

The scope of internal audit work may include audit activity both within the Council and on
functions that the Council has delegated or contracted out, where the Council remains
accountable for the expenditure involved.

Where other internal or external assurance providers may have undertaken relevant
assurance and audit work, Internal Audit Services will seek to rely on the work of these other
assurance providers where professional standards would make it appropriate to do so.

[Fraud and Irregularity]

[The Council’s Financial Regulations requires the relevant Head of Service to report any
suspected or actual irregularity to the Section 151 Officer to ensure that satisfactory
enquiries are undertaken in all such instances and that appropriate steps are taken to
resolve and deal with any resultant findings. Whilst the initial responsibility for such enquiries
rests with the Director concerned, the Section 151 Officer may require that the Internal Audit
Manager manages and reports on any matter for investigation

All audit staff undertake their duties in the knowledge that they may come across or identify
potential fraud or financial irregularity. Within the operational procedures for audit staff a
formal notification / escalation process is set out which dovetails into the procedures
required within the Authority’s Financial Regulations. Internal Auditors may also under the
Direction of the Internal Audit Manager assist with an investigation into a potential irregularity
in order to support a formal investigation process.

Internal Audit staff also co-ordinate and support the work undertaken by the Authority in
respect of the National Fraud Initiative including providing the Audit Committee with update
reports following the conclusion of each exercise.]

Authority of Internal Audit
Internal Audit Services derives its authority from those authorising this Charter to provide a
free and unfettered ability to plan and undertake audit assignments deemed necessary to

fulfil its purpose, and have a right of direct access to the Chair of the Audit Committee in
doing so.

3
Page 59



To enable the service to discharge its duties fully, the Internal Audit Manager and his
Internal Audit staff are authorised to:

[0 Have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, and personnel;

[0 Have full and free access to the Audit Committee;

1 Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine scopes of work, and
apply the techniques required to accomplish audit objectives; and

1 Obtain the necessary assistance of personnel in [[service areas] units of the Council
where they perform audits, as well as other specialised services from within or outside
the Council.

Responsibility
The Internal Audit Manager and staff of the Internal Audit function have a responsibility to:

Plan

1 Develop a flexible annual strategy and audit plan using a risk-based methodology,
including any risks and concerns identified by management, and submit that strategy
and plan to the Audit Committee for review and approval;

L1 Agree significant changes to the plan with the [Section 151 Officer]Director of
Corporate Services and the Audit Committee;

Act

1 Implement the annual strategy by assessing third party assurance sources and
conducting audits in accordance with the approved plan, and relevant professional
standards and policies;

1 Evaluate and assess areas of significant change;

[1 Assist, as needed, in the investigation of significant suspected fraudulent activities
within the organisation;

Report

L1 Agree a reporting protocol with the Audit Committee and associated escalation
procedures. The reporting protocol should also include agreements on, and the
timescales for, following up audit reports and tracking issues raised and their
clearance;

1 Issue periodic reports to the Audit Committee summarising results of Internal Audit
activities;

1 Consider the scope of work of other assurance providers for the purpose of providing
optimal assurance coverage;

Communicate

[J Communicate regularly with Internal Audit stakeholders and customers to ensure that
changes in the business, its activities and the control environment are factored into the
Internal Audit strategy and plan where appropriate;

[1 During audits, raise significant issues for the attention of line management as soon as
identified, and discuss all draft reports with the auditee before finalisation to confirm
facts and incorporate management responses:

4
Page 60



Reporting lines

Day to day management of the Internal Audit team will be undertaken by the Internal Audit
Manager. The Internal Audit Manager reports to the Council’s Audit Committee for
organisational purposes but will report significant audit findings and audit progress directly to
the Director of Corporate Services [Section 151 Officer] as appropriate. The Internal Audit
Manager will keep the Director of Corporate Services [Section 151 Officer] and the Audit
Committee informed of progress and developments on a regular basis. The Internal Audit
Manager has a direct right of access to the Director of Corporate Services [Section 151
Officer] as and when required.

Should the Internal Audit Manager not be satisfied with management’s response to a given
audit report then this will be highlighted to the Audit Committee and significant weaknesses
escalated to the Director of Corporate Services [Section 151 Officer] if they remain
unresolved.

Independence and objectivity

To provide for the independence of Internal Audit, its personnel report to the Internal Audit
Manager, who reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the
Director of Corporate Services [Section 151 Officer] in a manner outlined in the section
below on ‘Accountability’.

[Impairment to organisational independence and individual objectivity is managed in line with
the auditing standards and is not considered an ongoing or common problem. Annual
declarations are made by all audit staff confirming that they understand the independent role
of internal audit and sets out any issues that may need to be considered by the internal audit
management as a potential conflict of interest.

No routine non audit activities are undertaken and all potential additional duties or roles are
considered by the Internal Audit Manager and the Section 151 Officer prior to their
implementation. Additionally, upon allocation of audit tasks consideration is given to the
suitability of audit staff to the task. Those who have previously worked in the specific area to
be audited or have a live declaration of interest relating to the area to be audited will if
appropriate, be removed from undertaking the task.]

Accountability

The Internal Audit Manager, in the discharge of his duties, shall be accountable to the Audit

Committee and the Director of Corporate Services [Section 151 Officer] for:

L1 Providing, at least annually, an objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s framework of governance, risk
management and control;

[1 Reporting significant issues related to the processes for controlling the activities of the
Council and its affiliates, including recommendations and status of implementation of
improvements;

L1 Periodically providing information on the status and results of the annual audit plan and
the sufficiency of the Internal Audit function’s resources;

[ Co-ordination with other significant assurance functions.

Management responsibilities

5
Page 61



Internal Audit Services can only be effective if it receives the full co-operation of
management. By approving this Internal Audit Charter the Director of Corporate Services
[Section 151 Officer] and the Audit Committee are mandating management to co-operate
with Internal Audit in the delivery of the service by:

1 Agreeing Terms of Reference, to include agreements on duration, scope, reporting and
response;

[0 Sponsoring each audit at Head of Service level;

1  Providing Internal Audit Services with full support and co-operation, including complete
access to all records, data, property and personnel relevant to the performance of their
responsibilities at all levels of operations, without unreasonable delay;

1 Responding to the draft internal report, including provision of management responses
to recommendations, within the timescale requested by the audit team;

L1 Implementing agreed management actions in accordance with the agreed timescales;

[l Updating Internal Audit Services with progress made on management actions,
informing Internal Audit Services of proposed changes and developments in process
and systems, newly identified significant risks and cases of a criminal nature.

Instances of late responses to reports and agreed actions not being implemented will be
escalated, when appropriate, to the Director of Corporate Services [Section 151 Officer] and
the Audit Committee.

Whilst the annual internal audit report is a key element of the assurance framework required
to inform the Annual Governance Statement, there are also a number of other sources from
which those charged with governance should gain assurance. Additionally the annual
Internal Audit opinion does not discharge the responsibility of those charged with
governance from forming their own overall opinion on internal controls, governance
arrangements, and risk management activities.

Advisory work

[The] Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (“PSIAS”) allow that Internal Audit effort may
sometimes be more usefully focused towards providing advice rather than assurance over
core controls. Where appropriate, Internal Audit will act in a consultancy capacity by
providing guidance and advice for strengthening the control environment within the
Authority, providing:

1  The objectives of the Consulting engagement address governance, risk management
and control processes to the extent agreed upon with the Authority;

[1 The request has been approved [by the Section 151 Officer] at Director level;

[1 Internal Audit Services is considered to have the right skills, experience, and available
resource;

[1 Internal Audit’s involvement will not constitute a conflict of interest in respect of
maintaining an independent stance, and Internal Audit will not assume a management
role in providing this advice.

6
Page 62



When performing consulting services, the auditor must maintain objectivity and not take on
management responsibility.

The Internal Audit Manager is responsible for ensuring that all requests are reviewed in
accordance with the above criteria and for making the final decision. The role which Internal
Audit Services will assume on any particular advisory assignment will be agreed with the
sponsor, will be documented within the assignment plan.

Relationships

The Internal Audit Manager and Internal Audit staff are involved in a wide range of
relationships and the quality of those relationships impact on the quality of the audit function
and the effective delivery of that function.

[l Relationships With Management
The Internal Audit Manager and Internal Audit staff will maintain effective relationships
with managers of the Council. Regular meetings will be held with key stakeholders and
management will be consulted with in the audit planning process. Timing of audit work
will be in conjunction with management.

[0 Relationships With External Auditors
Internal Audit Services and the Welsh Audit Office [Council’s external auditors] have an
established working relationship where internal and external audit can rely on each
other’s work, subject to the limits determined by their responsibilities, enabling them to
evaluate, review and only re-perform where necessary. Regular meetings will be held
and plans and reports shared.

1 Relationships With Regulators And Inspectors

The Internal Audit Manager and his staff will take account of the results and reports
from any inspections when planning and undertaking Internal Audit work. Where
appropriate the Internal Audit Manager will establish a dialogue with representatives of
the appropriate inspection agencies.

[1 Relationships With Elected Members

The Internal Audit Manager will establish a working relationship with members, in
particular with members of the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Manager and the
Chair of the Audit Committee will meet regularly with a view to discussing emerging
issues or concerns as well as development opportunities with regard to the ongoing
relationship between the Audit Committee and Internal Audit Services.

Standards of Internal Audit Practice
This charter recognises the mandatory nature of the IlA definition of Internal Auditing and
code of ethics, and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

The Internal Audit team will comply with the standards that came into effect on 1 April 2013
[along with any subsequent additions or revisions.]

7
Page 63



Quality assurance

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the Audit Function is subject to a
guality assurance and improvement programme that must include both internal and external
assessments.

Internal assessments

All of Internal Audit Services engagements are subjected to a thorough internal peer review
of quality to ensure that its work meets the standards expected from its staff. For example,
the internal file quality reviews undertaken cover the following:

0  All work undertaken is in accordance with PSIAS.

[0 The work is planned and undertaken in accordance with risks associated with areas
under review.

1 Sampling is undertaken in accordance with an agreed methodology.
1 The conclusions are fully supported by the detailed work undertaken.

External assessments

An external assessment must be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified,
independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. The Internal Audit
Manager will discuss options for the assessment with the Director of Corporate Services
[Section 151 Officer] and the Audit Committee.

R Y
A greener place LAERPHILLY
Man gwyrddach CAERFFILI
> 4

8
Page 64



Agenda Iltem 8

A AEREHILLY

CYNGOIRR BWIRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAE [ o 4 of of 4 5 4

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES: ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

REPORT BY: INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES MANAGER

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek Audit Committee approval for the Internal Audit Services Annual Audit Plan for the
financial year 2019/20.

SUMMARY

The report provides details of the planned work programme for Internal Audit Services for
2019/20.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

The work of Internal Audit Services provides assurance on the robustness of internal controls
and the corporate governance arrangements operating within the Authority and identifies
areas for improvement.

Strong corporate governance arrangements are an essential element of ensuring that the
Council’s key priorities are effectively delivered and this in turn contributes to the following
Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: -

A prosperous Wales.

A resilient Wales.

A healthier Wales.

A more equal Wales.

A Wales of cohesive communities.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language.
A globally responsible Wales.

THE REPORT

The Internal Audit Services Annual Audit Plan for the 2019/20 financial year is attached as
Appendix 1. The approach is broadly similar to previous years but reflects the ongoing
development of the Plan in terms of coverage and risk identification.

It should be noted that the resources on which the Plan is based have increased slightly on
previous years due mainly to the appointment of an audit trainee.

Members will note that following a recommendation by the Council’s External Auditor, the

Plan now shows planned activity on a quarterly basis. This will allow for better control and
monitoring of the Plan during the year.

Page 65



4.4 The Audit Committee will receive a mid-year report highlighting progress against the Plan
along with details of any specific issues arising.

5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

5.1 Strong corporate governance arrangements are a key element in ensuring that the Well-being
Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met.

6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no potential equalities implications of this report and its recommendations on
groups or individuals who fall under the categories identified in Section 6 of the Council's
Strategic Equality Plan, therefore a full Equalities Impact Assessment has not been carried
out.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1  There are no personnel implications other than the approved manpower resource

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 Any comments received have been reflected in the report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note and approve the Internal Audit Services Annual Audit
Plan for the 2019/20 financial year.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 To enable Internal Audit Services to carry out its function.

Author: R. Harris, Internal Audit Manager

Consultees: N. Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance & Section 151 Officer

R. Edmunds, Director of Education & Corporate Services
S. Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services
Appendices:
Appendix 1 Annual Audit Plan 2019/20

Page 66



1.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

APPENDIX 1

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Purpose of the Report

The purpose of the report is to outline the intended allocation of audit time for
the financial year ending 315t March 2020.

Introduction

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the Council’s own
Financial Regulations require that an annual Audit Plan should be prepared to
ensure that there is an effective and efficient use of audit resources. The
2019/20 Annual Plan is broadly based on an on-going assessment of risk
which makes use of data gathered from various sources including senior
management, the authority’s risk register, Heads of Service and Members.
The purpose of an annual plan is to outline the resources available and set
out the intended allocation of audit time for the forthcoming year. Actual work
carried out will be regularly assessed against the Plan and the Audit
Committee will receive a mid-year progress report.

Following on from recommendations made by the Authority’s External
Auditors the plan has been split on a quarterly basis to show available man
days per quarter. This has been based on the FTE head count of staff and
current working patterns as a number of staff have flexible working
arrangements. Paragraph 3.1 below covers staffing resources available in
more detail.

An Audit Management, Planning and Reporting system has been procured
and will be implemented and staff trained during the early part of 2019/20 and
this system has the ability to evaluate staff resources by holding data on
working patterns and other commitments that affect availability. It is
anticipated that the quality of information reported going forward will be more
accurate as this information is built up.

In order to evaluate the available man days per quarter the overheads have
been apportioned taking account of the patterns of bank holidays, the
Christmas shut down, the dates of the Easter bank holidays, etc. so minor
variances will occur year by year.

A larger proportion of annual leave days have been allocated to the traditional
summer holiday period 1.7.19 to 31.8.19, but other overheads have been
estimated to arise evenly over the period. These include sickness absence
which has been estimated at the rate of 1.5% of available days. It also
includes other managerial provisions not directly allocated to audit
assignments. Obviously there may be variances in these overheads due to
unforeseen events such as long-term sickness or other staffing changes

Page 67



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

APPENDIX 1

which will affect the number of available man days that can be allocated to
audit assignments.

Additional overheads have been generated by the granting of a programme of
professional study to one of the substantive staff and the recruitment of a
trainee auditor which also has been allocated a programme of professional
study. This has been done with a view to strengthen the capacity and
resilience within the section.

On the basis of the comments above the overheads and available working
days per quarter have been estimated as follows:-

1.4.19- 1.7.19- 1.10.19- 1.1.20- Total for
30.6.19 30.9.19 31.12.19 31.3.20 year
Overheads | 332 233 210 164 939
Available | 271 369 393 438 1471
man days
Total 603 602 603 602 2410

It is also inevitable that there will be some audit assignments that will remain
unfinished at the 31.3.19, and an estimated allowance of 145 days has been
allocated to the completion of these prior to the commencement of new
assignments. It is anticipated that these will be prioritised before commencing
new projects so most this time is allocated into quarter 1. Again once the
management system is fully embedded more accurate evaluation of this
information will be possible in future years with improved accuracy of
reporting.

The cycle of activities within the Council naturally influences the timing of audit
assignments. For example schools summer holidays preclude any school
audits from taking place during this period, also the year-end processes and
subsequent preparation of the financial accounts and external audit means
that finance staff and systems are prioritised towards these activities. As a
result audit assignments undertaken take account of these together with other
workload pressures within Directorates and Service areas.

The plan may also be flexed and audits reprioritised as Service managers /
Directors become aware of new operational risks or other issues which may
arise during the year. Timing of audits tends to be negotiated with the Service
area or establishment management to bring forward any new or increased risk
areas or to take account of workloads or other priorities within service areas.

Priority will always be given to high risk areas whether known or emerging, as
in prior years.

There are also a number of time limited assignments that are required to be
undertaken such as grants which have deadlines set by the funding bodies.
There is no flexibility over the timing of these audits and this work takes place
between the financial year-end and the certification deadline which is
September in most cases.

Page 68




2.13

2.14

2.15

3.1

41.1

APPENDIX 1

Taking into account those factors noted above the remainder of the audit plan
can be estimated over the year and the individual Directorates. Audit activity
can also be allocated against the types of audit assignments such as
establishment audits, systems, IT, contracts, grants and corporate work. The
audit plan time can also be allocated by these activities over the year. Both
analyses are shown below:-

Directorate Days QTR1 |QTR2 |QTR3 | QTR 4
Education 366 86 45 115 120
Social Services & Housing 455 129 158 88 81
Corporate Services 475 31 120 134 189
Communities 85 2 24 33 26
Corporate & management 90 23 22 23 22
related

Total 1471 271 369 393 438
Audit type Days QTR1 |QTR2 |QTR3 | QTR 4
Establishment 461 86 111 125 139
System 660 111 150 175 224
Grant certification 50 0 30 20 0
Contract 20 5 5 5 5

IT 5 0 5 0 0
Corporate & management 90 23 22 22 23
related

WHQS Secondment 185 46 46 46 47
Total 1471 271 369 393 438

It is considered that changes or adjustments to either service delivery or
coverage will have to be introduced on a rolling basis with a view to
maintaining the level of service and keeping operational disruption to a
minimum. The effect of this being that the 2019/20 plan will continue to
evolve over time as the effect of increased engagement and profile filters
through.

Staffing

The establishment level of the Internal Audit Section for is 9.2 FTE’s which is
an increase from 2018/19 as a result of the increase in the hours of the Group
Auditor (Deputy Manager) to full-time and the recruitment of a trainee post
although this is a fixed-term contract and is linked to successful completion of
a programme of study. However, it is considered that staffing continues to be
in line with the Welsh averages.

Plan
An outline of the 2019/20 Annual Audit Plan showing the audit days allocated

to the main service areas is shown above. A summary of key audit areas that
have been identified is shown in Annex A.

Page 69




4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.2

42.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

APPENDIX 1

In preparing the detailed Plan, due consideration has been given to previous
years’ coverage, the authority’s risk register, input from service areas and
directorates, any emerging issues and any “local factors” as well as
acknowledging themed areas that are linked to priorities highlighted in the
Auditing Standards.

The Audit Section maintains a “list” of all auditable areas called the Audit
Universe and this is used as a source upon which the plan is built. This is a
dynamic document and is updated to reflect new service areas/
establishments or changes in existing service areas or establishments.

This audit universe was risk assessed in 2017 as part of the PSIAS self-
evaluation process. The risk assessment of auditable areas is based on the
evaluation of the inherent risk of the service or operation including materiality,
prior audit intelligence, stability of the service or system etc., the impact of
something going wrong, which may be financial or non-financial and the
likelihood or probability of something going wrong. Systems of effective
internal controls mitigate such risks. The new audit management system has
a risk assessment facility so again this system once embedded will support
this process in a transparent reportable fashion.

The audit plan is based around the audit universe with high risk areas
receiving priority or more regular audits; however the aim is to cover all areas
within a 3 to 5 year cycle, although when staffing resources are affected or
where new risk areas are identified changes will be made to the plan.

Systems

System audits continue to receive a high level of resource allocation with
certain high risk corporate systems being reviewed on an annual basis, either
by undertaking a full audit or carrying out an “overview” of system controls.
This allocation also allows the expansion of the service into cross-cutting
reviews and specific risk or business related projects as identified on an
ongoing basis. For example it may be possible to cover these high risk areas
by internal control reviews, or specific testing of component processes. In
some cases other audit tools such as data matching or analytical reviews may
also be performed in these areas.

The aim being to cover the high risk areas such as HR, revenues and
exchequer and benefits in some way each year by breaking down the
services into more manageable component parts e.g. HR by covering new
starters, Council tax by covering discounts and exemption processes and
supporting documents.

As the service continues to align its coverage to areas identified within the risk
registers as part of the corporate risk management process, audit value can
be increased by the promotion of the skills and knowledge gained during the
undertaking of individual system reviews. The accumulated knowledge of the
organisation, its systems and procedures goes a long way to informing the
year-end process to arrive at an overall assurance opinion. Likewise the

Page 70



4.2.4

4.2.5

4.3

43.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.4

44.1

APPENDIX 1

numerous grants that now require internal audit review are also seen as an
information source to further audit knowledge and understanding which are
then used to feed the assurance process.

Throughout the year Internal Audit staff will continue to have a role to play in
both advising on the introduction of new systems and in undertaking regularity
checks to ensure that the risks inherent in systems are minimised.

Internal Audit will liaise with the Council’s external auditors in order to ensure
that fundamental systems receive adequate coverage and to prevent
duplication of effort.

Action plan reviews and follow up audits

The ISA 260 report by the external auditors in July 2018 recommended
improvements to the processes of following up recommendations arising from
audits. The audit management system has the facility to allow named officers
identified in any audit report produced by the system to be targeted and
upcoming implementation dates for agreed recommendations to be identified.
The system also has a reporting portal so that auditees become responsible
for updating progress on achieved recommendations. The system will also
identify overdue actions. It is intended that once this reporting function is
operational it will prove valuable in achieving this and will also allow reports to
be provided to Audit Committee and will support and inform the AGS process
and provide assurance on an ongoing basis that agreed recommendations
are being implemented by managers.

This will be linked to the additional reporting of audit assignments to
Committee of audits falling into the reportable categories reported in October
2018 and will identify audits where follow-up reviews may be necessary or
where managers are not making adequate improvements in control
processes. Also the new format of reports will identify a direction of travel so
that any areas where there is adequate improvement on re-audit will be
identified and reported.

This is an evolving process and at this stage and it is envisaged that enabling
managers to access the portal facility will make the accountability for
achieving recommendations clear. It is considered that this will make the
review and follow-up process more seamlessly integrated with the audit plan,
so at this stage no additional time has been allocated to this process.
However, this may need to be reviewed to ensure it is appropriate as
additional time spent on following-up recommendations that have failed to be
implemented will eventually impact on the plan.

Establishments

The majority of council establishments continue to receive a visit over a three
to five year period and a more structured approach to establishment audits
has been established to ensure that audit resources are deployed where most
benefit can be achieved. Most establishments are schools with a much

Page 71



4.4.2

4.4.3

4.4.4

4.5

45.1

45.2

4.5.3

45.4

APPENDIX 1

smaller number of leisure, tourism and social services establishments in
existence.

The focus of these audits is under ongoing review with alternative approaches
being considered that incorporate a greater link with the governance and risk
agendas. A number of audits undertaken in 2018/19 raised recurring themes
so some time is also being spent on thematic reviews which will be intended
to cover a larger number of establishments but focussing on one key area.
Key areas for review will be aspects of operational processes or controls with
evidence of poor compliance or high risk areas.

A rolling visiting schedule covering all establishments has been set up and a
schedule of visits relating to 2019/20 is shown within Annex A. However,
audits may be re-prioritised particularly where the departmental staff become
aware of concerns at a particular establishment.

The new reporting formats and greater transparency in reporting to Audit
Committee is hoped to improve the links between the establishments and the
“corporate centre” and strengthen accountability. It is hoped that the more
structured approach to establishment audits reporting will continue to: -

highlight the need for probity in financial administration;

deal with problems where advice and assistance is required;
identify any significant areas where procedures are weak;
improve accountability;

promote best practice across a wide range of establishments.

Contract Audit

The move to a more proactive system based approach to contract auditing will
continue and will be further developed by moving the focus to auditing
schemes as they progress.

Information suggests that the need for traditional final accounts and contract
audits is reducing. This is not unexpected given the reduction in capital
budgets also linked with the fact that the WHQS scheme is due to end in
2020. As a result a reduced allocation of time has been given to contract
audits.

As a result of a WAO review and work undertaken by Internal Audit in 2018 a
resource has been seconded to the WHQS service area to strengthen and
support the data validation process and performing reviews of the related
supporting documentation. 185 days have been allocated to this process
which is currently forecast to conclude in line with the WHQS programme at
which time the resource will return to Internal Audit.

Internal Audit staff will continue to work closely with staff from Procurement

Services to promote a high level of contract compliance throughout the
Council.

Page 72



4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.6.3

APPENDIX 1

Computer Audit

Reliance on IT systems continues to be a critical factor to the ongoing
success of the Authority. During the year further consideration will be given to
the risks and assurances currently in place with a view to formalising an
approach to addressing any areas of concern identified. As most systems and
processes are IT based the ongoing systems reviews are being updated to
include an element of what was previously considered to be IT Audit. The
less technical IT systems reviews have been merged into the systems work
stream and existing work programmes will be adjusted to cover the new
approach.

During the year as specific issues arise or additional risks are identified
consideration will be given to how best to build these into the ongoing plan as
would be the case for all emerging issues.

Audit work will still be undertaken to review and report on the central controls
for those areas that are within scope of the BSI accreditation.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Audit Universe

ANNEX A

Audit Area impact |probabili |other factors/ prior overall [Comments Coverage Audits to be Planned audit
ty risk audits/ other risk considered areas of
intelligence rating coverage
SYSTEMS GENERAL
Cashiers (inc banking H H Cash, income H Income monitoring and *
procedures & policies) Central reconciliation, new reconciliation. C&D
administration and systems system, staffing,
Customer first cash offices(all M H Cash handling. Large M Regularity, balancing, compliance *
offices) (Procurement) number of transactions with procedures
but average value low not
material individually
Payment card Security M M Processes well H Regularity, compliance with PCI *
compliance embedded and mature. policy
Risk re non compliance
fines or removal of card
facilities
Council tax H L Historically good, stable [M inoi follow up High level review, billing, *
system staffing etc. review collection, discounts and
exemptions, arrears/ recovery
Benefits H M Historically good, stable [H Claims, verification and evidence, *
system staffing etc. NFI NFI matches
data match info can be
used.
NFI matches investigation etc. |H M compliance / reputation, |H Other data matches as reported *
covers a number of high
risk financial and non
financial data streams
Creditors Departmental audit H M Disaggregated user H Linked to NFI Compliance with procedures, *
compliance and control, ordering/ segregation of duties,
deliberate frauds. APF regularity
tool if used correctly will
support this.
Treasury management H H reserves, reputation H inoi follow up Compliance with Palicy, regularity, *
review processes
VAT H M Risk due to M Compliance and regularity *
disaggregated users
making errors which
affect VAT. Repeated
errors may raise risk
profile with HMRC.
Home loans scheme M M New Scheme M Compliance with T&C, policy and *
procedures, regularity, review
IR 35/Auto enrolment and self  |M M Small numbers but M ongoin advice Compliance with legislation, *
employed compliance impact of incorrect HMRC policy and procedures,
evaluation could result in regularity, review
raised risk evaluation
from HMRC. Also fines
penalties from HMRC
and criminal prosecution.
Payroll - central H M High value and number of [H Starters, leavers, Overtime, *
transactions. System is standby, callout, maternity,
stable and staffing sickness, paternity, casual wages,
experienced. severance and ex gratia.
Payroll - departmental H H Transactions lower value |H inoi follow up Departmental records, regularity *
but rely on management review. NFI and compliance
oversight and compliance matches 19/20
with policy/ best follow up
practices.
Salary sacrifice cars Gass M M Prior issues new HMRC (M Compliance with policy and *
Scheme administration rules may affect take u h processes
going forward P a'ge 75
regradings (perm/ temp) L L Process compliance L Process compliance




Audit Universe

ANNEX A

Audit Area impact |probabili |other factors/ prior overall [Comments Coverage Audits to be Planned audit
ty risk audits/ other risk considered areas of
intelligence rating coverage
Flexi M M Stable system, long M System, compliance, exception *
standing policy. reporting
Reporting / monitoring
centrally ?
Managing attendance process |M M Cost of sickness, impact (M Policy compliance *
compliance /sickness of incorrect administration
management and reporting and monitoring
Recruitment and selection M L Immigration act, non M Policy compliance *
adherence to policy, safer
recruitment/ DBS
Purchasing card user H M Not material. Public H Regularity Policy compliance, *
administration interest. Management management overview and
supervision / control of scrutiny
usage
retrospective orders M M Non compliance, M Policy compliance *
increased risks of errors
IT Security - Information and H M Training, access controls |M IT business GDPR/ Information Governance, *
Data critical. ICO fines |PCI, leavers, remote access
No 1 2019 H H H Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
No 2 2019 H H H Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
No 3 2019 H H H Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
No 4 2019 H H H Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
No 5 2019 H H H Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
Private funds M M Individual school unlikely (M Thematic review [Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material of records
primary meal L L Individual school unlikely [L support Regularity compliance, accuracy *
arrears/ management by to be material of records
schools
Schools governance M L M Regularity compliance, accuracy *
arrangements of records
general grants L L L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
SEG EAS/ Torfaen M M Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material , However of records
total may be material
WEG EAS/ Torfaen M M Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material , However of records
total may be material
Free childcare offer L M Not CCBC budget L follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
Section 17 payments L L L inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
(prevention and support) review. of records
Adults external prov res & day |M L M Regularity compliance, accuracy *
care (elderly, LD, Mental health of records
and substance abuse)
Out Of Office Service L L L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
Page 76
Financial assessments M L Income contribution to Yd Regularity compliance, accuracy *

charges

of records




Audit Universe ANNEX A
Audit Area impact |probabili |other factors/ prior overall [Comments Coverage Audits to be Planned audit
ty risk audits/ other risk considered areas of
intelligence rating coverage
Receiverships/Trusts/Protection |M M Court of protection M Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of Prop Client finance team regulations of records
Supporting people grant H H Value M Regularity compliance, accuracy *
(Finance spend and outcomes) of records
Client side contract audit--final  |L L L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
accounts of records
Integrated transport unit M M M inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
Transport - concessionary fares|L M M Previoulsy Regularity compliance, accuracy *
reported frauds in |of records
other LAs
Building Consultancy -final M L Individually not material. |L Policy compliance *
accounts Numbers reducing
carbon levy scheme return L L Large number of L Regularity/ compliance *
individual premises but
managed centrally
Business support advice and L L L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
grants of records
Waste collection H M H Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
Fleet Management M M M Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
Leisure Services - Central M L L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
Office of records
Home loans scheme L M L New scheme Regularity compliance, accuracy *
of records
Bedwas Junior School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Blackwood Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Cefn Fforest Primary School M L Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Crumlin High Level Primary M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
School to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
CwmAber Junior School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Cwm Ifor Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Deri Primary school M L Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
DhAan =7
—agc 1




Audit Universe

ANNEX A

Audit Area impact |probabili |other factors/ prior overall [Comments Coverage Audits to be Planned audit
ty risk audits/ other risk considered areas of
intelligence rating coverage
Fochriw Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Glyn gaer Primary school M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Llanfabon Infants achool M L Individual school L inoi follow up Regualrity compliance, accuracy *
unlikeley to be material review of records
financially but could have
PR / reputational risk
issues
Machen Primary School M L Individual school L Regualrity compliance, accuracy *
unlikeley to be material of records
financially but could have
PR / reputational risk
issues
Park Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially review of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Penllwyn Primary school M L Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Plas y felin Primary School M L Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Pontllanfraith Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Rhydri Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Risca Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially review of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Tir y Berth Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Trinant Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Ty Isaf Infants School M L Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *

to be material financially
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues

of records

Page 78




Audit Universe

ANNEX A

Audit Area impact |probabili |other factors/ prior overall [Comments Coverage Audits to be Planned audit
ty risk audits/ other risk considered areas of
intelligence rating coverage
Ty Sign Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
White Rose Primary school M L Individual school unlikely [L inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially review of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Ynysddu Primary School M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Ystrad Mynach Primary school |M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Ysgol Gynrad Trelyn M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Ysgol Ifor Bach M L Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Ysgol Gymraeg Gilfach Fargoed [M L Individual school unlikely |L inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially review of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Ysgol Gynrad Bro Allta M L Individual school unlikely [L inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially review of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Ysgol Penalltau M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
Ysgol Gynrad Cwm Derwen M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR /
reputational risk issues
St Helens Roman Catholic M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
Primary School to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Idris Davies 3-18 school M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Blackwood Comp M L Individual school unlikely |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *

to be material financially
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues

of records

Page 79




Audit Universe

ANNEX A

Audit Area impact |probabili |other factors/ prior overall [Comments Coverage Audits to be Planned audit
ty risk audits/ other risk considered areas of
intelligence rating coverage
Lewis School Pengam M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Newbridge Comp M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Islwyn High School M L Individual school unlikely [L inoi follow up Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially review of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Trinity Fields school and M L Individual school unlikely [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
resource centre to be material financially of records
but could have PR/
reputational risk issues
Bargoed Library L L Individual establishment Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
Castle view HFE L L Individual establishment [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
Ty Iscoed HFE L L Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
Brondeg Day Centre L L Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
Ysytrad Mynach Day Centre L L Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
Springfield Resource Centre L L Individual establishment [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
Ebenezer Resource Base L L Individual establishment [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
Blackberry catering Supported  |L L Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
employment unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
Pontllanfraith LC L L Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational
St Cenydd LC L L Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *

unlikely to be material
other than reputational

P

of records




Audit Universe

ANNEX A

Audit Area impact |probabili |other factors/ prior overall [Comments Coverage Audits to be Planned audit
ty risk audits/ other risk considered areas of

intelligence rating coverage

Cefn Fforest LC L L Individual establishment [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational

New Tredegar LC L L Individual establishment [L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational

Llancaiach Fawr L M Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *
unlikely to be material of records
other than reputational

The Winding House L M Individual establishment |L Regularity compliance, accuracy *

unlikely to be material
other than reputational

of records

Page 81




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda Item 9

B
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS - “IN NEED OF IMPROVEMENT”

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE

SERVICES

11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT -

Following the October 2018 Audit Committee meeting and the ISA 260 report from External
Auditors Grant Thornton in July 2018, it was agreed that additional information would be
provided to Audit Committee in respect of the audit assignments undertaken. This is intended
to better inform the Committee of the work being undertaken, risks identified, agreed actions
and any associated impact on the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement Process.

This report aims to inform the Audit Committee in line with the agreed processes and to allow
Members to seek clarification or explanation where there are areas of concern and to identify
where further action is deemed necessary. Also this allows Members to assess whether the
recommendations made by Internal Audit and agreed management responses are reasonable
and support an improvement in internal control processes.

This will ensure that the Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities in respect of reviewing
and forming an opinion on the overall control environment in place across the Council, which
underpins the Annual Governance Statement process at the end of the financial year

SUMMARY

The October 2018 Audit Committee meeting received a report suggesting changes in the
methodology of reporting opinions on audit assignments undertaken, and it was agreed that
those classified as “In need of improvement” would be reported to Audit Committee and those
classified as “effective with opportunity to improve” would be reported to Committee if
progress was not made in implementing recommended improvements.

The new system has been in place since October 2018 and has been applied to audits
completed and where reports have been agreed and issued to management between January
2019 and March 2019. In the period 6 reports were issued which were noted as being “in
need of improvement” in line with the agreed criteria and one was recorded as being
inadequate.

Of the above 7 reports 6 relate to schools and as this Audit Committee meeting is taking place
in the school holiday these reports will be deferred to the June meeting. As a result only one
of the reports requires presentation to this Committee meeting.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

The work of Internal Audit Services provides assurance on the robustness of internal

Page 83



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

controls and the corporate governance arrangements operating within the Authority and
identifies areas for improvement. Strong corporate governance arrangements are an essential
element of ensuring that the Council’s key priorities are effectively delivered and this in turn
contributes to the following Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act
(Wales) 2015: -

* A prosperous Wales.

* Avresilient Wales.

* A healthier Wales.

*+ A more equal Wales.

* A Wales of cohesive communities.

* A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language.
* A gglobally responsible Wales.

THE REPORT

The revised 4 tier methodology of assessing audit assignments has been in place since
October 2018, and this now requires finalised and issued audit assignment reports falling into
the criteria of “In Need of Improvement” or Inadequate” to be reported to Audit Committee
with Heads of Service/ Service Managers or Head Teachers/Chairs of Governors together
with relevant Internal Audit staff attending to offer further clarification on the issues raised as
required.

Furthermore, it was also agreed in the October 2018 Audit Committee meeting that any audit
assignment reports where the overall opinion was “effective with opportunity to improve”
would be monitored and the implementation of agreed recommendations reviewed. Any
reports falling into this category where improvements have not been made within agreed
timeframes will also be subsequently reported to the Audit Committee.

Members will appreciate that the audit process involves planning the assignment, fieldwork
and testing, reporting on risks and weaknesses to Management, issuing recommended
improvements and agreeing these within a formal report to management and evaluating an
overall opinion in line with the revised 4 tier system and this takes some time.

In addition where report opinions fall into the “effective with opportunity to improve” criteria,
adequate time will be needed to allow agreed recommendations to be implemented and
evaluated. In addition where managers have given a future date to implement
recommendations follow up evaluation can only take place once those dates have elapsed.

During the quarter no follow ups of any audits that fell into the “effective with opportunity to
improve” have been carried out as insufficient time has elapsed.

For the purposes of this Committee 7 audits have been completed in the period since January
2019 and issued to managers which fall within the criteria of requiring to be reported to Audit
Committee. However 6 of these related to schools and require to be deferred to the next
meeting of the Audit Committee due to the school holiday period. This leaves one audit report
to be reported to this Committee and the detail is as follows:-

e Treasury Management. APPENDIX 1. The conclusion of this report was that control
processes were in need of improvement and compliance with controls was effective
with opportunity to improve. Management accepted the recommendations and are
working towards implementing the recommendations made.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

This report contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above. It is
consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development

Page 84



principle in the Act in that consideration is being given to improving the clarity and
transparency of the future reporting to Audit Committee and this will lead to long-term
improvements in these processes.

6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
6.1 There are no equalities implications arising from this report.
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are no direct personnel implications arising from this report.
9. CONSULTATIONS
9.1  All responses from consultees have been incorporated into this report.
10. RECOMMENDATIONS
10.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note the content of the attached Internal Audit report and
consider management comments in respect of issues noted and assess whether the
recommendations made by Internal Audit will be effective in improving the systems of internal
control.
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
11.1 To ensure that the Audit Committee adheres to its terms of reference in relation to the Annual
Governance Statement process in the Financial Accounts and associated reporting.
12. STATUTORY POWER
12.1 Local Government Act 2000
Author: Deborah Gronow, Principal Auditor
Tel: 01443 863425 E—mail: gronode@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services
Nicole Scammel, Head of Corporate Finance and S151 Officer
Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services
Appendices:

Appendix 1  Audit Report Treasury Management

Page 85


mailto:gronode@caerphilly.gov.uk

B
LAERDHILLY
CAERFFILY
Directorate of Education & Corporate Services
Cyfadran Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol ac Addysg
Internal Audit Services

Gwasanaethau Archwiliad Mewnol

APPENDIX 1

‘Final’ Internal Audit Report

Treasury Management 2018/19

§Date issued: 15/01/2019
col-cad Auditor(s): LB — Senior Audit Assistant
ReviewManager: DG - Acting Audit Manager
Report Distribution: - AS - Finance Manager (Corporate Finance)
NA — Group Accountant (Corporate Finance)

Penallta House
Tredomen Park
Ystrad Mynach
Hengoed
CF82 7PG



/g8 abed

Page No.s

1 Executive Summary 3

2 Control Risk Areas 4

3 Conclusion 4-5

4 Direction of Travel 5

5 Internal Audit Assurance Statement 5

6 ICQ results 6-8

7 GDPR / Data Protection Questionnaire 9-11

results
8 Detailed Findings / Points Noted 12-13

Acknowledgements
Thanks are extended to all staff concerned for their co-operation and assistance during the course of the audit.

This audit and associated report was conducted in conformance with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.



1. Executive Summary

An audit review of Treasury Management within Corporate Finance/ Education & Corporate Services was undertaken during November 2018.

The audit encompassed:
e The identification and review of the documentation and procedures in place in relation to all aspects of the Treasury Management process.
e The identification of controls via enquiry or completion of an ICQ.
o Sample testing of files and/or records relevant to any new or revised processes that were agreed from the previous audit report.
¢ An examination on a sample basis of relevant records with a view to assessing compliance with the prescribed procedures.
The objectives of the review are to provide assurance that:
e The systems and processes in place are achieving the Authority’s objectives.
The reliability and integrity of financial information is in accordance with both the Authority’s Financial Regulations and any other appropriate
policies.
e All operations, procedures and controls in place are effective.
o The Authority’s assets are safeguarded.
¢ Internal procedures, policies and any statutory requirements are complied with.
—g2. Control Risk Areas

8 Specific System / Service area risks and controls in place under review are shown in the table below.
@

¢}
(00] . Internal Control Questionnaire (ICQ) Control / Risk Outcomes (Compliance
Control risk area .S .
findings Testing)
Risks identified in previous audits All controls in place Control objective substantially met
have not been addressed or
measures implemented have not
achieved control objectives.
Specific high level ICQ risk identified | Most controls in place No additional testing was required following
identification of results of high level ICQ
GDPR is non-compliant Most controls in place No additional testing was required for this
control risk.

No of Audit points noted total ...6...... High risk ...1... Medium risk ...4...... Merits Attention ...1...




NB: Any significant issues identified during the course of the audit which were not included in the original scope have been included in the report for
completeness.

3 Conclusion

Overall, the conclusion from the work undertaken is that the control procedures in place are:-

In need of improvement (to be reported to Audit Committee) — this is based on the outcome of one key issue that is considered to be a high risk area
as no mitigating controls have been put in place to ensure the issue has been risk assessed/reviewed and a balanced approach has been applied in order
to achieve the maximum level of protection of the Council’s fund at an acceptable cost.

Compliance with the controls are considered to be effective with opportunity to improve (to be reported to Audit Committee if no improvement
seen on the follow up of recommendations made) based on the results of the audit work undertaken it is considered that compliance with the control
framework in place is satisfactory with a number of expected controls in place, however a number of control weaknesses have been identified resulting in
some system risk.

T
&b

% 4. Direction of travel

COThe direction of travel in relation to improvement in relation to risks and controls under review during the audit when compared to the previous audit in 2015
where the opinion was (i) Good Control procedures and (i) Good compliance with controls is considered to be in the following category:-

This is due to one key issue concerning with the Council’s fidelity insurance cover that is high
risk (although measures are in now being put in place to rectify this). Other issues in the
remainder of the report have a lower risk rate, i.e. medium risks and merits attention.

Deteriofating

5. Audit Assurance Statement

Overall assurance is taken from an evaluation of the findings and audit opinion, taking into account the individual risk assessment of the system or process
and its materiality or impact.

The level of assurance for the audit review of Treasury Management within Corporate Finance/Directorate of Education and Corporate Services
is felt to be:-



Partial (For explanation - please refer to Systems Assurance Grid & Assurance explanations grid in Terms of Reference document issued at
start of the audit)

6. Internal Control Questionnaire Evaluation

6.1 Risks identified in previous audits have not been addressed or measures implemented have not achieved control objectives.

There were no areas of concern identified, agreed recommendations were carried out to address the issue identified in the previous audit report.

06 abed



6.2 High level ICQ was performed with the Group Accountant for identification of any high level risks
6.2.1 Point Noted Implication Recommendations Rating
Fidelity Insurance Cover
The maximum, average and current value of any i)-ii) Not all of the Council’s high risk i)-ii) As agreed during the audit, HR

single investments that can be performed by Treasury
Management is not currently taken into consideration
as part of the annual review of the Council’s fidelity
insurance cover. This is an insurance cover taken out
by CCBC against loss caused by the disloyalty,
dishonesty or non performance/ mismanagement of
employees. (It does not cover counterparty risk, i.e.
recovering monies invested in a counterparty that has
defaulted/ gone bankrupt). Audit has been advised
from the Senior Insurance & Risk Officer that the
value of cover is determined by the Authority’s
brokers/insurers based on the information provided by

e Insurance and Risk Management Section. The
ﬁCBC insurance cover for financial year 2018/19 is
(B3m for any one loss but information received from

e Group Accountant identified the following:-

The highest individual counterparty limit at present
is £6m and the maximum investment limit allowable
under the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19
for an individual counterparty is set at £10m.

e The maximum pooled fund limit of £20m set out in
the Treasury Management Annual Strategy for
2018/19 (for counterparty limit with an AAA credit
rating).

This information has already been passed to the
Senior Insurance & Risk Officer who will liaise with the
Group Accountant for further information in time for
the review of Council’s insurance cover for the
forthcoming financial year.

activities have been taken into
account as part of the annual review
of the Authority’s insurance policy.
The activities of Treasury
Management are high risks due to the
significant value/ materiality of
investments/ transactions employees
are entrusted with. If this information is
not considered as part of the fidelity
insurance review, the Council might
not be aware that the sum covered is
not enough to protect and compensate
the full extent of losses that could
occur as a result of employee actions
in the undertaking of treasury
management activities. As
highlighted, the highest single
investment at present is £3m above
the level of fidelity cover and single
investments higher then this can still
be made for this financial year. Unless
the Council has sufficient contingency
fund to absorb any potential losses
that is over the £3m limit, the delivery
of Council’s services and operations
could be adversely affected.

consideration of the Council’s
investment activities within Treasury
Management should be taken into
account as part of the annual renewal
process of the insured sum to cover
concerning with employee fidelity. This
will enable the Council to be better
informed of the level of high risks that
could arise from employees and how
they should be considered in terms of
the Council’s appetite to accept this
risk, i.e. in terms of affordability and
whether or not to increase cover at the
expense of an increase in insurance
premiums. A recurring timescale
should be diarised each year to ensure
the annual Treasury Management
Strategy covering maximum limits of
investments (following approval from
the Policy & Resources Scrutiny
Committee) is considered as part of
review of the insurance policy. It is
noted that both reviews, i.e. insurance
policies and the Treasury Management
Strategy are considered around the
same time each year, January/February
in readiness for the new financial year.




Management Comments (re: fidelity insurance)

Proposed Actions / Person
responsible / Date

Action Plan review (to be completed by
Internal Audit)

Fidelity insurance policy to be reviewed annually with
respect to treasury management. Discussions to take
place in the first instance between the Treasury
Manager; and the Insurance & Risk Manager (or
his/her deputy); with further discussions (if required)
with the Corporate Finance Manager. Ideally the
conversation should coincide with the new budget
setting process as well as the fidelity insurance
renewal date. A written copy of conversation/ minutes
to be retained on file for audit purposes.

NA — Group Accountant

Action every November / December
on an annual basis — meet Insurance
& Risk Manager.

26 abed




7. GDPR / Data protection Questionnaire

7.1 GDPR is not compliant.
7.1.1 Point Noted Implication Recommendations Rating
Document retention policy & schedule
Staff who are involved in the Staff may unknowingly breach the All relevant staff should be fully conversant | MR

administration and management of
document retention are unware of the
Council’s policies and the approved
Batchelor Local Government retention
schedules on this subject matter.

The actual filing and archiving processes
in operation are however quite
established, all archived and destruction
records are listed on a shared
Accountancy archive spreadsheet.
Regords are archived on an annual basis
aréhthe staff who undertakes this duty is
aw@re of how long they should be
ret@ned. Audit was advised that all
re&@¥ds due for disposal are reviewed
and “CC” to NA (Group Accountant) in an
email to Records Retrieval as part of the
final checking process. The copy email is
however, kept in the individual’'s email
account so not accessible to other
members of the TM Petty Cash team.

Council’s record management scheme if
they are not aware of the Council’s policy
and retention schedule on this matter.
S.60 of the Local Government (Wales) Act
1994 places a statutory requirement on the
Council to have a scheme in place for the
proper management of records from
planning and creation through to disposal.
Any new or legislation changes resulting in
an amended document retention period
could be missed as a result.

If emails which show the review of
files/records before destruction are left in
the individual account, the audit trail to
demonstrate the review process could be
lost when the post holder leaves. Section
21 of the Record Retention & Disposal
Policy states that automatic records
destruction when the end of the retention
period is reached is not recommended.

of the following record management
documents that is available on the CCBC
intranet under “Information Governance”:-

¢ Record retention & disposal policy;
¢ Batchelor L G Retention Schedule (UK);
e Batchelor L G Retention Schedule
(Wales).
For good practice, it is recommended that a
check is carried out to the retention
schedules when undertaking the annual
archiving task and as part of the final review
of records to be disposed. This will assist in
identifying any revised changes affecting
the document retention period.
Also, when granting the final decision to
dispose records (once the retention period
has expired, the email which is “CC”/ copied
to NA should also be retained in a shared
folder that can be accessed by all of the TM
Petty Cash Team. This record can then be
easily retrieved if needed.

Management Comments

Proposed Actions / Person responsible
/ Date

Action Plan review (to be completed by Internal

Audit)

Staff to be reminded of retentions policy,
as well as a file to be created to store
email communications / instructions with
respect to record retentions / disposals.

NA — Group Accountant

Action when Archives prompt for the next
record review.




Management was found published on
the Council’'s website and the Group
Accountant (NA) is not aware of any
being drawn up to inform data
subjects/ service users what happens
with their personal data retained by the
Treasury Management and how it is
going to be used. There is only a limited
amount of personal data held but
subsequent enquiries with the Assistant
Information Officer, (CE) indicated that
a privacy notice may have to be created
for a specific type of record and it's use
(concerning with the setting up of bank

ccounts) whilst a majority of the
hrecords held were either considered to
Rbe already covered under another
service area’s privacy notice or could
goe added to another department’s
notice. This was referred to the Group
Accountant as further information was
needed.

e ’\RY) 1
\4

holding of personal data is contrary to one
of the key changes of the recent GDPR
that came into effect in 2018, i.e. the
individual’s rights to be informed of why
their information is held, who this
information is shared with and how long it
will be retained.

Finance) and/ or the Finance Manager to
continue to liaise with the Assistant
Information Officer and progress as
necessary in order to ensure compliance
regarding privacy notices will be met.

7.1.2 Point Noted Implication Recommendations Rating
Privacy Notice
No specific privacy notice for Treasury | The apsence of a privacy notice for the The Group Accountant (Corporate MR

Management Comments

Proposed Actions / Person responsible
/ Date

Action Plan review (to be completed by Internal

Audit)

NA replied to CE — Assistant
Information Officer on 02/01/2019 and
Cc in LB. Awaiting response/ further
comments from CE.




faYal "\RY! 1
\vj

7.1.3 Point Noted Implication Recommendations Rating
Staff training on handling personal

data/ data protection

Enquiries with the Group Accountant Without management review, any training | Results of all mandatory e-learning MR

(NA) identified the newest member of
staff, RS who joined the team in August
18 has not received any training
concerning with the handling of
personal data/ data protection. Whilst
NA and the other member of the team
have completed the e-learning training
module (Protecting Information), this
has not been reviewed in the last 12
months to check the training is still up-
to-date. The Group Accountant has
checked that staff completes their
training once prompted by the network

ystems’ pop up message alert but did
hhot realise that ongoing reviews should
Ralso be undertaken after this.

?ll'he Group Manager was advised to
arrange suitable training for RS
following this feedback and a link to the
e-training course was provided.

that has expired and is subject to be
refreshed as in the Protecting Information
e-learning module (expires annually) may
not be identified. This could impact on the
Authority’s ability to demonstrate mitigating
circumstances in the event a security
breach has occurred if the person(s)
concerned have not fulfilled the necessary
training requirements.

Under the new General Data Protection
Regulations, the Authority could face
monetary penalties of £17m or 4% annual
turnover plus compensation claims and
other enforcement action. The ability to
demonstrate adequate and regular staff
training would form the basis of a defence
against receiving a monetary penalty.

information security modules can be
found on the iTrent system. A review of
staff training records should be
undertaken by Management via iTrent on
a periodic basis taking into account of
any staff absences/secondments etc.

An iTrent self service demo on how to
view this is available, under the following
route within the HR Portal: iTrent
Support/iTrent Self Service
Demo/Manager/viewing your team’s
training records.

For completeness of audit trail,
Managers should also manually update
the iTrent system for any staff that is a
non-computer user who has completed
the training through the manual version
(booklet format).

Management Comments

Proposed Actions / Person responsible
/ Date

Action Plan review (to be completed by Internal

Audit)

NA to arrange training for RS

NA — Group Accountant

Immediately — NA to contact HR to
arrange training for RS




8. Detailed Findings / Points noted

8.1 Risks identified in previous audits have not been addressed or measures implemented have not achieved control objectives.

fa¥al ’\Rﬂ 1
<

8.1.1 Point Noted Implication Recommendations Rating
E-authorisation of CHAPS Requests
i) Whilst all unsigned CHAPS request forms i) i)
in the sample examined were either
received by email from an officer with
authority or copied/CC to an officer with
authority:- a) Only the recipients of the email requests | a) A copy of the original email should | MA
a) The original email with the attached are able to confirm that proper authority has | also be attached to the CHAPS
request form is not always printed off and been given. It is difficult to independently request form to confirm the authority
retained with the CHAPS form to evidence establish compliance to the authorisation obtained.
the approval given. They are retained in the | Process where the original email is not
email account so they were verified by Audit | Printed off to support the CHAPS request
upon request for the emails to be retrieved. | form when they are either unsigned or
signed with an e-signature. MR

h) No payee name or amount was entered
hon one of the emails sent to enable the
Pemail to clearly match the request to the
Cattached CHAPS form. The absence of
PYetails could leave scope for the CHAPS
form to be altered. This was in respect of an
email with an attached CHAPS request sent
by AT (SS Finance) on 1/7/18 requesting for
the foreign CHAPS request to be
processed.

b) Any unauthorised amendments to the
CHAPS form attached could go undetected
if there isn’t enough information on the
original email to clearly link the email
request to the attached form. CHAPS
payments can be authorised by back up
authorisers who are not set up to receive
emails from the TM Petty Cash email
account and hence, will not be able to view
the original emails as part of their stand in
authorisation process.

b) Where CHAPS request are sent
via an email, it is recommended a
minimum level of information such
as the payee name and amount
requested should be included in the
content of the email so that it can be
easily matched to the CHAPS
request form. Both a copy of the
original email and the CHAPS form
should be passed to the Systems’
payment authorisers for verification
as part of the authorisation process.




Management Comments

Proposed Actions / Person responsible /
Date

Action Plan review (to be completed by
Internal Audit)

B 1
otd

1)
2)

3)

Staff to be reminded:

To ensure forms completed correctly
To ensure forms have been signed
off by a relevant officer or an officer
has been cc into email as a means
of authorisation. Emails to be
included with cashflow paperwork for
audit trail.

The department requesting the
CHAPS payment to verify within the
body of the email that bank details
have been verified. This should only
occur in the absence of an invoice
(invoices in general tend to have
bank details stated in the main body
of the document).

NA — Group Accountant

Immediately - email TM Staff regarding
reminding them of checks required.

.63




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98



Agenda Item 10

N
CAERPHILLY

COLUINTY BORODUGH COOLFINCIE
CYNGODOR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019
SUBJECT: WALES AUDIT OFFICE WHQS REVIEW

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1.1 The attached report, detailing the follow up review by the Wales Audit Office (WAO) on the
Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) delivery programme, was considered by the Policy
and Resources Scrutiny Committee on 12th March 2019, having previously been considered
by Cabinet on 30th January 2019, and thereafter presented to the Caerphilly Homes Task
Group on 12th February 2019 as an information item which was noted without discussion.

1.2 The Scrutiny Committee were reminded of the WAO Review in 2017 which reviewed the
Council's arrangements to deliver the WHQS by 2020, and concluded that the “majority of
tenants’ homes remain below the WHQS standard due to longstanding inefficient and
ineffective programme management and the Council is unlikely to achieve the standard by
2020". A WAO follow up review undertaken between April and October 2018 has now
concluded that “the Council has responded positively to our June 2017 WHQS report and
statutory recommendations by making significant improvements and as a result we now
conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by December 2020".

1.3 Ms Non Jenkins (Wales Audit Office) summarised the report and confirmed that the follow up
review has been undertaken in two parts, namely a Service User Perspective Review, which
focussed on the views from 489 tenants and 25 leaseholders in relation to the delivery of the
WHQS programme, and a Follow Up Review to determine whether the Council is meeting its
commitments and making satisfactory progress to meet the WHQS by WG'’s deadline of
December 2020. The follow up reports provided by the WAO provide a far more positive
picture on the current position of the WHQS programme and also provides independent
confidence that Caerphilly Homes are on track to deliver the full programme by December
2020. A copy of these follow up documents were appended to the Officer’s report.

1.4 The Service User Perspective Review refers to 3 proposals for improvement, and the report
set out details of how the Council will address these moving forward. It was accepted that
improvements and consistency are required in the way performance information is presented,
which have been addressed within the report. In addition, the Local Housing Strategy will be
developed during 2019 and EIAs on key policy reports will be carried out at the appropriate
time. Ms Jenkins also highlighted the importance of consistent and proactive tenant
engagement and communication, and how issues identified and tenant feedback can be used
to strengthen performance moving forward.

15 The Chief Housing Officer referred to the positive nature of the report and the WAQ's
acknowledgement of the progress that had been made. He expressed his thanks to relevant
Officers, the Scrutiny Committee and the Cross Party Working Group for their work
surrounding the WAO review, and highlighted the need to continue momentum in order to
achieve the Welsh Quality Housing Standard by the anticipated date of June 2020, rather than
the WG deadline of December 2020.

Page 99



1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

Author:

During the course of discussion on the item, queries were received on how the Council
planned to strengthen its communication approaches with tenants and leaseholders, and how
complaints about the WHQS programme are analysed to strengthen processes. Officers
outlined the ways in which information on the WHQS programme is made available, via the
Council's website, newsletters, consultation events, social media, working groups, press
releases and marketing events. Work is currently ongoing with the Caerphilly Homes Task
Group to review the communications process and Officers welcomed suggestions from the
Scrutiny Committee. Complaints are dealt with through the Corporate Complaints Policy and
the Council responds proactively to any improvements that are needed as a result. A report
on Complaints and Representations is also presented to the Task Group on an annual basis.

The Chief Housing Officer highlighted an aspect raised by the Repairs and Improvement
Group in that satisfaction surveys should allow for a greater level of tenant feedback in order
to manage expectations. Ms Jenkins expressed the importance of knowing the reasons
behind feedback and also in gathering geographical locations of the respondents so that
improvements can be targeted to areas in need. The Chief Housing Officer confirmed that
satisfaction surveys are now undertaken by telephone to allow staff to drill down to any areas
that need addressing. The Scrutiny Committee were asked to note however that satisfaction
levels are comparable with that of other local authorities in Wales. It was also confirmed that
at the time of the meeting, 76% of tenants/leaseholders are now reporting that they are
satisfied with the external works, which is an increase from the 71% rate in the WAO survey.

A Member referred to the WAO finding that the Council could better explain to leaseholders
and tenants why WHQS works are needed and queried this finding given the continuous
promotion of the WHQS programme over the last 6 years. Officers explained that this can
sometimes relate to planned maintenance over and above the WHQS requirements, and Ms
Jenkins highlighted the importance of giving a timeline and keeping tenant expectations in
mind

The Chief Housing Officer also responded to general queries from Members regarding the
level of complaints surrounding improvement works, the challenges that can be faced when
accessing homes to carry out these works, and of the types of installations used, such as
double glazing, draft proofing, and suitable boiler systems.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked Ms Jenkins for her report and it was noted the WAO would
continue to monitor progress moving forward. Ms Jenkins did however suggest that the Policy
and Resources Scrutiny Committee also needed to ensure that the delivery of the WHQS
programme was closely monitored in order for Members to satisfy themselves and provide
confidence that compliance by the stated deadline continued to be achievable. Members also
extended their thanks to the Chief Housing Officer and his staff for all their work in relation to
the WAO Review.

Following consideration of the report, and in recognising the progress made to date, the Policy
and Resources Scrutiny Committee unanimously agreed that the attached WAO reports and
the Officers responses to the reports and the proposals for improvement be noted.

The Audit Committee are asked to consider the Officers’ report and the recommendation as

set out in Section 10.1 of the report, and take into account the comments of the Cabinet and
the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee.

R. Barrett, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4245

Appendices:
Appendix 1  Report to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee on 12th March 2019 - Agenda

Item 1

Page 100



APPENDIX 1

N
CAERPHILLY

CEIINTY BOROONGH COIFNCIE
CYNGDR BWRIDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE —
12TH MARCH 2019

SUBJECT: WALES AUDIT OFFICE WHQS REVIEW

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR — SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING

1.1 The attached report was circulated to the Caerphilly Homes Task Group as an information
item ahead of its meeting on 14th February 2019. There were no comments arising from the
Caerphilly Homes Task Group.

1.2 The Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider the report
recommendation.

Author: K. Houghton, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4267

Appendices:
Appendix Report to the Caerphilly Homes Task Group 14th February 2019 — For Information —
Wales Audit Officer WHQS Review -

Page 101



APPENDIX

N
CAERPHILLY

CEIINTY BOROONGH COIFNCIE
CYNGDR BWRIDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CAERPHILLY HOMES TASK GROUP - 14TH FEBRUARY 2019

SUBJECT: WALES AUDIT OFFICE WHQS REVIEW

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1.1 The attached report, which provided details of the follow up review by the Wales Audit Office
(WAO) on the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) delivery programme, was considered
by Cabinet on 30th January 2019.

1.2 The report follows the previous report which had been presented to Cabinet on the
1% November 2017. Cabinet were reminded that during March and April 2017, as part of the
WAQ performance audit plan, the WAO undertook a review of the Council’'s arrangements to
deliver the WHQS by 2020. At the time of the review, the WAO concluded that the “majority
of tenants’ homes remain below the WHQS standard due to longstanding inefficient and
ineffective programme management and the Council is unlikely to achieve the standard by
2020". The WAO have now completed their follow up review which was undertaken between
April and October 2018 and have now concluded that “the Council has responded positively to
our June 2017 WHQS report and statutory recommendations by making significant
improvements and as a result we now conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by
December 2020".

1.3 Ms N. Jenkins and Mr G. Jones from the WAO summarised the report and confirmed that the
follow up review has been undertaken in two parts. A Service User Perspective Review —
which focussed on the views from 489 tenants and 25 leaseholders in relation to the delivery
of the WHQS programme. The second part was a Follow Up Review — to determine whether
the Council is meeting its commitments and making satisfactory progress to meet the WHQS
by the WG deadline of December 2020. The follow up reports provided by the WAO provide
a far more positive picture on the current position of the WHQS programme and also provides
independent confidence that Caerphilly Homes are on track to deliver the full programme by
December 2020.

1.4 The Service User Perspective Review (appended to the report) refers to 3 proposals for
improvement. Officers confirmed that they accept the proposals and will address the same in
moving forward. It was accepted that improvements and consistency is required in the way
performance information is presented and this has been addressed within the report. In
addition, the Local Housing Strategy will be developed during 2019 and EIAs on key policy
reports will be carried out at the appropriate time. Officers were pleased to note the progress
made has been acknowledged by the WAO.

15 Cabinet discussed the report and highlighted the benefits and importance of working with
tenants through this process. Members thanked the WAO for the balanced and thorough
report and advised that this can be used as a working document in moving forward.
Representatives from the WAO thanked Officers in turn for their assistance throughout the
process.

Page 102



1.6 Cabinet unanimously agreed that for the reason’s contained in the Officer's report, the WAO
reports and the Officers responses to the reports and the proposals for improvement, be
noted.

1.7 Members are asked to consider the report and the above recommendation.
Author: A. Dredge, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 3100.

Appendices:
Appendix Report to Cabinet on 30th January 2019 - Agenda Item 4.

Page 103



APPENDIX

N
CAERPHILLY

CEIINTY BOROONGH COIFNCIE
CYNGDR BWRIDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CABINET - 30TH JANUARY 2019

SUBJECT: WALES AUDIT OFFICE WHQS REVIEW

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR — SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise Members on the outcome of the follow up review by the Wales Audit Office (WAQO)
on the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) delivery programme following the previous
report which was submitted to Cabinet on the 1% November, 2017.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 During March and April 2017, as part of the WAO performance audit plan, the WAO undertook
a review of the Council’s arrangements to deliver the WHQS by 2020.

2.2 At the time of the review, the WAOQO concluded that the “majority of tenants’ homes remain
below the WHQS standard due to longstanding inefficient and ineffective programme
management and the Council is unlikely to achieve the standard by 2020".

2.3 The WAO have now completed their follow up review which was undertaken between April
and October 2018 and have now concluded that “the Council has responded positively to
our June 2017 WHQS report and statutory recommendations by making significant
improvements and as a result we now conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by
December 2020”.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The underlying principles of the WHQS programme, which includes the provision of good
guality affordable housing, energy efficient homes and carbon reduction, sustainable
communities, health and wellbeing, targeted recruitment and training, clearly links to 5 of the
7 well-being goals in The Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

3.2 Improving Lives and Communities: Homes in Wales (Welsh Government, 2010), which
sets out the national context for improving homes and communities, including the energy
efficiency of existing homes;

3.3 The Caerphilly We Want (CCBC, 2018-2023) - Well-Being Plan Objective 4: Positive
Places - Enabling our communities to be resilient and sustainable.

3.4 Corporate Plan (CCBC, 2018-2023): Well-being Objective 3: “Address the availability,

condition and sustainability of homes throughout the county borough and provide advice,
assistance or support to help improve people’s well-being.”

Page 104



3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

The Welsh Housing Quality Standard: Revised Guidance for Social Landlords on
Interpretation and Achievement of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (Welsh
Government, 2008).

Caerphilly Homes Service Plan (2018-2023): Priority 1A: All Council housing is improved
to meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standard by 2020.

THE REPORT

As part of the 2016/17 performance audit plan, the WAO, during March and April 2017,
undertook a review of the Council’s arrangements to deliver the WHQS by 2020. WAO
sought to answer the question “does the Council have effective arrangements in place to
enable it to meet the WHQS by 2020?”"

The WAO Review resulted in a number of recommendations which were set out in the
Cabinet report of the 1% November 2017, together with comments from officers in response.

Progress made in addressing the recommendations were reviewed by a Cross Party Working
Group which contained representatives from the Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee and
tenant representatives.

A report on the outcome of this review was presented to the Policy & Resources Scrutiny
Committee on the 27" February 2018 and it was agreed that the recommendations had been
progressed by the required timelines.

Following this review, the WAO arranged to undertake a further review during 2018 to
determine whether the Council can demonstrate that it is meeting the commitments made to
Cabinet on the 1% November 2017 in an effective, economic and efficient way.

This follow up review has been undertaken in two parts:-

e A Service User Perspective Review — which focussed on the views from 489 tenants
and 25 leaseholders in relation to the delivery of the WHQS programme.

e A Follow Up Review — to determine whether the Council is meeting its commitments and
making satisfactory progress to meet the WHQS by the WG deadline of December 2020.

The final version of the Service User Perspective Review report was received on the
20™ December 2018 and the Follow Up Review received on the 3™ January, 2019.

Service User Perspective Conclusion

“Tenants and leaseholders have positive views about many aspects of the Council’s
WHQS programme including the quality, but are less satisfied with external works, the
timeliness of work and the extent to which the Council involves them and provides
information on the works”.

The WAO arrived at this conclusion based on feedback from their survey of approximately
500 tenants/leaseholders who advised that:-

“The Council provides tenants and leaseholders with information about the WHQS
programme, but could better explain why the works are needed”.

Response
Every property is visited and surveyed individually and tenants engaged as they have an

element of choice in the delivery of the work. In addition, letters are also sent to each
household to advise of the anticipated start date of the work/contract.

Page 105



4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

Contact details of our Tenant Liaison Officers are also provided, who will support the tenants
throughout the process.

Information on the WHQS programme has also been made available on the Council’s
website, through the use of newsletters, consultation events, social media, working groups,
press releases and marketing events.

For leaseholders we follow a detailed legislative process which sets out the requirement to
issue leaseholders with a “Notice of Intention”, to provide an indicative scope of works and
thereafter a “Section 20 Notice” which provides information of the outcome of our tender
exercise including anticipated costs for each leaseholder. Leaseholders are also offered the
opportunity to meet with relevant officers if required.

Any work undertaken is identified based on the requirement to bring it up to the WHQ
Standard or due to its condition which may result in an element being repaired or replaced. It
is accepted that the reason why work is required to each element is not explained to our
tenants, although they are advised that it is part of our remit to meet WHQS.

“The Council could do more to ensure that the works are consistently completed on
time across all areas”.

Response

The survey identifies that 71% of tenants/leaseholders reported that the works were
completed to the original timescales. The timescale for completing works, however, can be
affected by many factors which make it extremely difficult to consistently complete the work on
time, e.g. weather, unforeseen work (asbestos, structural, dry rot), access, tenant
circumstances (medical conditions), contractor performance, utility company involvement.

“Those who have not had improvement works are satisfied with the quality of internal
work, but are less satisfied with external works”.

Response

It is pleasing to note that overall 81% of residents who have had WHQS works completed
were satisfied. It is disappointing that only 59% of residents reported that they were satisfied
with the outside of their home, with a further 17% reporting that they were neither satisfied nor
dissatisfied.

Unlike internal components, there is no stated timeline for replacing external elements of the
home, therefore each property is surveyed and elements changed based on their condition.
Tenants’ expectations, however, may be that all properties would receive new roofs, new
windows, doors, tender and paths, etc. which is not what was “promised” within our Offer
Document. Work is ongoing to change the way in which customer satisfaction surveys are
carried out so that responses can be analysed in more detail.

“Tenants and leaseholders are involved with the works, but the Council inconsistently
applies tenant choice about electrical wiring”.

Response

Caerphilly Homes has a policy to provide tenants with a choice about whether electrical
cables are required to be chased into the wall or hidden with trunking.

Some tenants, however, advised that this choice was not consistently provided and as a

consequence our survey forms have been amended to ensure this option is provided and the
tenants are required to sign the form to confirm their choice.

Page 106



4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

“85% of tenants and leaseholders can quickly and easily contact the Council”.
Response

This is a pleasing result and is considered to be the result of significant work that has been
undertaken to promote our contact information through various sources, the introduction of
appointments and texting facilities.

Overall, the Service User Perspective report confirms that the majority of tenants and
leaseholders surveyed are satisfied with delivery of the WHQS programme. It is accepted
that there is less satisfaction with external works, but these are not as clearly prescribed
within the WHQS guidance document as internal works and therefore compliance and
satisfaction levels are more difficult to gauge. It is also the case that leaseholders are
required to contribute towards the cost of external works which may also impact on
satisfaction responses. It is accepted, however, that improvements can be made and work
will be progressed in this regard.

WAO Service User Perspective Review — Proposals for Improvement

To ensure that the WHQS programme meets the needs of all tenants and leaseholders, the
Council should:-

“Strengthen its communication approaches with all tenants and leaseholders, taking
account of the experiences of different groups of residents”.

Response

Information on the WHQS programme has been made available on the Council’'s website,
through the use of newsletters, consultation events, social media, working groups, press
releases and marketing events. Newsletters have also been issued specifically to
leaseholders and further communication provided to them in line with required leasehold
legislation.

In addition each tenant has a letter to advise them of any pending work to their property and
when the contract is anticipated to commence. In relation to the internal programme, tenants
also receive a letter to confirm the extent of work and their choices and this provides them
with 10 days to advise if they wish to make any changes to the choices they have made.

It is accepted that the precise details of why the work is required may not be communicated to
all tenants, but due to the extent of communication being issued, they should be aware that
the work is required to achieve WHQS compliance and to ensure their property is maintained.

The content of the letters will however be reviewed in consultation with the Repairs and
Improvement Working Group to establish what further improvements can be made.

“Monitor and report compliance with the Charter for Trust to address any identified
issues”.

Response

The Charter for Trust is issued to all contractors and included as part of our contract
documentation. The requirement of contractors to adhere to the Charter for Trust is also an
agenda item for all monthly contract meetings.

Compliance with the Charter for Trust is monitored through customer satisfaction surveys as
there are specific questions relating to standards met. In order to improve customer feedback
however and to help to identify any issues, the customer satisfaction process has now been
reviewed and changed. The new process will involve satisfaction surveys being undertaken by
telephone which will hopefully improve the return rate. This will also provide officers with the
opportunity to drill down to establish the cause of any concerns in order for us to learn from
the feedback and make improvements for the future.

Page 107



4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

“Analyse complaints about the WHQS programme systematically to address the root
causes and share learning to improve tenants and leaseholders experience of the
programme”.

Response

Formal complaints are dealt with in line with our Corporate complaints procedure where the
outcome is reviewed to establish if there is a root cause which can be addressed in order to
improve our customers experience for the future.

It is accepted however that the customer satisfaction process can be improved in order for us
to learn from the feedback received and this is currently in the process of being addressed as
mentioned above.

WHQS Follow Up Conclusion

“The Council has responded positively to our June 2017 WHQS report and statutory
recommendations by making significant improvements and as a result we now
conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by December 2020”.

The WAO arrived at this conclusion based on the following:-

“The Council has made significant progress in identifying the investment and
resources it needs to complete its WHQS programme by 2020”.

Response

It is pleasing that the WAO have acknowledged the progress made in relation to surveying,
which in turn has assisted in the identification and costing of future works to inform our
business plan and asset management database.

The introduction of the Dynamic Purchasing System is also seen as a positive improvement to
engage external contractors in a timely manner.

The work undertaken demonstrates that we have both the financial and physical resources
available to deliver the programme by the end of 2020.

“The Council has taken steps to determine the value for money of its procurement
arrangements”.

Response

The report reflects the fact that an independent review was undertaken of our single source
supply arrangements which concluded that value for money was being provided.

A separate exercise was also undertaken to compare costs of the in-house team with external
contractors. Whilst this identified that costs were 20% higher, there are other benefits which
offset this increase which were considered in the assessment of value for money. Feedback
from tenants indicate that quality and customer satisfaction levels are higher for the in-house
workforce.

“There have been improvements to its WHQS performance reports; however there is
still inconsistent and inaccurate reporting of performance”.

Response
Performance information is now more accurate and timely with new validation processes

having been introduced, including an independent review of the process being undertaken by
our Corporate Audit team.

Page 108



4.49

4.50

4.51

4.52

4.53

4.54

4.55

4.56

4.57

4.58

4.59

4.60

It is accepted that there were some inaccuracies in data provided in reports during early 2018
and this was due to the source of the data collection, the reports being compiled by different
departments and possibly the result of changes in some data following validation checks.

To address this problem, all performance data is managed within a centralised team and the
data has been standardised for use in all reports.

“The Council now has measurable performance targets to effectively monitor the
remainder of its WHQS programme”.

Response

Standard reporting data now includes information on projected compliance up to the end of
the programme, based on average compliance achievements calculated from weekly reports.
This is constantly monitored to ensure Caerphilly Homes are on track to achieve the standard
by the required deadline.

“The Council has strengthened its arrangements to meet its statutory landlord
responsibilities”.

Response

Following a review of our no access procedure and Members’ agreement to proceed with
forced entry as a last resort following legal proceedings, performance in relation to gas
servicing has improved, with current levels being above 99% compliance.

“The Council has invested additional resources to enhance its WHQS programme
management, but still lacks a current Local Housing Strategy and does not always
produce comprehensive Equality Impact Assessments for key Housing policy
documents”.

Response

The Local Housing Strategy will be developed during 2019 and this will be assisted by the
recent approval of the Caerphilly Homes Asset Management Strategy and Homelessness
Strategy.

The approval of the Asset Management Strategy supported the progress of a number of
objectives and work-streams, which will require further reports detailing their proposed
implementation. These further reports will result in the completion of comprehensive Equality
Impact Assessments which will be undertaken at the appropriate time.

WAO Follow Up Review — Proposals for Improvement

“The Council should ensure that members and tenants receive accurate WHQS
performance information regularly about its progress towards achieving it's 2020
programme deadline”.

Response

Performance information is now more accurate and timely with new validation processes
having been introduced, including an independent review of the process being undertaken by
our Corporate Audit team. A copy of the report together with its outcomes was provided to
WAQO as part of this review.

It is accepted that there were some inaccuracies in data provided in reports during early 2018
and this was due to the source of the data collection, the reports being compiled by different
departments and possibly the result of changes in some data following validation checks.

Page 109



4.61

4.62

4.63

4.64

4.65

4.66

4.67

4.68

4.69

4.70

4.71

4.72

4.73

To address this problem, all performance data is now managed within a centralised team and
the data has been standardised for use in all reports which includes projections to provide our
overall anticipated compliance date. Reports will continue to be provided on a regular basis.

“The Council should agree a Local Housing Strategy to set out its long-term vision for
the future priorities for homes in Caerphilly”.

Response

Work has been ongoing to establish a number of strategies which will inform the development
of an overarching Local Housing Strategy, these include a Private Sector Renewal Strategy,
Asset Management Strategy and a Homelessness Strategy.

Following approval of the Homelessness Strategy in December 2018 the development of a
Local Housing Strategy will now progress in 2019 for its implementation in 2020.

“The Council should ensure that Equality Impact Assessments are undertaken
consistently”.

Response

This relates to the fact that a full EIA was not undertaken to support the Asset Management
Strategy report. Officers took the view at the time that the report was seeking member
approval on the principles of the strategy as it is clear that aspects of the strategy would
require further specific reports seeking members approval and full EIA’'s would be considered
again at this time.

To ensure consistency however, refresher EIA training would be provided to relevant officers.
Conclusions

The follow up reports provided by the WAO provide a far more positive picture on the current
position of the WHQS programme and also provides independent confidence that Caerphilly
Homes are on track to deliver the full programme by December 2020.

The methodology for carrying out customer satisfaction surveys is already in the process of
being reviewed with the aim of collating more meaningful feedback which will assist us in
making further service improvements.

It is accepted that improvements and consistency in the way performance information is
presented was required and this has been addressed as indicated within the report.

The Local Housing Strategy will be developed during 2019 and EIAs on key policy reports will
be carried out at the appropriate time.

Members will shortly be receiving further reports on the WHQS programme which will provide
details on the current progress position and projections for full compliance. A further report
will be submitted seeking approval of the re-profiling exercise which has also been
undertaken, which demonstrates and informs all stakeholders on the current and projected
completion of the programme broken down by community and street level.

When considering the improvement in performance that has been achieved over the last 12
months together with the latest position on WHQS compliance, Caerphilly Homes are well
placed to achieve full compliance (including acceptable fails) by December 2020, and this
view has now been supported by the WAO.

Page 110



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The report outlines the contribution made towards the Well-being Goals as set out in the Links
to Strategy section above. It is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the
sustainable development principle in the Act:-

Long-term - Since the Housing Ballot (2012) we continue to make substantial investments and
improvements to both the internal and external environments of our social housing stock
(Public Sector), including specialised adaptations in accordance with the needs of some of our
tenants. Adaptations are also supported and implemented in the Private Sector (often
referred to as Disability Facilities Grants).

These fundamental changes and improvements are being achieved through; the
implementation of the Welsh Housing Quality Standards; housing adaptations in accordance
with tenants and homeowners needs; enhancing the quality of product installations and
repairs; improving environments around homes; all aiding the well-being of our communities,
its infrastructure and citizens alike, providing homes and communities for now and the future.

Prevention - The works undertaken through Housing Services helps to improve lives and
communities, by securing local employment either in-house or through supplier, contractor
and partnership arrangements.

Works undertaken by our services make significant visual improvements to housing stocks
and their surroundings environments (improved the look and feel) helping to prevent anti-
social behaviour and enviro-crime.

By raising standards and conditions with improved quality materials and appropriate service
response, should aide and ease future maintenance schedules and requirements, better
controlling costs, levels of deterioration/depreciation, improve safety and accessibility, while
also reducing disruption to our tenants in the future, and aiding quality of life in both Private
and Public Sectors, through intervention and support actions that are fit-for-purpose.

Involvement - Through established governance and performance frameworks, tenants and
local residents are consulted on proposed property and environment improvements works
along with various initiatives, and they are periodically informed of progress as part of for
example, the WHQS delivery programme.

Numerous working groups are established and well embedded with periodic reporting and
feedback opportunities exploited. Welsh Government, Environment Standards, Regulatory
Controls and Checks, Tenant Engagement are all part of our daily business.

Collaboration - The programme delivery focused on internal collaboration, wider partnership
arrangements with suppliers and contractors, joint working with the community and various
other interested parties/groups. The delivery of community benefits and tenant engagement
by all involved with the WHQS programme is a key focus for the success and delivery of this
objective.

Integration - The programme looks to integrate property and environmental improvements that
will benefit and transform lives and communities throughout the county borough. It further
brings together a variety of stakeholders to deliver long term sustainable benefits for lives and
communities including Social Services & Health.

Housing Services and our outlined priorities, contributes to a minimum of 6 out of the 7 well-
being goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015, including:-

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities
A globally responsible Wales.

Page 111



6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 This report is for information purposes only. There are, therefore, no equalities implications
arising from the report.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The WAO stated that significant progress has been made in identifying the investment and
resources it needs to complete the WHQS programme by the end of 2020. This work has
helped to inform the Caerphilly Homes business plan which demonstrates that anticipated
borrowing requirements will be sufficient to deliver the full programme and that the business
plan remains financially viable.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATION

8.1 There are no current personnel implications associated with this report.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 The report has been consulted on and any views received have been considered and
incorporated where appropriate.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 Members are asked to consider and comment on the WAO reports, note and comment on the
officer responses to the reports and the proposals for improvement.

11. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 To ensure that Cabinet is aware of the review work undertaken by the WAO and the relevant
findings, conclusion and proposals for improvement.

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 Housing Act 1996.
Housing (Wales) Act 2014.

Author: Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer
(Tel: 01443 811406/01443 864208, Email: couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Consultees:  Councillor Lisa Phipps - Cabinet Member for Homes and Places
Christina Harrhy - Interim Chief Executive
Dave Street - Corporate Director of Social Services and Housing
Robert Tranter - Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Paul Smythe - Housing Technical Manager
Jane Roberts Waite - Strategic Co-ordination Manager
Lesley Allen - Principal Accountant
Alan Edmunds - WHQS Project Manager
Steve Greedy - WHQS Project Manager
Colin Roden - WHQS Project M
Appendices:

Appendix 1 Service User Perspective Review
Appendix 2  Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report

Page 112


mailto:couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk

Appendix 1

=

WALES AUDIT OFFICE Archwnydd Cyffredinol Cymru
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU Auditor General for Wales

Service User Perspective Review —
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Audit year: 2017- 2018

Date issued: November 2018

Document reference: 826A2018-19




This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions.

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention
is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor
General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding
disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at
infoofficer@audit.wales.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffén yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

[Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh.]

The team who delivered the work comprised Gareth Jones, Kevin Sutch,
Matthew Brushett and Lisa McCarthy programme managed by Non Jenkins under the direction of
Huw Rees.

Page 114


mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales

Contents

Tenants and leaseholders have positive views about many aspects of the Council’s
WHQS programme including the quality, but are less satisfied with external works, the
timeliness of work, and the extent to which the Council involves them and provides
information on the works.

Summary report

Summary 4
Proposals for improvement 6
Understanding the results 6

The Council provides tenants and leaseholders with information about the WHQS
programme, but it could better explain why the works are needed 9

The Council could do more to ensure that the works are consistently completed on
time across all areas 12

Those who have had improvement works are satisfied with the quality of internal
works, but are less satisfied with external works 14

Tenants and leaseholders are involved with the works, but the Council inconsistently
applies tenants’ choice about electrical wiring 18

Eighty-five per cent of the tenants and leaseholders can quickly and easily contact

the Council 20
Appendices

Appendix 1 — overview of survey participants 27
Appendix 2 — survey questions 29
Appendix 3 — infographic summarising survey results 36

Page 3 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerphma@&y]&&(ﬁgh Council



Summary report

Summary

1

In 2017-18, the Wales Audit Office completed work to understand the ‘service user
perspective’ at every council within Wales. We followed a broadly similar approach
at each council but agreed the specific focus and approach to the work individually.
In Caerphilly, we focused on tenants’ and leaseholders’ views on their experience
of Caerphilly County Borough Council’s (the Council) Welsh Housing Quality
Standard (WHQS) programme.

The WHQS is a Welsh Government policy that applies to all public housing across
Wales. Meeting the standard is the responsibility of each social housing landlord.
The Council is the social housing landlord for Council tenants across the County
Borough. Tenants and leaseholders therefore do not have a choice of service
provider. As there is no alternative service provider, the ability of service users to
influence services relies on ‘voice’ rather than ‘choice’. This means that ensuring
the views of service users are heard is important when the Council designs and
delivers services and interventions aimed at meeting people’s needs.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the Act) places a duty on
local authorities and other public bodies to have regard for the sustainable
development principle and the five ways of working that define it. ‘Involvement’ is
one of the five ways of working identified in the Act.

In 2017, we undertook a review of the Council’s progress towards meeting the
WHQS by 2020 and concluded that the majority of tenants’ homes remain below
the WHQS due to longstanding inefficient and ineffective programme management,
and the Council was unlikely to achieve the Standard by 2020. One of the reasons
that we came to this conclusion was that:

o although ‘the Council has a range of mechanisms to engage with tenants
about WHQS, these are ineffective and are not being used to shape
planning and drive performance’.

The Council’s response to our 2017 finding was that their own satisfaction surveys
pointed to high levels of tenant satisfaction, and that it would be valuable if we
were to speak to more tenants.

We could not speak to all tenants and leaseholders, so we commissioned an
independent research company to carry out a telephone survey of a sample of
them. Between 23 April and 1 May 2018, 489 tenants and 25 leaseholders
completed the survey. Appendix 1 provides more detail about the tenants and
leaseholders who completed the survey. We asked them about the quality and
timeliness of the works, the communications and service they receive from the
Council, and whether they feel listened to/able to influence the WHQS programme.
Appendix 2 contains our survey questions.

We spoke to residents at four Sheltered Housing Schemes in focus groups. Two of
the schemes had improvement works being carried out at the time of our focus
groups, one scheme had had the works completed and at one the work was yet to
start.

Page 4 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerphmag@y]i&tﬁgh Council



8 We held focus groups with the tenant members of the Caerphilly Homes Task
Group and the Repairs and Improvements Group.

9 We also interviewed senior housing service managers and managers with
responsibility for tenant engagement activities.

10  We concluded that: tenants and leaseholders have positive views about many
aspects of the Council's WHQS programme including the quality, but are less
satisfied with external works, the timeliness of work, and the extent to which the
Council involves them and provides information on the works.

11 We came to this conclusion because:
° The tenants and leaseholders we surveyed and spoke to tell us that:

- the Council provides tenants and leaseholders with information about
the WHQS programme, but it could better explain why the works are
needed;

- the Council could do more to ensure that the works are consistently
completed on time across all areas;

- those who have had improvement works are satisfied with the quality
of internal works, but are less satisfied with external works;

- tenants and leaseholders are involved with the works, but the Council
inconsistently applies tenants’ choice about electrical wiring; and

- 85% of the tenants and leaseholders can quickly and easily contact
the Council.

Page 5 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caertha@&yi&(zgh Council



Proposals for improvement

Exhibit 1: proposals for improvement

12 The table below contains our proposals for ways the Council could improve the
effectiveness of its WHQS programme to make it better placed to meet tenants’
and leaseholders’ needs.

Proposals for improvement

P1  To ensure that the WHQS programme meets the needs of all tenants and
leaseholders the Council should;

. strengthen its communication approaches with all tenants and
leaseholders, taking account of the experiences of different groups of
residents;

. monitor and report compliance with the Charter for Trust to address any
identified issues; and

. analyse complaints about the WHQS programme systematically to

address the root causes and share learning to improve tenants’ and
leaseholders’ experience of the programme.

Understanding the results

13 Our survey sample of 514 tenants and leaseholders provides an insight into their
views. The Council has almost 11,000 tenants and leaseholders, and this sample
of 514 people provides a confidence interval of 4.2% at a 95% confidence level.
This means that if 50% of people chose a response in this survey and the survey
was repeated, there would be 95% confidence that the response in the repeated
survey would range from 45.8% to 54.2%. The sample includes tenants and
leaseholders whose full WHQS works are complete, some that had only external
work, others that had internal work only and others that are yet to receive any
WHQS work. Further detail on the sample is provided in Appendix 1.

14  Some of our survey questions used a five-point satisfaction scale: Very Satisfied,
Satisfied, Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied, Dissatisfied, Very Dissatisfied. The
percentages we show in the report combine the very satisfied and satisfied into
one score of satisfied, and very dissatisfied and dissatisfied into one score of
dissatisfied.

15  We provide the responses as percentages, which may not always add up to 100%
because of rounding or for multiple response questions.

Page 6 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerphmag@y]i&(ﬁgh Council



16  To provide further insight we used the following tenant characteristics to analyse
the survey questions:

o Age of tenant

o Gender of tenant

° Length of tenancy

° Tenancy status (general needs, sheltered housing tenant, leaseholder)

° Location of property (the Council has three WHQS delivery areas, the Upper
Rhymney Valley, Lower Rhymney Valley and the Eastern Valleys)

17  We have set out in the report if any of these tenant characteristics have a
significant impact on the responses to any questions. Where we do not set out any
impact of tenant characteristics there is no impact of those on the survey
responses.

18  Leaseholders have a different relationship with the Council around WHQS to
tenants. When a tenant becomes a leaseholder and purchases their property
through the Right to Buy scheme, they assume certain responsibilities and
obligations. Those include the maintenance of their property that they have bought.
The terms of the lease issued by the Council includes an obligation on the
leaseholder to contribute towards the repair, maintenance and refurbishment of the
external structure and communal areas. These are referred to as Major Works,
where the Council is legally required to undertake a formal consultation process
with all leaseholders. The Council provides information to leaseholders about their
obligations in a leaseholder handbook'. The Council undertakes only external
improvement works to leaseholders’ properties as part of the WHQS programme.
The Council consults with leaseholders if the cost of the external improvements
works is likely to exceed £250 per leaseholder or more than £1,000 for the block of
flats.

1 Caerphilly County Borough Council Leaseholder Handbook

Page 7 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerphmag@y]i&&gh Council


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Housing/Repairs-Leaflet.aspx

CAERPHILLY TENANTS'
WHQS ‘JOURNEY’

19 From our focus groups, Sheltered Housing residents and Council staff we understand the
following as the main parts of tenants’ ‘journey’ through having WHQS improvement works
completed in their homes.

Set Up

20 The Council informs tenants when WHQS works will take place in their
community. Internal and external works take place at different times within
communities. Sheltered Housing residents told us that special meetings took
place in the communal areas where residents were able to ask questions
about how the work would be carried out.

Condition Survey

21 A Council surveyor visits the resident and explains what works (internal and
external) will be carried to bring the home up to the WHQS standard. It is at
this stage the resident has the opportunity to make their choices. It is also
an opportunity to explain to the resident what can be changed, what will
remain as part of the programme and what the residents will have to do. The
Council writes to the tenant to set out what works will be completed as part
of the WHQS programme.

Works commence

22 In sheltered housing schemes the Tenant Liaison Officers (TLOs) help

residents to pack and move items away from the work area. The Council
informs tenants when the work will start along with the likely time it will take
to complete.

I Works duration

23 During the duration of the works the main point of contact for tenants is
either the workforce manager on site or TLO. The Council’s ‘Charter for
Trust’ suggests that all residents should have the contact details for the TLO
for their area. For sheltered housing the sheltered housing liaison officer or
the TLO are available to provide updates about the progress of the work.

| Works end

24 The Clerk of Works checks that the specified work(s) has been carried out
correctly and identifies any work that needs to be completed or has not been
carried out to standard.

Page 120



The Council provides tenants and leaseholders
with information about the WHQS programme,
but it could better explain why the works are
needed

Summary

Exhibit 2: summary of tenants’ and leaseholders’ views about the information the Council
provides to them about the WHQS programme

INFORMATION

00° 62% of residents told us that
the Council has told them about
WHQS

EXPLAINING THE NEED FOR THE WORKS

@ 55% of residents who have
had works told us that the Council

explained why the improvement
works were needed

NEXT TWO YEARS

@ B1% of residents know if
the Council will be making any

improvements to their home in the
next 2 years

Information about the WHQS Programme

25  Sixty-two per cent of the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed told us that the
Council had told them about the WHQS, whilst 32% said that the Council had not
told them, and 6% said they did not know.

26  Thirty-seven per cent of the 191 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed in the
Upper Rhymney Valley told us that the Council had not told them about the WHQS.

27  We asked those tenants and leaseholders who remembered the Council telling
them about the WHQS programme, what method(s) the Council had used to inform
them. Fifty per cent of the tenants and leaseholders told us that the Council

Page 9 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerphwagﬁy]iaéhgh Council



28

informed them by letter, 29% told us that the Council used newsletters or told them
in person.

Twenty per cent of the 44 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed aged between 45
and 54 told us that the Council had told them through newsletters, but 36% of this
age group said that they were told in person. The tenants and leaseholders we
surveyed who were aged between 45 and 74 were more likely to say that they had
been told in person than those aged 44 and younger or those aged over 75

Explaining why works are needed to achieve WHQS

29

30

31

Overall, 55% of the 374 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who have had
improvements works in the past five years told us that the Council had explained
why those works were needed to achieve WHQS, whilst 34% told us that it had
not, and 10% said that they didn’t know/couldn’t remember.

Nine of the 19 of the Sheltered housing respondents and six of the eight
leaseholders who have had improvement works said the Council had explained
why the works were needed.

Sixty per cent of the 129 Eastern Valleys respondents we surveyed told us that the
Council had explained why the works were needed. Forty-three per cent of the 144
Upper Rhymney Valley respondents we surveyed told us that the Council had not
explained why the works were needed.

Information about Future Improvements

32

33

Fifty-one per cent of the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed were aware of the
Council’s plans to make improvements to their homes in the next two years, whilst
34% were not aware, and 15% said they did not know/could not remember.

Tenants’ and leaseholders’ awareness varied across the Council’s three housing
delivery areas, with 44% of the 191 Upper Rhymney Valley respondents we
surveyed were aware of the Council’s plans compared to 59% of the 177 Eastern
Valley respondents, and 51% of the 146 Lower Rhymney Valley respondents in the
Lower Rhymney Valley.

Information about WHQS for leaseholders

34

Twelve of the 25 leaseholders we surveyed told us that the Council had informed
them about their maintenance responsibilities as a leaseholder, 11 leaseholders
told us that the Council had not and two leaseholders did not know.

Sheltered housing residents’ views

35

Residents in three of the four Sheltered Housing schemes we spoke to told us that
they felt that the Council has an inconsistent approach to informing residents about
why the works were being carried out and what was required. Some residents
recalled having a scheme meeting in the communal room, but others could not

Page 10 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caermea(gﬁ\tﬂ_@Bugh Council



36

remember. Residents told us that the Council sent letters setting out the works to
be carried out a number of months before works began, but some residents did not
recall receiving these letters. However, in Ty Bedwellty, all the residents were very
aware why the works were being carried out and thought the communication about
the work was excellent.

Tenant Liaison Officers are the key link between the residents, sheltered housing
wardens and the contractors delivering the improvement works. When it came to
advising residents about potential start dates, the TLOs told us that they normally
‘err on the side of caution’ when providing residents with a start date so that they
do not raise the residents’ expectations.

Tenant representatives’ views

37

Tenant members of the Repairs and Improvement and Caerphilly Homes Task
Group told us that, in their experience, the Council’s information about the extent of
works, and how and when those will be delivered, does not always reflect tenants’
actual experience of the delivery of the works.

Page 11 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂ_@Bugh Council



The Council could do more to ensure that the
works are consistently completed on time across
all areas

Summary

Exhibit 3: tenants’ and leaseholders’ views on the timeliness of the improvement works

38

39

TIMELINESS OF WORK

71% of residents told us that the
Council completed the works when
they said they would

Seventy-one per cent of 374 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who have had
WHQS works carried out, reported that the works were completed to the original
timescales, 24% reported that the works were not and 6% could not remember.

Twenty-eight per cent of the 101 Lower Rhymney Valley and 26% of the 129
Eastern Valley respondents we surveyed said that the works were not completed
on time, but this figure reduced to 19% of the 144 Upper Rhymney Valley
respondents.

Sheltered housing residents’ views

40

41

Eighty-four per cent of the sheltered housing tenants we surveyed told us that the
Council completed the works when they were told they would.

In our focus groups, residents from the Sheltered Housing schemes told us that
when the planned timescales are not adhered to, it causes confusion and
disruption for residents. One resident told us that they went on holiday for the
planned period of the works only to return and find the works had not been
completed. Some residents told us that the Council, and the teams delivering the
works, could improve their communication about changes to timescales. In Ty
Bedwellty, the Council managed the works by moving tenants temporarily into
empty properties whilst the works were being done, meaning that delays did not
impact on residents’ lives.

Tenant representatives’ views

42

Tenant members of the Repairs and Improvement and Caerphilly Homes Task
Group told us that in the initial phases of the WHQS works, tenants experienced

Page 12 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHﬁ@ﬁﬂMugh Council



delays, but stated that in their view the Council has now made changes to its
delivery processes to try to overcome such delays. The tenants described how
delays to completing works can impact on people’s daily lives due to the disruption
in their homes.

43  Tenants’ and leaseholders’ views indicate that the Council could do more to ensure
that works are consistently completed on time across all areas.

Page 13 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caermea(gﬁ\tﬂ_@Bugh Council



Those who

have had improvement works are

satisfied with the quality of internal works, but are
less satisfied with external works

Summary

Exhibit 4: tenant and leaseholder satisfaction with the overall WHQS works and specific
elements of the programme (kitchens, bathrooms and outside of their homes)

E®O O

OVERALL SATISFACTION WITH WHQS
WORKS

81 % of residents who have had
works are satisfied

79% of tenants are satisfied

with the overall condition of
their kitchen

BATHROOM

79% of tenants are satisfied
with the overall condition of
their bathroom

OUTSIDE OF HOME

59% of residents are satisfied
with how the outside of their
homes looks

Overall satisfaction with improvement works

44  We asked the 374 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who have had any
improvement works completed in the past five years about their satisfaction with
the works. Eighty-one per cent are satisfied with the improvement works to their
homes, 8% are neither satisfied nor dissatisfied and 12% are dissatisfied.

45 Eighteen of the 19 sheltered housing residents we surveyed who have had works
completed are satisfied compared to four of the eight leaseholders we surveyed

Page 14 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂ_@@ugh Council



and 81% of the other (general needs) tenants who have had works completed.
Eighty-five per cent of the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who have had
both internal and external works completed are satisfied.

46  When we asked the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed why they had given
their satisfaction rating, we found that their satisfaction was related to a few key

reasons:

o the lived experience of having the works done to their homes;

o tenants’ experiences of the builders who carry out the building works;
o timeliness of the works;

° quality of the works;

° design of the works;

o effectiveness of communication;

° provision of services to disabled families; and

° level of choice provided to tenants.

47  The tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who had had a positive experience
provided us with a range of comments that reflect a positive adherence to the
Council's Charter for Trust?. In 2013, the Council developed the Charter following
consultation with tenants and staff and it was agreed by the Caerphilly Homes
Task Group. It sets out the standards that tenants can expect from the workforce
and how tenants should treat the workforce. Many tenants and leaseholders
highlighted positive compliance with the Charter for Trust during the works:

o ‘They (the workforce) did a clean and tidy job.’

o ‘Every lot of workmen | have had here were all punctual, polite and they all
cleaned up after.’

° ‘Very nice workmen asked me about my opinion every step of the way.’

° ‘It was very good — especially the ones who did the indoor work — they’'d
explain what they were doing.’

° ‘It was all carried out on time and they tidied up after themselves: all good.’

° ‘New bathroom, we got a shower, floor no longer squeaks, toilet not leaking.’

48 A smaller proportion of tenants and leaseholders we surveyed, including some who
told us that overall they are satisfied with the works they had received, however,
provided us with feedback that highlighted non-compliance with the Charter for

Trust:

° ‘(The works were an) absolute shambles and personal belongings were
broken.’

° ‘The workers ruined my stair carpets, | told the Council and they haven’t

done anything about it.’

2 Caerphilly Homes Charter for Trust
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Housing/Tenants-handbook/13-
CharterForTrust.aspx

Page 15 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpﬂagﬁ\tm%ugh Council


http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Housing/Tenants-handbook/13-%20CharterForTrust.aspx
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Housing/Tenants-handbook/13-%20CharterForTrust.aspx

o ‘| was very disgusted at all the disruption caused, we were left without
running water etc.’

o ‘We went four weeks without a sink.’

o ‘Some of the workers leave a mess after completing the work.’

° ‘The work’s nice but not happy with the hassle and length it took.’

° ‘They didn't finish the job straight away and wouldn’t decorate the bathroom

to a good standard.’

Sheltered housing residents’ views

49

Sheltered housing residents told us that they were satisfied with the improvement
works that the Council has completed, however, residents felt that this satisfaction
is only achieved once any snagging is resolved. Some sheltered housing residents
expressed dissatisfaction with the electrical works, and in one scheme residents
had reported their concerns to the Council about the fitting of new front doors,
which they had found to be difficult to open or close.

Tenant representatives’ views

50

Tenant members of the Repairs and Improvements and Caerphilly Homes task
groups told us that once completed, improvements works are usually finished to a
high standard. However, they highlighted that there are examples of tenants having
to complain to get to this point, after work had not been perceived to have been
done correctly first time.

Satisfaction with Kitchens

51

52

Seventy-nine per cent of the tenants we surveyed are satisfied with the condition of
their kitchen, 12% are dissatisfied and 10% are neither satisfied nor dissatisfied.

We looked at the level of satisfaction and whether having works completed
affected tenants’ views. Eighty-four per cent of the 364 tenants we surveyed who
have had works in the past five years are satisfied with the condition of their
kitchen compared to 64% of tenants (120) who have not had works.

Satisfaction with Bathrooms

53

54

55

Seventy-nine per cent of the tenants we surveyed are satisfied with the condition of
their bathroom, 10% are dissatisfied and 11% are neither satisfied nor dissatisfied.

Overall, 75% of the 136 tenants we surveyed in the Lower Rhymney Valley are
satisfied with the condition of their bathroom compared to 81% of the 191 Upper
Rhymney Valley tenants we surveyed and 81% of the 177 Eastern Valleys tenants.

We looked at tenants’ level of satisfaction and whether having works completed
affected tenants’ views. Eighty-five per cent of the 364 tenants we surveyed who

Page 16 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caermea(gﬁ\tﬂ_@8ugh Council



have had works in the past five years are satisfied compared to 65% of the 120
tenants we surveyed who have not had works.

Satisfaction with Exteriors of homes

56  We asked all 514 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed whether they are satisfied
with the exterior of their home. Fifty-nine per cent are satisfied, with 17% neither
satisfied nor dissatisfied and 23% dissatisfied.

57  We found no difference in satisfaction between those that have had improvement
works done and those that have not had improvement works.

58  Sixty-three per cent of the 177 Eastern Valleys tenants and leaseholders we
surveyed are satisfied with the exterior of their homes, with this figure being 59% of
the 146 Lower Rhymney Valley and 55% of the 191 Upper Rhymney Valley
tenants and leaseholders we surveyed.

Page 17 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂ_@ngh Council



Tenants and leaseholders are involved with the
works, but the Council inconsistently applies
tenants’ choice about electrical wiring

Summary

Exhibit 5: 67% of tenants and leaseholders who have had work were included in the
design of the improvement works

DESIGN

/fl 67% of those residents who

have had work were included in the
design of the improvement works

59  We asked the 374 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who have had
improvements works whether the Council had involved them in the design or
specification of any of the improvement works. Sixty-seven per cent of those
tenants and leaseholders said the Council had involved them, 29% said the
Council had not, and 5% did not know or could not remember.

60  Tenants and leaseholders can exercise their right to refuse improvement works.
Fifty-five tenants and leaseholders in the survey had refused some improvement
works with five having refused all the works.

Exhibit 6: kitchens and bathrooms are the improvement works most often refused by
tenants and leaseholders

Roof | 2%
Doors M 3%
Windows [l 3%
Don't know/ can't remember [l 8%
Rewiring or access [ 15%
Bathroom [ 33%
Kitchen N 70%

Page 18 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpmla(gﬁ\tﬂ_@@ugh Council



61  We asked those 60 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who told us that they
had refused works, why they had done so. Twenty-five per cent said they were
happy with the existing state of their home, with 20% of tenants and leaseholders
reporting health issues or the inconvenience of the proposed plan (20%) as their
reasons to refuse the works. Thirty-seven per cent reported other reasons, with
many of those stating that they had completed the improvements themselves.

Sheltered housing residents’ views in focus groups

62  The Sheltered Housing residents we spoke with in our focus groups told us that
although the Council offers choice, they felt that the choice was extremely limited,
especially colours and kitchen worktops. The Council provided us with examples of
the brochure which details the choices which are available. The Council also
provided us with an example of the document given to tenants confirming the
choices that tenants have made. However, during our focus groups with Sheltered
Housing residents, not all recalled receiving these documents.

Tenant representatives’ views

63  Tenant members of the Repairs and Improvement and Caerphilly Homes task
groups told us that overall the level of choices is generally good, but there is still
some inconsistency with how much choice is offered to all tenants depending on
which builders are delivering the improvement works. The Council’s policy is that
tenants’ choices are discussed and agreed jointly by tenants with the Council’s
Surveyors and TLOs.

64 Focus groups with tenants highlighted the methods that the Council uses for
electrical rewiring as an area where tenants feel they are not always consistently
able to influence the works to their homes. The Council maintains that it has a
policy to provide tenants with a choice about whether the wires should be chased
into the wall or hidden with trunking and wherever possible, cables should be
chased into the wall. However, the tenants told us that this is not always the case,
or it had not been clearly explained to the individual residents why trunking is
needed and could not be chased into the wall. In May 2018, the Council introduced
a process to record tenants’ choice of either surface mounted (trunking) or buried
cables.

Page 19 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHa(gﬁ\tﬂ_@ﬂ)ugh Council



Eighty-five per cent of the tenants and
leaseholders can quickly and easily contact the
Council

Summary
Exhibit 7: summary of tenants’ and leaseholders’ views of ease of contacting the Council

CONTACTING THE COUNCIL

&;o 85% of residents can quickly

and easily contact the housing
service

RESPONDING TO VIEWS

64% of residents think that the
Council listens to their views about
their home and neighbourhood
and acts on them

Contacting the Council

65  Whilst 85% of tenants and leaseholders we surveyed said that they can quickly
and easily contact the Council, 9% said they cannot and 6% did not know or have
not tried.

66 A small number of tenants and leaseholders told us that they are unclear about
who to contact if they have any queries. Tenants and leaseholders aged below 45
were less likely to state that they can quickly and easily contact the Council than
the overall response.

67  Those tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who told us that they were unable to
contact the Council quickly and easily, told us about their experience of contacting
the Council:

o ‘When you call the Council takes ages to get through, hard to get to right

department.’

o ‘Contacted the Council about a rat problem and there was no answer from
the number they gave me.’

o ‘It takes a long time to get through to Council phone line; last time took me
three days.’

o ‘It's difficult to call when Council you're in work.’

o ‘It would be good if you can phone after work hours, 8 am to 8 pm.’

Page 20 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpﬁha(gﬁ\tﬂ_ﬁaugh Council



o ‘They could be quicker in responding when you call for repairs.’

o ‘When you get problems they normally respond but we’ve had damp for two
years and nothing fixed.’

o ‘Spoke to housing person and didn’t get any satisfactory answers.’

Responding to views

68

Sixty-four per cent of the 514 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed are satisfied
that the Council listens to their views and then acts on them, 17% are dissatisfied
and 19% are neither satisfied nor dissatisfied. Eighty-five per cent of the 41
sheltered housing residents are satisfied compared with 64% of the 454 other
(general needs) tenants. Tenants’ and leaseholders’ satisfaction varied across the
age groups from 73% for those aged over 75 to 49% for those aged 35 to 44.

Sheltered housing residents’ views

69

70

Overall, the sheltered housing residents we spoke to told us that communication
can be variable and depends on residents’ level of confidence in approaching the
TLOs and the teams delivering the works. We found that the Council provides
information about how to contact the Council about WHQS works including specific
contact numbers, but a small number of tenants still contact the main housing team
to resolve issues.

We found in Ty Bedwellty, the one Sheltered Housing Scheme where tenants were
very satisfied with the work, that there was very good liaison between the TLO and
the warden. The warden acted as the key point of contact between tenants and the
TLO.

Appointment system

71

In the phone survey, tenants and leaseholders provided us with generally positive
feedback about the Council’s housing appointments system, including the text
reminder system and the agreement of dates. However, a small number of tenants
and leaseholders expressed negative views about the system including some who
felt that there is a need to take a full day off work for an appointment, and some
who had experienced appointments not being kept.

Positive

o ‘They’re good, they always give an appointment date so you know when to
expect them.’

o ‘No complaints, when | need repairs they will give a date and they keep to
their word.’

o ‘If you need a repair they offer convenient time, text reminders.’

Page 21 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpﬂagﬁ\tmaugh Council



72

Negative

o ‘The times that they come out and do repairs can be inconvenient, we work
full time and have to take a day off whenever we need a repair.’

o ‘Pain when they can’t give a time for repairs or visits.’

o ‘I'm currently waiting for my roof to be repaired; it's hard to miss work for the
repairs.’

The Council produces an annual report on the housing-related formal complaints
received by its Housing Customer Services Section, which is presented to the
Caerphilly Homes Task Group. In 2017 the report® highlighted an increase in
service requests for both WHQS internal and external works, and also an increase
in praise and thanks related to WHQS. The report also outlined how the Council
had learnt lessons from the complaints to improve its housing service, including the
WHQS programme. We understand that whereas previously WHQS complaints
could be logged in a number of systems, there is now a single complaints inbox for
the WHQS programme. Whilst this enables the Council to respond to individual
complaints, the Council does not currently have a central complaints log for
WHQS.

3 Complaints and Representations — Caerphilly Homes

Page 22 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHa@ﬁ\thgh Council


http://www.democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s21863/Complaints%20and%20Representations%20-%20Caerphilly%20Homes.pdf

Good practice example

Ty Bedwellty is a Sheltered Housing Scheme in Caerphilly County Borough. It is a block of
individual flats with a shared communal area. The residents are capable of independent living
but have the back up of a ‘warden’ on site to help with any difficulties. The Council told us that
for this scheme it identified additional resources as the residents of the scheme were
considered to be vulnerable, and it needed to be completed quickly.

Introduction

The scheme was updated in accordance with the Welsh Quality Housing Standard (WHQS).
The residents we spoke with were extremely impressed with the process and the way in which
the works were carried out. We found that this was not consistent across the experience of
residents in the other three sheltered housing schemes we spoke to. The apparent reasons for
this are set out below.

Communication

All the residents said the Council’s communication with them about the improvement works
was excellent. The Council held a meeting with the residents before the improvement works
started. At that meeting the Council explained what improvement works it would carry out,
what it would mean for residents, as well as a timeline of the works. The Council told residents
what the work was going to be, and the choices that they could have.

How the work was carried out

There seem to be two reasons for such high satisfaction levels at Ty Bedwellty. Firstly, there
seemed to be a systematic approach to the work. Two flats were being upgraded at a time and
all the required materials were delivered to the site in one container. The second reason
seems to be that residents who were having the work carried out were moved temporarily into
the two empty flats in the scheme whilst the work to their flats was completed. The residents
were therefore able to avoid the mess and dust from the works.

Each of the vacated flats could be worked on quickly and without the worry of the resident
being there. We were told that each flat took around two weeks to complete. It was also
advantageous there was one team of workers who were available to complete the work.

We were also told that the Tenant Liaison Officers helped the residents pack their belongings,
and the Warden was the main point of contact between the scheme and the WHQS team.

Page 23 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂ_@Bugh Council




Additional survey questions

73  We asked the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed additional questions in
relation to their home to provide further insight for the Council.

Exhibit 8: summary of tenants’ and leaseholders’ views about other aspects of their
homes

HEATING
34% of residents find it

difficult to heat their homes to a
comfortable level in the winter.

DAMP

34% of residents have damp in

some parts of their homes

SATISFACTION WITH OVERALL
HOUSING SERVICE

T 8% of residents are satisfied
with the Council’s housing service

SATISFACTION WITH NEIGHBOURHOOD

7 6% of residents are satisfied
with their neighbourhood as a
place to live

ISICIC)

Heating

74  We asked all tenants and leaseholders we surveyed if they find it difficult to heat
their homes to a comfortable level in the winter. Thirty-four per cent told us that
they find it difficult and 66% do not find it difficult to heat their home to a
comfortable level in winter. Responses differed according to the compliance status
of homes with 36% of tenants and leaseholders in non-compliant properties
reporting it difficult to heat their home to a comfortable level compared to 23% of
those tenants and leaseholders in acceptable fail properties and 16% of tenants
and leaseholders in WHQS compliant properties.

75  We asked the 175 tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who said they have
difficulty in heating their home to a comfortable level why. Twenty-eight per cent
said it was is due to a lack of draught proofing, for 19% it was a lack of insulation,

Page 24 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpﬁha(gﬁ\tﬂ_@ﬁugh Council



76

77

for 16% the cause was an old or poor heating system, and for 15% the reason was
the affordability of fuel.

Forty-two per cent of those 65 Upper Rhymney Valley respondents who said they
have difficulty in heating their home to a comfortable level identified draught
proofing as the cause but just 10% of the 51 Eastern Valley respondents identified
this as the cause. Twenty-four per cent of the 51 Eastern Valley respondents
attributed old/poor heating systems as a cause compared to just 12% of the 65
respondents in the Upper Rhymney Valley

Thirty-eight per cent of those who told us that they find it difficult to heat their home
to a comfortable level gave another reason. Almost all of these people identified
issues relating to their windows as the cause for their difficulty in heating their
homes. A number stated that their windows are not well fitted leading to drafts.
Some said that their windows are currently non-double glazed. A small number of
people noted that their radiators are insufficient to heat their rooms and the location
of homes was a contributory factor for a very small number of people.

Damp

78

79

80

81

We asked tenants and leaseholders we surveyed if there is any damp in their
home. Thirty-two per cent told us that they have damp in their home and this tends
to be only slightly more evident with non-compliant properties (34%). We found no
difference between the three geographical areas in tenants’ and leaseholders’
responses to this question.

Most of the 162 respondents who reported that they have damp in their home
generally said they saw evidence of damp in their house from visible mould (62%)
and to a lesser extent visible wet patches (26%) and condensation on windows
(14%).

Sixty-seven per cent of the 63 Upper Rhymney Valley respondents who reported
damp identified visible mould compared to 56% of the 54 Eastern Valley and 62%
of the 45 Lower Rhymney Valley respondents.

Seventy-five per cent of the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed who reported
that they have damp said that they had reported this to their landlord. Reporting
varied across the housing areas with 31% of the Lower Rhymney Valley
respondents not reporting the damp to their landlord compared to 27% of Upper
Rhymney Valley and 19% of Eastern Valley respondents. Cracks in the walls and
missing roof tiles were common causes of damp identified by respondents but a
small number of respondents attributed their damp to the cavity insulation.

Satisfaction with the Housing Service

82

Overall, 78% of the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed were satisfied with the
Council’s housing service, with 10% dissatisfied and 11% not sure either way.

Page 25 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHa(gﬁ\tﬂ_@%ugh Council



83

84

85

Satisfaction varies across the three housing areas with 40% of the 177 Eastern
Valleys tenants and leaseholders, 32% of the 191 Upper Rhymney Valley, and
24% of the 146 Lower Rhymney Valley tenants and leaseholders being satisfied.
Tenant and leaseholder satisfaction with the housing service also varied across the
age groups with those aged below 54 less satisfied and those aged 45 to 54 the
least positive.

Seventy-seven per cent of those aged 25 to 34 were satisfied, this decreased to
72% for those aged 35 to 44 and 66% for those aged 45 to 54. Higher satisfaction
levels were recorded by those aged 55 or above: 78% of those aged 55 to 65 were
satisfied, 84% of those aged 65 to 74 and 86% of those aged over 75 satisfied.

Satisfaction with the neighbourhood

86

Eighty-six per cent of the tenants and leaseholders we surveyed are satisfied with
their neighbourhood as a place to live, with 98% of sheltered housing tenants
expressing satisfaction. Tenant and leaseholder satisfaction increased with age
with the lowest levels of satisfaction being those aged less than 34 and the highest
levels being for those aged over 55. We found no difference in the responses of
tenants and leaseholders living in the three geographical housing areas to this
question.

Page 26 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂ_@@ugh Council



Appendix 1

Overview of survey participants

The survey sample of 514 people consisted of 451 who live in non-compliant homes
(88%), 26 who live in fully compliant homes (5%) and 37 who live in homes with

acceptable fails (7%).

Seventy-three per cent of the tenants and leaseholders told us that the Council has
undertaken improvement works to their home to meet the WHQS in the past five years.
Twenty-six per cent said that they had had not any improvements and one per cent did
not know. Seventy-one per cent of those tenants and leaseholders living in non-compliant
households and 78% of those living in acceptable fails reported that the Council has done
some improvement works to their homes to meet WHQS.

Two hundred and twenty-five (62%) of those tenants and leaseholders who had had
works completed in the past five years have received only internal works, 30% had
received both internal and external works with 12% only receiving external works and 2%
only communal areas. These data reflect the Council’s approach of delivering
internal/external works concurrently in different communities. Thirty-nine per cent of those
tenants and leaseholders who had had works in the Eastern Valleys had received both
internal and external works with this figure being 24% in the Upper Rhymney Valley and

29% in the Lower Rhymney Valley.

Exhibit 9: overview of the tenancy type, age and length of tenancy for people who

completed the survey

Tenancy type

Number Percentage
Tenant 489 95%
Leaseholder 25 5%
Total 514 100%
Age of respondents

Number Percentage
16-34 60 1%
35-44 47 9%
45-54 74 14%
55-64 93 18%
65-74 110 21%
75+ 130 25%
Total 514 100%

Page 27 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caermea(gﬁ\tﬂ_ﬁgugh Council



Length of tenancy

Number Percentage
Less than one year 31 6%
One to two years 34 7%
Two to three years 38 7%
Three to five years 55 11%
More than five years 356 69%
Can’t remember 0 0%
Total 514 100%

Page 28 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpﬁﬂa(gﬁ\tmeugh Council



Appendix 2

Survey questions

Exhibit 10: Caerphilly County Borough Council: Welsh Housing Quality Standard Survey:

Q1 Are you a council tenant or leaseholder?
Read out - Tick one box only

O TR BRI s miimminsnssosasinas s (A s S s s A T v I:ll

Leaseholder ............... T R — I:l2

Tenant of a leaseholder...... S R S S RS sR I:l3
Q2 All respondents

How long have you lived in your home? {or if a leaseholder: How long have you been a

leaseholder?)

Read out - Tick one box only

Lessithan T Yeara s Dl

T I —— [
2 10 3 YRATS wercitsivsssst s s s s o s G b T T e s R D3
310 B POBTS wsininnsmriios s s v R e s s s e A D“

Maorethan Syeardersrrmmsrrrnmnaruranersnsarainrunssnnmstrnes DS
GEN T TEMEMBER i s G s s Ds
Views on council housing services and improvements
Q3a Council tenants & Leaseholders (Q1 = Codes 1 & 2 only)

Has the council told you about the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS)? Read out if no/
don't know: The Welsh Housing Quality Standard requires all social landlords to improve their
housing stock to an acceptable level by December 2020.

Q3b If yes, how did the Council tell you?
Tick all that apply

Other (please specify)

Q4 Leaseholders only (Q1 = Code 2)
Has the council informed you about your maintenance responsibilities as a leaseholder?

Yes...

Page 29 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpﬁﬂa@ﬁ\tm%ugh Council



Q5a All respondents
In the past five years has the council done any improvement works to your home to meet the
Welsh Housing Quality Standard?

YeSiswsmassssonsswsssmsssvssssssssivenss |:|1 Go to Q5b

NO coreersesses s seses e [ Skip to Q8

Don't know/ can't remember........ |:|3 Go to Q5b
Q5b Council tenants only (Q1 = Code 1)

If yes, to what parts of your home has the council done the improvement works?
Read out - Tick all that apply

Internal only (for example, kitchen, bathroom, central heating)
External only (for example windows or roofs)

Communal areas (for example staircases, stairwells) ... e e

Loy L=y L= s W o = | T —————

Q5¢ Leaseholders & tenants of leaseholders only (Q1 = Codes 2 & 3)
If yes, to what parts of your home has the council done the improvement works?
Read out - Tick all that apply

External only (for example Windows Or rOOfS) ...t senee e e sseesseseaesnas

Communal areas (for example staircases, stairwells)

Structurs of the DUITO N e s v s T T e eI

Q6 Council tenants & Leaseholders (Q1 = Codes 1 & 2 only): Those who recall improvement works
(Q5b = Code 1)
Did the council: Read out - Tick one box on each row

Don't know/
Yes No can't remember

Explain to you why the improvement works
were needed to achieve WHQS? |:| |:| |:|

Complete the improvement works when you
were told they would be? |:| I:' I:'

Include you in the design or specification of any

improvement works for example, to your I:' I:' I:'

kitchen or bathroom?

Page 30 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHa(gﬁwtﬂ_lﬂaBugh Council



Q7a Those who recall improvement works (Q5a = Code 1)
Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the improvement works that the council has
carried out to your home?
Read out - Tick one box only

Very satisfied

L T

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied.......cciiiiiiiiiiiii . |:|3

DTS S At SIS s eeuuwsessumensissnsn s orasumsss s oD ST OSSR SR TSR SR SRS I:l4

ety disSats B sy T T S SR, l:ls
Q7b All respondents

Why do you say that?

Qs All respondents
Do you know if the Council is going to make any improvements to your home in the next 2 years
such as a new kitchen, bathroom, roof, windows, central heating, electrics, external doors, mains
powered smoke detectors, gardens and external storage? (all respondents — although only state
external works with leaseholders)

Q9a All respondents
Have you refused to have improvements made to your home by the council, for example,
windows, doors, roof, kitchen, bathroom, rewiring or access?

Page 31 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpma(gﬁwtﬂ_lﬂaaugh Council



Q9b Which works did you refuse?
Tick all that apply - Unprompted

L 4o o] 1 Ds

L AT ol L L L Ds
DNt RO o e I B BT rvwsvusssmmess s s o T s D7
Q9c Why did you refuse?

Tick all that apply - Unprompted

Health'issues:(do NOt SPECifiy] cswsrssmsmmmassmessssssssvemnsremsasssssosssssssssssssiessasssssssssssssns I:]l
Concerns about thediSTURTION vousuomssimes st s o s s I:IZ
Proposed plan for the work to be done was not CONVENIieNnt ......cccccieneiecceeneenranecenas I:'3
Uncertain about the nature of the Work ... I:'4
Happy with the existing state of My ROME ... e e eseessaesseseas I:'S
Prefer NOL £0 SAY .. s e I:'s

Other reasons

Other reasons (please specify)

Views on general housing services and the condition of your home/

neighbourhood

Q10a All respondents
Do you find it difficult to heat your home to a comfortable level in the winter?

Page 32 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpﬁﬂa(gﬁ\twugh Council



Q10b If yes, why is that?
Tick all that apply - Unprompted

72 0] o Tl a1 T o PR Dl
5 3 2

Lack:of‘adequate iINSUlation s D
Lackeoflagged pipes) tankumnrmmmmasmmsisaremmsmssisswemmsnmsssimssvomis I:l3
Draught Proofing  smssmemsesserssmsmssnsnmesrame ey v S s SaAea S BT aRe S D4
§ . . % 5
Ol INeTEIENT BOllEr s oo s s R S e R T RO I:I
Old/ poor Heating sy ste Mo s mm o A S S SR I:]s
17O T P ORI O TY covvrvross T S T T S Y S R, I:]7

Other reasons (please specify)

Qlla All respondents
Is there any damp in any part of your home?

Ql1b If yes, how do you see the damp in your house?
Tick all that apply - Unprompted

Visible:awet patches oncmmmnmmmmmamsimassnnnsaesrasma e I:'l

L L = L R R — I:'Z
i s 5 5 « 3

Condensation on windows for example during cooking or on cold mornings .............. I:'

Visiblemould s mnes i s s s I:'4
DO KIOW rssswsosssmrnsmsmnsssrssssss s om0 S T RS S SR RS I:'S

Other reasons (please specify)

Qlid Have you reported the damp to your landlord?

Page 33 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpma(gﬁwtﬂ_lﬂaﬁugh Council



Q12 How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the following:
Read out - Tick one box on each row

Neither

satisfied
Very nor Very
satisfied  Satisfied dissatisfied Dissatisfied dissatisfied

a) Tenants only (Q1 = Code 1) The

overall condition of the kitchen in |:| I:' |:| |:| I:'

your home?

b) Tenants only (Q1 = Code 1) The

overall condition of the bathroom in |:| I:' |:| |:| I:'

your home?

¢) The outside of your home such as

external walls, doors, windows and I:' I:' I:l I:' I:'

boundary fences/ walls?

Ql2d All respondents
Why do you say that?

Q13 Council tenants & Leaseholders (Q1 = Code 1 & 2 only)
Can you easily and quickly contact the housing service at times that are convenient for you?

Page 34 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpma(gﬁwtﬂ_lﬂaﬁugh Council



Q14 All respondents
Thinking about your home and neighbourhood, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you:
Read out - Tick one box on each row

Neither
satisfied
Very nor Very
satisfied  Satisfied dissatisfied Dissatisfied dissatisfied

Th il li

et - O O O O O
b) With ighbourhood

placelto!;'ﬁfl;;nEIE oumeosass l:I D D |:| |:|

Qldc All respondents

Why do you say that?
Qis All respondents
Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the housing service you receive from the
Council?
Very, satisfied s s s e o e Se s s s g s Dl

Satisfied .o s smre et S R DZ
=y ey e E]3
DTS tTS IO v s S e T R B A T e e e T I:"l

NETH: ClISSTTEITEI cssvimssnnmnsnsssnsn s iessssss oS oA e S S SR A SR ESR 83 [:I5

Qle All respondents
Is there anything else you would like to say about Council housing services that you have not
already mentioned?

Q17 All respondents
Which of the following of age groups do you fall in?
Read out - Tick one box only

Page 35 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — CaerpHa@&tm%ugh Council



Appendix 3

Infographic summarising survey results

Exhibit 11: infographic summarising survey results

WELSH HOUSING QUALITY
STANDARD

In 2002, the Welsh Government introduced the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) to help
improve the quality of social housing in Wales. The Standard means that social housing landlords -
such as councils and housing associations - must ensure that homes are in a good state of repair,
are warm and secure, and have up-to-date kitchens and bathrooms by 2020.

Caerphilly County Borough Council has been making improvements to its council houses in order
to comply with the Standard. We wanted to know what the Caerphilly residents (tenants and
leaseholders) think about their homes and the Council's housing service. Many residents have
already had works completed but some are still waiting for work to start. So we spoke to residents
about their experiences of the Council’s planned or completed work and here's what they had to
say...

i * I
Most residents are happy with the condition of Residents’ means tenants and

their homes and the WHQS improvements the leaseholders.
Council has made. Residents are less happy
with the outside of their homes.

OVERALL SATISFACTION WITH WHQS
WORKS : . :
Most residents are satisfied with the Council's

81% of residents who have had housing service

works are satisfied
CONTACTING THE COUNCIL
KITCHEN

79% of tenants are satisfied
with the overall condition of

their kitchen
SATISFACTION WITH OVERALL
BATHROOM HOUSING SERVICE

79% of tenants are satisfied
with the overall condition of A o ( g sen
their bathroom

SATISFACTION WITH NEIGHBOURHOOD

TIMELINESS OF WORK

T1% of residents told us that the
Council completed the works when
they said they would

DESIGN

67% of those residents who
have had work were included in the
design of the improvement works

OUTSIDE OF HOME

59% of residents are satisfied
with how the outside of their
homes looks

SICICIGCIEIE®

Page 36 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpmla(gﬁ\tﬂ_%8ugh Council



Around a third of residents have problems Residents do not always get the information that
heating their homes or experience damp they need about WHQS

HEATING INFORMATION

I

EXPLAINING THE NEED FOR THE WORKS

5

174
WALES AUDIT OFFICE
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU

The telephone interviews for Caerphilly County Borough Council ran from 23rd April
until 1st May 2018.

The Wales Audit Office requested from the Council the full list of its residents. The
Wales Audit Office then spoke to a sample of around 5% of all of the Council's tenants
and leaseholders. The sample of 514 respondents was divided between tenants and
leaseholders based on the WHQS compliance status of the 10,477 homes that the
Council provided. Homes can be fully compliant, non-compliant or acceptable fails.
The sample also reflects the WHQS status of homes across the area based on the data
provided by the Council. 489 tenants and 25 leaseholders responded to the survey.

Page 37 of 38 - Service User Perspective Review — Caerpmla(gﬁ\tmgugh Council



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone.: 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon testun: 029 2032 0660

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru



mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/

Appendix 2

=

>

WALES AUDIT OFFICE ArChW'Iy.dd Cyffredinol Cymru
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU Auditor General for Wales

Welsh Housing Quality Standard
follow-up report — Caerphilly County
Borough Council

Audit year: 2018-19

Date issued: January 2019

Document reference: 994A2018-19




This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions.

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention
is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor
General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding
disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at
infoofficer@audit.wales.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffén yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

This document is also available in Welsh.

The team who delivered the work comprised Gareth Jones, Gwilym Bury and Allison Rees
programme managed by Non Jenkins under the direction of Huw Rees.

Page 152


mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales

Contents

The Council has responded positively to our June 2017 Welsh Housing Quality Standard

(WHQS) report and statutory recommendations by making significant improvements and

as a result we now conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by December 2020.
Summary report
Proposals for improvement

Detailed report

The Council has responded positively to our June 2017 Welsh Housing Quality Standard

(WHQS) report and statutory recommendations by making significant improvements and

as a result we now conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by December 2020

The Council has made significant progress in identifying the investment and
resources it needs to complete its WHQS programme by the end of 2020

The Council has taken steps to determine the value for money of its procurement

arrangements

8

9

10

There have been improvements to its WHQS performance reports, however, there

is still inconsistent and inaccurate reporting of performance

The Council now has measurable performance targets to effectively monitor the

remainder of its WHQS programme

The Council has strengthened its arrangements to meet its statutory landlord
responsibilities

The Council has invested additional resources to enhance its WHQS programme
management but still lacks a current local housing strategy and does not always

produce comprehensive Equality Impact Assessments for key housing policy
documents

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Caerphilly County Borough Council WHQS review action plan — updated

October 2018

Page 3 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 153

11

13

13

14

16



Summary report

Summary

Why the Welsh Housing Quality Standard is important

1 In 2001, the Welsh Government set out their long-term vision for housing in Wales
entitled Better Homes for People in Wales. The Welsh Government then
introduced the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) in 2002, with revised
guidance issued in 2008 to implement this vision. The Welsh Government
developed the WHQS to provide a common target standard for all housing in
Wales and is primarily used to assess the social housing provided by councils
(consistent with the term used in the rest of the report) and housing associations
(social landlords). The Welsh Government expected all social landlords in Wales to
adopt the standard and devise realistic programmes for bringing all their homes up
to it as soon as possible, but by the end of 2020 at the latest, and to maintain
standards into the future.

2 As at March 2018, Caerphilly County Borough Council (the Council) owned 10,801
properties. In August 2018, the Council reported that 3,501 properties met the
standard to ‘full compliance’ having had certain improvement works undertaken,
with a further 794 properties meeting the standard as ‘acceptable fails’ as defined
by the Welsh Government in its guidance on compliance. 6,506 were not fully
compliant as at 31 March 2018*.

What we looked at

3 Between May and October 2018, we carried out a review of the Council’'s progress
in addressing the three statutory recommendations in our Welsh Housing Quality
Standard report issued to the Council in June 2017.

4 Our 2017 statutory recommendations were:

1 Welsh Government Statistical Release. Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS), as at
31 March 2018. ‘This annual release presents information from the annual data collection
measuring the progress made by social landlords in achieving the Welsh Housing Quality
Standard (WHQS) for their stock. The release covers compliance with the standard as at
31 March 2018 and information on compliance with the WHQS by individual component
type. Full compliance refers to dwellings where the WHQS standard is achieved for all
individual elements, but there can be situations where achieving the standard for an
individual element is not possible. Such situations may include the cost or timing of the
work, residents choosing not to have the work done or where there are physical
constraints to the work. In these instances, the social landlords may record one or more
elements as acceptable fails. Where a dwelling contains one or more acceptable fails, but
all other elements are compliant, the dwelling is deemed to be compliant subject to
acceptable fails.’

Page 4 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 154



Exhibit 1: recommendations on action to achieve the WHQS by 2020

Statutory Recommendations

The Council should take urgent action to achieve WHQS by 2020. It should:
R1 By September 2017, develop a comprehensive, overarching, financial and

This programme should:

. establish the full scope of investment needed in the Council’s housing
stock based on accurate, comprehensive and up-to-date stock condition
information;

. set out how the Council, by March 2018, will:
- review its procurement arrangements to ensure value for money;

- provide clear and transparent information to members and tenants
about the current position of the programme and a commitment to
stakeholders with accurate projected completion dates; and

- secure the resources needed to deliver the programme by 2020.

. contain clear and measurable milestones and relevant performance
measures for delivering the programme up to 2020; and
. set out the programme management, governance and accountability

responsibilities and arrangements so that urgent remedial action can be
taken if further slippage occurs and those tasked with delivering the

operational programme setting out how the Council will achieve WHQS by 2020.

programme can be held to account at appropriate decision-making levels.

R2  Assure itself that it is meeting its statutory landlord responsibilities by
ensuring that:

Council’'s non-compliance arrangements applied to them fully; and

of these surveys are robust.

. all properties have a valid gas safety certificate in place, or are having the

. arrangements for undertaking asbestos surveys and recording the results

R3  Ensure it has sufficient project management capacity to deliver the
Council’s WHQS programme effectively by 2020.

How we approached the review

5 We undertook the follow up review work in two phases. During the first stage we

reviewed the Council's WHQS progress reports to Cabinet, Policy and Resources

scrutiny committee and Caerphilly Homes task group since 1 November 2017. In
this first stage of the review we established the Council’'s own assessment of

progress. The output from Phase One was fed back to senior Council officers and

the relevant Cabinet Member in July 2018. The Phase One review informed the
planning and delivery of Phase Two.

6 During the second phase, we interviewed officers, contractor representatives and

members and visited some properties undergoing WHQS works. We sought to

Page 5 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 155



verify the Council’s progress on delivering the WHQS programme and the effect of
that progress on the Council’'s achievement of the WHQS by the end of 2020.

7 As part of a separate project, we surveyed a sample of 500 tenants about their
experiences of the Council's WHQS programme during April and May 2018. A
report on this Service User Perspective project will be issued separately.

Overall findings

8 Overall, we found that: The Council has responded positively to our June 2017
Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) report and statutory
recommendations by making significant improvements and as a result we
now conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by December 2020. We came
to this conclusion because:

the Council has made significant progress in identifying the investment and
resources it needs to complete its WHQS programme by the end of 2020;

the Council has taken steps to determine the value for money of its
procurement arrangements;

there have been improvements to its WHQS performance reports, however
there is still inconsistent and inaccurate reporting of performance;

the Council now has measurable performance targets to effectively monitor
the remainder of its WHQS programme;

the Council has strengthened its arrangements to meet its statutory landlord
responsibilities; and

the Council has invested additional resources to enhance its WHQS
programme management but still lacks a current Local Housing strategy and
does not always produce comprehensive Equality Impact Assessments for
key housing policy documents.

Page 6 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council

Page 156



Proposals for improvement

9 The table below sets out the proposals for improvement that we have identified
following this review.

Exhibit 2: proposals for improvement

Proposals for improvement

P1  The Council should ensure that members and tenants receive accurate WHQS
performance information regularly about its progress towards achieving its 2020
programme deadline.

P2  The Council should agree a Local Housing Strategy to set out its long-term
vision for the future priorities for homes in Caerphilly.

P3  The Council should ensure that Equality Impact Assessments are undertaken
consistently.

Page 7 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council

Page 157



Detailed report

The Council has responded positively to our June
2017 Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS)
report and statutory recommendations by making
significant improvements and as a result we now
conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by
December 2020

9

10

11

The Council has responded positively to our June 2017 WHQS report which
concluded ‘the majority of tenants’ homes remain below the Welsh Housing Quality
Standard due to long-standing inefficient and ineffective programme management
and the Council is unlikely to achieve the Standard by 2020’.

Appendix 1 contains the Council’s action plan to address the three statutory
recommendations made in our 2017 WHQS report. Following our presentation on
the 2017 WHQS report to Cabinet on 1 November 2017, the Council set up a
Cross Party working group of members of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny
Committee to consider the Council’s progress in addressing our statutory
recommendations. This Cross Party working group reported their satisfaction that
progress was being made to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee on 27
February 2018.

The Council is making a number of positive changes to the planning, management,
delivery and monitoring of the WHQS programme. In particular, we note that the
Council:

a. is undertaking a full stock condition survey of all Council owned properties;

b. is improving WHQS project management and capacity;

C. has a comprehensive financial and operational programme outlining how it
will achieve WHQS by the end of 2020;

d. has a Caerphilly Homes Asset Management Strategy which is focused on
maintaining WHQS after 2020;

e. has a comprehensive 30-year Housing Investment Business Plan;

f. has made significant improvements in its arrangements to meet its statutory
landlord responsibilities;

g. has a more comprehensive asbestos management policy;

h. has sought to improve its reporting of performance of its WHQS programme;
and

i. has increased the number of WHQS fully compliant properties from 5.7% in
2016-17 to 39.76% in 2017-18.

Page 8 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 158



12 During this review, we also note that there are other aspects of the WHQS
programme and wider Council housing programme that require improvement. In
particular:

a. there remains inconsistent and inaccurate reporting of WHQS performance
to members and the public despite the Council introducing a performance
data validation process and WHQS strategic scorecard;

b. the continued lack of a Local Housing Strategy; and

C. a limited Equalities Impact Assessment for the Caerphilly Homes Asset
Management Strategy.

13  The remainder of this report provides the context and detail of how the Council is
addressing our statutory recommendations.

The Council has made significant progress in identifying the
investment and resources it needs to complete its WHQS
programme by the end of 2020

14  The Council has made substantial progress in developing a comprehensive
financial and operational programme outlining how the Council will achieve WHQS
by the end of 2020.

15  Since our 2017 review, the Council has embarked on surveying all Council
properties that do not meet the WHQS standard. The Council now has a more
accurate understanding of the individual requirements of each Council property
which is improving the planning and delivery of its WHQS work. The Council
intends to complete these surveys by December 2018.

16  Since our 2017 review the Council has established average costs of each internal
and external elements required to achieve WHQS. The Council can now more
accurately forecast future programme expenditure to inform its business plan.

17  As aresult of the surveying non-WHQS compliant properties, the Council is now
predicting an increase in the overall projected costs to deliver WHQS by the end of
2020 from £220 million to £250 million. The Council will need Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) contributions and an element of ‘borrowing' to fund the difference,
however, the amount needed is within the Council’s agreed borrowing threshold
set up at the start of the WHQS programme.

18  The Council’'s IT asset management system — called Keystone — records all the
data related to each individual social housing property and includes the costs
associated when updating each property to WHQS. Keystone is critical to
monitoring compliance with each of the components used to assess progress in
achieving WHQS.

19  The Council's HRA Business Plan, Caerphilly Homes Asset Management Strategy
and other associated detailed documents we reviewed demonstrate that the
Council has a detailed costed plan to achieve WHQS by 2020. The Council’s in-

Page 9 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 159



20

21

22

house workforce, or Direct Labour Organisation (DLO) as it is also known, as well
as private contractors are delivering the WHQS programme.

Following the introduction of the Council’'s Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) in
2017, the Council’s ability to engage local specialist contractors in a timely manner
to complete WHQS works on properties has improved. At the time of this review,
about 80 contractors were available through the DPS.

At the time of our fieldwork for our previous review in March and April 2017, the
Council did not have a contractor in place to undertake the external works to
tenants’ homes in the Lower Rhymney Valley. Through the DPS and the Council's
DLO, all areas of the county now have WHQS work planned.

The Council spent £42 million on WHQS programme delivery in 2017-18. This
represents the highest annual amount since WHQS programme delivery started
and reflects the significant increase in fully compliant homes in 2017-18.

The Council has taken steps to determine the value for money
of its procurement arrangements

23

24

25

Since June 2017, the Council commissioned an independent review of its single
source supplier? arrangements for its WHQS programme and undertook an
exercise to compare costs of its DLO workforce to those of external contractors.

The independent review of the single source supplier looked at 72 products,
purchased by the Council for its WHQS programme that have the highest annual
expenditure. The review concluded that the arrangement provides value for money
for the Council for the products used, although some rates could be improved. The
review gave two recommendations:

° ensure that the Council pays the most competitive prices for plasterboard;
and
° ensure a consistent classification of products that would assist any future

pricing reviews.
Cabinet received a report in November 2017 which included the findings of the
Council's comparison of the costs undertaken by private contractors and the
Council's DLO team. The Council reported that its DLO are 20% more expensive
than the private contractors due to a number of factors including superannuation,
living wage, leave, sickness, overheads linked to support service costs. In its
report, the Council set out factors that it had used to consider the value for money
that it was achieving through its arrangements. These factors included greater
tenant satisfaction reported from those receiving works from the DLO, comparative
performance of the in-house and external contractors, reduced number of
complaints.

2In 2012, the Council entered into a single source supply arrangement for all materials in
relation to Council-house maintenance and the WHQS programme.

Page 10 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 160



There have been improvements to its WHQS performance
reports, however there is still inconsistent and inaccurate
reporting of performance

26  The Council has taken action to ensure that key WHQS performance information
and key dates are on Keystone in a more timely manner.

27  Inearly 2018, the Council reviewed the process of performance reporting and the
inputting of performance data onto Keystone. This review highlighted delays and
occasional incorrect recording of performance. As a result, the Council introduced
revised weekly responsibilities and timescales to record WHQS performance into
Keystone. All WHQS project managers interviewed by us for this review are aware
of the revised responsibilities and timescales for the recording of performance.

28  The accuracy of the Council's performance recording and reporting is now subject
to a more rigorous validation process. Following our Phase One feedback to the
Council, the Chief Housing Officer requested the Council’s Internal Audit service to
review the WHQS data validation processes. This took place during August to
October 2018.

29  The report concludes that:
‘The control procedures which were in place were:

In need of improvement — based on the results of the audit work
undertaken it is considered that the control framework that was in place
was in need of improvement. In May 2018 however, new procedures
were introduced which are well documented and set out the processes
for relevant staff to follow. These address the control issues going
forward, but procedures now need to be developed to address historical
issues identified by the audit. In addition, staff resources, in the form of a
dedicated team of Officers supported by the Housing Technical Manager
and Housing Group Accountant, have been made available to evolve and
introduce new validation processes to address the main subject of this
audit.

Compliance with the controls are considered to be:

In need of improvement — based on the results of the audit work
undertaken it is considered that the control framework that was in place
was in need of improvement. In May 2018 however, new procedures
were introduced which are well documented and set out the processes
for relevant staff to follow. These address the control issues going
forward, but procedures now need to be developed to address historical
issues identified by the audit. In addition, staff resources, in the form of a
dedicated team of Officers supported by the Housing Technical Manager
and Housing Group Accountant, have been made available to evolve and
introduce new validation processes to address the main subject of this
audit.

Page 11 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 161



30

31

32

33

34

35

36

Due to the levels of Conclusions above the Chief Housing Officer will be invited to
the next audit committee.’

The Council’s 2018 annual performance submission to the Welsh Government
states that 39.76% of its properties are fully compliant with WHQS as of 31 March
2018. However, this is not the figure it has used in any of its end of year
performance reports to members since its annual performance submission to the
Welsh Government. This provides members with an inaccurate picture of the
Council’s performance.

The Council reported its 2017-18 WHQS performance in three end of year
performance reports during September and October 2018:

a. Well-being Objective 5;
b. Caerphilly Homes end of year performance report; and
C. the Council's Annual Performance Report.

We found discrepancies in different aspects of the 2017-18 WHQS performance in
these reports and there was no clear rationale as to why the Council reported
different performance information in the different reports. In particular, we note that
the overall WHQS compliance rate in these reports was lower than the
performance reported to the Welsh Government in August 2018. Therefore, WHQS
performance for 2017-18 was under reported to members and the public after it
made the submission to Welsh Government.

To improve WHQS performance reporting, a WHQS strategic scorecard
accompanies performance reports to elected members. The scorecard shows:

a. levels of compliance for internal and external works;

b. weekly targets and actual key performance for the completion of internal and
external works. A Red, Amber, Green (RAG) system highlights whether
weekly targets are achieved or not;

tenant satisfaction levels;

c
d. targets for each quarter up to March 2020;

e projected and actual programme expenditure until March 2020; and
f.

the number of WHQS fully compliant properties.

We found that the programme targets are not clear and the number of compliant
properties in the end of year 2017-18 scorecard is different to the number reported
to the Welsh Government. Additionally, the scorecard has inaccurately recorded
the previous year’s performance.

The WHQS strategic scorecard shows future quarterly targets for internal and
external works and overall compliance. However, the design of the scorecard
means it is difficult to read the actual targets and would benefit from presenting this
information more clearly.

In our previous report issued in June 2017, we noted that the Council’'s WHQS
performance reports focused more on completion of internal and external works
and not full compliance. The Council now clearly reports the number of properties

Page 12 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 162



that are fully compliant, but due to inconsistent and inaccurate performance
information reported to members, officers, tenants and leaseholders, effective
challenge and oversight of WHQS progress is hampered.

The Council now has measurable performance targets to
effectively monitor the remainder of its WHQS programme

37

38

39

In 2015, the Council commenced WHQS work on its properties. The annual rate of
properties fully compliant for 2015-16 and 2016-17 was low at 2.5% and 5.7%
respectively. The number of fully compliant properties increased significantly to
39.76% for 2017-18. As at the end of September 2018, the Council reported to the
Audit Committee on 16 October that its overall compliance rate was 51%.

The Council has weekly completion targets for both internal and external works.
The Council’'s WHQS team monitor the weekly delivery of both internal and
external works and this monitoring is showing that internal works are delivering to
target but the external works are slightly behind schedule.

All officers and members we interviewed are clear that March 2020 is its deadline
to fully deliver its WHQS programme although the Welsh Government’s deadline is
December 2020. However, the WHQS strategic scorecard (as at 28 September
2018) gives the projected deadline for full internal works compliance as 1 May
2020 and 20 May 2020 for full external works compliance. Setting a deadline that is
earlier than the Welsh Government deadline is prudent and allows for potential
slippage to complete external WHQS works due to any severe weather in the
winters of 2018 and 2019.

The Council has strengthened its arrangements to meet its
statutory landlord responsibilities

40

41

42

At the time of our fieldwork for our previous review in March and April 2017, there
were over 400 council properties which did not have a valid CP12 gas safety
certificate. As at 28 April 2017, just over 98% of the council’s properties had a valid
CP12 gas safety certificate meaning that 221 properties did not.

During our fieldwork for this review, we found that the Council has made significant
improvements in its arrangements to meet its statutory landlord responsibilities.
The Council has made revisions to its gas safety procedures which are now fully
compliant with UK Health and Safety Executive guidance for landlords. Where
tenants do not provide access to their homes to allow the Council to undertake gas
servicing, there is staged approach for the Council to gain access.

If the Council cannot gain access through these steps, the Council’s policy states
that the Council can take legal proceedings to gain access. Since the introduction
of the new policy on commencing legal proceedings the Council has obtained
access to 50 properties where it has been determined that there has been a

Page 13 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 163



breach of their tenancy agreement, by the issuing of formal Notices of Seeking
Possession (NOSP).

43  Inthe Council's regulatory proposal for improvement progress report for its Audit
committee on 24 July 2018, it reported that 99.3% of its properties now have the
gas servicing certificate. Those properties where a certificate had expired and
access was not agreed were subject to ongoing legal proceedings.

44  The Council’s asbestos procedures comply with Health and Safety Executive
guidance and no property has WHQS or other repairs work undertaken without a
full survey being available prior to the commencement of work. To address our
statutory recommendation, the Council appointed an asbestos technical officer to
coordinate the completion of all asbestos surveys and ensure the recording of
asbestos surveys onto Keystone. The officer ensures that the findings of the
surveys are available to operational staff. The Council now has clear arrangements
and a dedicated member of staff and anticipates that all properties will have
asbestos information recorded on Keystone by January 2019.

The Council has invested additional resources to enhance its
WHQS programme management but still lacks a current Local
Housing strategy and does not always produce comprehensive
Equality Impact Assessments for key Housing policy documents

45  The Council is improving project management capacity in delivering and managing
the WHQS programme. A new role of housing technical manager has been created
and appointed to increase project manager capacity. This officer oversees the
WHQS programme, the housing repairs team as well as the work of the surveyors
and Gas Servicing team.

46  The Council has also appointed an additional foreman, assistant project manager
and surveyor to increase its capacity to manage and deliver its WHQS.

47  The Council is alert to the prospect that properties currently fully compliant as an
‘acceptable fail’ due to residents’ choice®, may become available for WHQS
internal and or external works in the future. The Housing Repairs team is creating a
new sub-team to complete works in those homes if they become available and the
DLO or external contractor are not working in the area where the property has
become available for works.

3 Source: Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS), as at 31 March 2018. Welsh
Government press release dated 4 October 2018.

There can be situations where achieving the standard for an individual element is not
possible. Such situations may include the cost or timing of the work, residents choosing
not to have the work done or where there are physical constraints to the work. In these
instances, the landlords may record one or more element as acceptable fails.

Page 14 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 164



48

49

50

51

52

Although the Council’'s procedures for encouraging residents to allow access to
their homes for WHQS work are in line with the Welsh Government guidance the
Council does not have a robust system in place to periodically check if residents
change their minds. For example, the Council could after 2019 contact residents at
least once a year to offer previously refused WHQS works.

Our previous 2017 report highlighted that the Council did not have an up-to-date
local housing strategy. This remains the case.

During our fieldwork for this review, both officers and members expressed their
own views as to how housing should evolve and what the Council’s future
responsibilities are in providing social housing. Therefore, by not having a strategy
there is the potential to create a fragmented and inconsistent vision for the service.
The absence of a Local Housing Strategy also may prevent the Council from fully
demonstrating how it is addressing the five ways of working to meet the Well-being
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

The Council is considering and planning for the continuation of Caerphilly Homes
maintenance and investment beyond 2020. In September and October 2018, the
Caerphilly Homes Task Group, Policy and Resources scrutiny committee and
Cabinet considered a draft Caerphilly Homes asset management strategy. The
purpose of the strategy is to understand and commit to maintaining the quality of all
Council housing properties post-2020.

The Housing Asset Management Strategy did not include a comprehensive
Equality Impact Assessment. The Council did not consider it necessary for a full
Equality Impact Assessment, but during our review the explanation as to why was
not clear. At the time of our fieldwork, there has been few Equality Impact
Assessments in relation to Housing service change proposals were available to the
public or members to consider. The Council will need to assure itself that the
absence of an Equality Impact Assessment for key strategic decisions, does not
put it at risk of not complying with the 2010 Equality Act. The Council should also
assure itself that it fully demonstrates how it is addressing the five ways of working
which Councils are required to adopt to meet the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 (WFG Act).

Page 15 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough

Council Page 165



Appendix 1

This is the Council’s action plan to address the Wales Audit Office’s three
statutory recommendations made in our 2017 WHQS report:

WALES AUDIT OFFICE WHQS REVIEW — ACTION PLAN — AUGUST 2017

Recommendations Actions Progress /
Due Date

(D
@QRecommendation 1 1. Ensure that the Keystone Asset Database provides up to date survey MRL Sept 2017/
© information. Completed

|.A

OPevelop a comprehensive, overarching,
QYinancial and operational programme setting out
how the Council will achieve WHQS by 2020. 2. Review projected programme costs by replacing Savill's estimates with LA Sept 2017/
more accurate actual costs based on recently completed contract Completed
information.

3. Amend existing programme in order to reflect communities where work MRL Sept 2017/
has been completed, is currently ongoing or is planned. Programme to c leted
also incorporate a breakdown of the communities to clarify which streets ompiete
are included.

4. Ensure adequate resources to enable surveys to be completed at the MRL Ongoing

earliest opportunity in order to better inform future investment
requirements and budget forecasting.

Page 16 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough Council



Actions

LOT. ﬁRV\ 1
LI YVEA

Recommendations

Recommendation la

Review procurement arrangements to ensure
value for money.

1. Ensure adequate procurement arrangements are in place to cover all

aspects of the programme.

. Undertake an independent benchmarking exercise in relation to the single

source supply arrangement to assess value for money.

. Undertake an exercise to compare costs of the in-house workforce to

those of external contractors, whilst also considering quality and
performance to determine value for money.

. Introduce a flexible Dynamic Purchasing System for the external works in

the lower Rhymney valley, whilst also providing options to deliver
contracts for internal and external works throughout the borough.

. Contracts for internal works are in place until 2020 and were procured in

open competition. External work packages are tendered individually from
existing frameworks and more recently the D.P.S. Tenders are evaluated
on receipt and if deemed to be uncompetitive, the work is re-tendered in
an attempt to improve value for money.

MRL

KRW

MRL

MRL

MRL

Progress /
Due Date

April 2017/
Completed

March 2018/
Completed

March 2018/
Completed

April 2017/
Completed

Ongoing

Page 17 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough Council



Recommendations Actions Progress /
Due Date

Recommendation 1b 1. Review existing programme information being provided to members and
tenants and amend this to ensure it is accurate, easily understood and MRL March 2018/
Provide clear and transparent information to timely. Completed
members and tenants about the current position
of the programme and a commitment to 2. Review the way performance information is presented to all stakeholders SC/MRL December 2017/
stakeholders with accurate projected completion to ensure that this provides a good overview on the progress of the overall )
dates. programme is easily understood and timely. Ongoing
;DU Performance information is regularly being updated and amended to
improve the way data is presented.
Recommendation 1c 1. Business case approved for the appointment of additional staff and
'c'; operatives to support the in-house team in view of the additional work they | MRL April 2017/
O%ecure the resources needed to deliver the will be undertaking to deliver WHQS works to our sheltered housing Completed
programme by 2020. schemes.
2. Business case approved for the appointment of Surveyors/Clerks of .
. . MRL April 2017/
Works to support the delivery of the external works programme following
: . Completed
the implementation of the DPS.
3. Use of agency workers ongoing to supplement directly employed staff as MRL Ongoing
workforce will need to reduce post 2020.
4. Introduction of DPS has provided an additional pool of contractors to MRL April 2017/
deliver all aspects of the programme and to act as a contingency in case Completed
any issues are encountered with existing contracts.

Page 18 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough Council



Recommendations Actions Progress /
Due Date

5. Use of other in-house teams, both within and outside Caerphilly Homes,
has been implemented to provide further assistance and resources for the
delivery of the programme, eg Housing Repair Operations, Network SC/MRL Ongoing
Contracting Services, Highways Operations Group, Grounds
Maintenance.

6. Additional financial resources being sourced to assist with the delivery of _
the programme and to provide additional improvements to the housing MRL/JRW Ongoing
stock and communities, eg ECO, Arbed, V.V.P.

d

69T 96

Page 19 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough Council



Recommendations Actions

Progress /

Recommendation 2 1. The Council’s performance in relation to gas servicing averages 98%

Due Date

which results in approximately 200 properties not having a valid gas safety | sc July 2017/
Assure itself that the Council is meeting its certificate, which has been identified as an issue with no access. A review Completed
statutory landlord responsibilities in relation to of the no access procedure has been undertaken.
gas servicing.

2. To improve compliance the gas servicing cycle will be changed to operate | ps Sept 2017/

on a ten-month cycle rather than the existing 11 months. Completed
SDU 3. To reduce issues with no access, a charge will be introduced for tenants PS August 2017/
(o) who fail to provide access at the appointment time. Completed
D
'_'j 4. The timescales for issuing letters to tenants seeking access will be Housing August 2017/
() reduced and if required a Notice of Seeking Possession will be issued Managers Completed
prior to the expiry of the gas certificate.

5. Failure to provide access during the NOSP period will result in Housing Sept 2017/
arrangements being made to force entry, with the tenant being provided Managers/ Completed
with advanced notice of such action. PS

Recommendation 2a 1. Review the accuracy and timeliness of asbestos information being PS August 2017/
recorded within the Keystone Asset Database. Completed

Ensure that arrangements for undertaking

asbestos surveys and recording the results of 2. Ensure that all relevant staff have access to asbestos records to ensure PS December 2017/

these surveys, is robust. these are checked prior to commissioning surveys. Completed

Page 20 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough Council




Recommendations Actions Progress /
Due Date

3. Submit a business case to appoint a Technical/Admin Officer to input PS August 2017/
surveys and cleanliness certificates into Keystone in a timely manner, and Completed
also act as a central point of contact.

Recommendation 3 1. Business case approved for the appointment of additional resources,

allowing recruitment to take place as and when required. MRL Ongoing

Ensure the Council has sufficient project

management capacity to deliver the WHQS 2. Project management of the sheltered housing programme being carried
g°rogramme by 2020. out by the in-house team following consultation with tenants. MRL Ongoing
o))
(gg 3. Project management of various aspects of the programme is being
AN undertaken by other services to spread workload and maximise use of SC/MRL Ongoing
Ny existing resources, eg work to leaseholder properties being managed by
= Private Sector Housing, WHQS work to voids and statutory maintenance

being undertaken by Housing Repair Operations Team, environmental
programme being progressed by utilising services of Grounds
Maintenance, Highways Operations Group, Network Contracting Services.

4. A restructure of Caerphilly Homes to be undertaken to further improve SC Ongoing
integration and better align key functions with the aim of improving
capacity to support the programme.

Shaun Couzens
Prif Swyddog Tai/Chief Housing Officer

Updated October 2018

Page 21 of 22 - Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report — Caerphilly County Borough Council



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone: 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon testun: 029 2032 0660

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru



mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/

Agenda Item 11

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019

SUBJECT: REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000

REPORT BY: HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES AND MONITORING OFFICER

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise Members of the numbers of covert surveillance operations undertaken by the
Council in accordance with the provisions of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
(RIPA) for the period 1% January to 31% March, 2019.

SUMMARY

To provide an update on the number of operations undertaken in accordance with RIPA for
the period 1% January to 315 March, 2019.

RECOMMENDATIONS

None. Members note the information provided.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure compliance with statutory requirements.

THE REPORT

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) sets out strict controls for public
authorities wishing to carry out covert surveillance of individual members of the public as part
of their exercise of their statutory functions. In addition to this Act, advice and guidance is
found within the Codes of Practice issued by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office.

The Authority has a corporate policy, which provides guidance on how surveillance should be
used by the relevant officers.

Public Authorities undertaking covert surveillance of individual members of the public are
subject to inspection by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office.

Members are advised that for the period 1% January 2019 to 315 March 2019, there have
been no RIPA operations undertaken.

Conclusion

The report advises members that there have been no applications made in relation to RIPA
operations for the period 1% January to 315 March 2019.

Page 173



6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

Author:

ASSUMPTIONS

There are no assumptions contained within this report.

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

This report contributes to the governance arrangements on the use of directed surveillance
and covert human intelligence sources under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
as set out in the Council’s Policy and Procedure under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers
Act 2000.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The Council is under an obligation to comply with legislative requirements - this report helps to
achieve that.

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) provides a statutory mechanism for
authorising directed surveillance and the use of a covert human intelligence source, which
aims to ensure that any interference with the individual’s right to privacy under Article 8 of the
European Convention is necessary and proportionate, and that both the public interest and
the human rights of individuals are protected and as such contributes to the following
wellbeing goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015.

A prosperous Wales.

A resilient Wales.

A healthier Wales.

A globally responsible Wales.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

None, the report is for information only.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None, the report is for information only.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None, the report is for information only.

CONSULTATIONS

None. The report is for information only.

STATUTORY POWER

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer
(trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Consultees: Lisa Lane, Deputy Monitoring Officer

(lanel@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Page 174



Agenda Item 12

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 23RD APRIL 2019

SUBJECT: OFFICERS DECLARATIONS OF GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY

OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2018

REPORT BY: HEAD OF PEOPLE SERVICES

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

5.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of the report is to provide the Audit Committee with information regarding the
Register of Employees’ Interests Forms completed by officers of the Council (excluding
Schools) regarding Gifts and Hospitality for the period 1 October to 31 December 2018 ie the
third quarter of the financial year 2018/19 and a comparison with the previous three quarters.

SUMMARY

Enclosed as Appendix 1 is a list of Register of Employees’ Interests Forms in respect of Gifts
and Hospitality completed by officers of the Council (excluding Schools) for the 3 months
1 October to 31 December 2018.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Audit Committee are asked to note the contents of this report.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The recommendations are designed to ensure members of the Audit Committee have an
oversight of the position in relation to officers’ Gifts and Hospitality.

THE REPORT

The Council’'s Code of Conduct for Employees sets out guidance for employees on a range of
issues, including the completion of a Register of Employee Interests form, which will help
maintain and improve the high standards of conduct within local government and protect
employees from misunderstandings and confusion.

Completed Register of Employees’ Interests forms are submitted to Heads of Service,
Directors or the Chief Executive who countersign the forms to show they are aware of the
declaration. The form also records details of any controls / action taken to protect the
Council’s interests in the circumstances outlined on the form. A copy of the countersigned
form is given to the employee and a copy sent to Human Resources for filing on the
employee’s personal file.

Page 175



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.7

The Head of Service, Director or Chief Executive retains the original form and maintains a
summary spreadsheet to record the forms. On a monthly basis the summary spreadsheet or
a nil return is submitted to Human Resources for collation and monitoring for consistency and
compliance.

In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Employees, Gifts / Hospitality of less
than £25 may be accepted by the employee but any Gift / Hospitality which could be seen by
a third party as placing the employee under an improper obligation such as more than one
Gift / Hospitality from the same party must be refused, irrespective of its value.

Employees may accept small offers of Hospitality only where the activity is of a nature where
there is a genuine need to impart information or to represent the Council in the community.
Offers to attend purely social or sporting functions should be accepted only when these are
part of the life of the community or where the Council should be seen to be represented.

The table below details the number of declarations regarding Gifts submitted by Directorate
for the period 1 October to 31 December 2018 and the previous three quarters for
comparison. The declarations for the previous quarters have been adjusted to reflect the new
Directorate structures.

Appendix 1 provides details of the Gifts declared during the period 1 October to 31 December
2018.

The 2 Gifts of £50 cash agreed in Adult Services have been considered by the Director of
Social Services and Housing and the Head of People Services and acknowledged in the
circumstances.

Directorate Number of declarations received - Gifts

Oct — Dec July — Sept April = June Jan — March

2018 2018 2018 2018

Communities 0 0 0 0
Education and 0 0 1 0
Corporate Services
Social Services and 6 20 0 0
Housing
Total 6 20 1 0

The table below details the number of declarations regarding Hospitality submitted by
Directorate for the period 1 October to 31 December 2018 and the previous three quarters for
comparison. The declarations for the previous quarters have been adjusted to reflect the new
Directorate structures.

Directorate Number of declarations received - Hospitality

Oct — Dec July — Sept April = June Jan — March

2018 2018 2018 2018

Communities 0 0 3 0
Education and 0 0 0 0
Corporate Services
Social Services and 0 0 0 0
Housing
Total 0 0 3 0



5.8

6.1

7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

Conclusion
The Head of People Services will continue to monitor the declarations submitted and work

with Heads of Service to improve their understanding, promote best practice and corporate
compliance of the Code of Conduct where appropriate.

ASSUMPTIONS

There are no assumptions made within this report.

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

The Council’'s Code of Conduct for Employees confirms that in performing their duties,
employees must act with integrity, honesty, impartiality and objectivity and that they must act
in accordance with the principles set out in this Code, recognising the duty of all public sector
employees to discharge public functions reasonably and according to the law. Thisis a
Statutory Code requirement.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023

Whilst this report does not specifically contribute towards the Corporate Well-being

Obijectives, it does support good governance which is the foundation of the Council’s
performance management framework.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

Having considered the five ways of working, they will not be affected by the contents of this
report.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no equalities implications, as the reason for declaring an interest applies equally to
all staff, regardless of their individual characteristics.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The personnel implications are included in this report.

CONSULTATIONS

There are no consultation responses that have not been included in the report.

STATUTORY POWER

Local Government Act 2000.

Page 177



Author: Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services
(Donovi@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Consultees: Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer
(Scammn@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
(Trantri@caerphilly.gov.uk)
ClIr Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
(Gordocj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Declarations of Gifts 1 October to 31 December 2018

Page 178



6.1 abed

Appendix 1

Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality 1 October to 31 December 2018

Directorate

Social

Service
Area

Post Title of
Employee
Making the
Declaration

Type of
Declaration

Details Of Declaration

Post Title of Head of
Service, Director or Chief
Executive who authorised
the declaration

Outcome

could be kept. Necklace
donated to charity Llamau as a
raffle prize

; Adult Social Care . Cash gift of £50 from family Assistant Director Adult
Services and . K Gift ; . X Accepted
Housing Services | Worker (x2) member of service user Services
Social Box of chocolates, bottle of , .
Services and Adu'? Social Worker Gift wine and a thank you card from ASS'S.tam Director Adult Accepted
. Services . Services
Housing a service user
Cash gift of £10 contained in a
Social Christmas card from a service
; Adult . . user, delivered to offices. Assistant Director Adult
Services and . Social Worker Gift . . Accepted
) Services Donated to team charity to Services
Housing . S
avoid any psychological impact
on service user
Social Accepted with no idea of actual
Services and Caerphilly FIo_atmg Support Gift value. Sparklmg wine (est. Chief Housing Officer Accepted
Housi Homes Officer value £25) given by a tenant as
ousing
a gesture of thanks
Accepted with no idea of actual
value. Silver necklace with
clear stone (est. value £40) and
Social Caerphill Tenancy sparkling wine (est. value £25)
Services and Hom(gs Y | Enforcement Gift given by a tenant as a gesture | Chief Housing Officer Accepted
Housing Officer of thanks. HofS agreed wine




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 180



Agenda Iltem 13

MINUTES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL

Held on Monday January 11t 2019 in the Executive
Board Room Penallta House

Panel members present

R. Edmunds (RE), D Gronow (DG), S Harris (SH), N Scammel (NS), R Tranter (RT) and
Councillor B Jones (BJ)

1. APOLOGIES
An apology was received from L Lucas.
2. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on the 24t September were agreed as a correct
record

3. PROGRESS ON 2017/2018 AGS MATTERS ARISING

The 2017/18 statement was reviewed and the progress on the issues were reviewed
in detail. It was agreed that some follow up information be sought on a few minor
issues but in the main good progress had been made on all the issues noted.
Detailed commentary would be provided as part of the 2018/19 AGS process. It was
agreed that an update on the authority’s GDPR compliance would be sought for the
next meeting of the panel (LL) and SH would follow up on the other points and
report back for the next meeting

4.2018/19 PROCESS AND PROGRESS UPDATE

DG stated that the checklist had been sent out to all Heads of Service and a reminder
would shortly be sent. A new process had been introduced whereby a checklist had
been sent to schools to provide assurance for the Chief Education Officer and
ultimately the Director on governance processes in schools and highlighting the
accountability of individual head teachers in this process. A reminder was due to be
issues before half term. RE asked to be updated on progress.

The current checklist and diagrammatical explanation of the process was discussed
and it was identified that some changes needed to make to reflect some

III

amendments to roles and titles. Also the “expert panel” make up needed to formally

Page 181



record the involvement of officers to provide information on safeguarding and
performance which appeared to be currently omitted.

5. TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR GOVERNANCE PANEL

Draft TOR was discussed. It was agreed that some changes were needed to reflect
changes in roles and job titles and to reflect the fact that the group was to be a small
core of officers with other relevant officers being asked to contribute only where
necessary o relevant. It was agreed that it would be reviewed by those present and
any suggested changed sent to DG so that it could be reported to the next meeting
of the Audit Committee.

6. CAERPHILLY CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UPDATE

Review and updates to the Caerphilly code were required to account for some
changes in roles and titles and updates in the Cipfa guidance. It was agreed that that
those present would review the draft document and agree any changes in advance
of the next audit committee where it can be reported and agreed.

7. PARTNERSHIP AND COLLABORATION WORK

Information provided was noted. Some discussions took place and it was agreed
that overview in this area this had strengthened so it was agreed that this SH would
liaise with his staff in advance of the panel meetings and bring relevant issues to the
panel as required. In addition this would be referred to in the expert panel
contribution to the AGS.

8. AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

This was discussed. It was noted that additional dates had been agreed to account
for a possible grater volume of reports coming to the committee form the internal
audit section. As discussed the matters in agenda items 5 and 6 would need to go
the Committee so some revisions would be needed and items would need to be
deferred.

9. FUTURE MEETING DATES

The draft AGS is required by 15" May. As a result the expert panel is needed before
the end of April and the draft AGS will be needed for the CMT early May. A further
panel date had already been proposed of 2" April. Going forward it was suggested
that meetings should be on a quarterly basis.

10. AOB

Page 182



	Agenda
	3 Audit Committee held on the 29th January 2019.
	4 Audit Committee Forward Work Programme.
	5 2019 Audit Plan - Caerphilly County Borough Council.
	2019 Audit Plan – Caerphilly County Borough Council
	Summary
	Audit of accounts
	Performance audit
	Certification of grant claims and returns
	Overall issues identified

	Fee, audit team and timetable
	Fee
	Audit team
	Timetable

	Future developments to my audit work
	Respective responsibilities
	Audit of accounts
	Performance audit

	Performance work in last year’s audit outline still in progress
	Summary of grant claim certification work
	Other future developments
	A. Forthcoming key IFRS changes



	6 Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/19.
	Annual Internal Audit Report 2018-19 (Appendix 1)
	Annual Internal Audit Report 2018-19 (Appendix 2)

	7 Internal Audit Services: Audit Charter.
	Internal Audit Services - Audit Charter (Appendix 1)
	Internal Audit Services - Audit Charter (Appendix 2)

	8 Internal Audit Services: Annual Audit Plan 2019/20.
	Internal Audit Services - Annual Audit Plan 2019-20 (Appendix 1)
	Internal Audit Services - Annual Audit Plan 2019-20 (Annex A)

	9 Internal Audit Reports - "In Need of Improvement".
	10 Wales Audit Office WHQS Review.
	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review
	AUDIT COMMITTEE – 23RD APRIL 2019
	SUBJECT: WALES AUDIT OFFICE WHQS REVIEW
	REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE SERVICES

	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review App 1
	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review
	policy and resources scrutiny committee –
	12th march 2019
	SUBJECT:  WALES aUDIT oFFICE whqs Review
	REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR – Social services and housing

	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review App
	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review Appendix
	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review Appendix 1
	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review
	CABINET - 30th January 2019
	SUBJECT: Wales Audit Office WHQS review
	REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR – Social services and housing
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LINKS TO STRATEGY
	4. THE REPORT
	5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	7. fINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATION
	9. Consultations
	10. RECOMMENDATIONS
	11. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
	12. STATUTORY POWER

	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review App 1
	Service User Perspective Review – Caerphilly County Borough Council
	Summary
	Proposals for improvement
	Understanding the results
	The Council provides tenants and leaseholders with information about the WHQS programme, but it could better explain why the works are needed
	Summary
	Information about the WHQS Programme
	Explaining why works are needed to achieve WHQS
	Information about Future Improvements
	Information about WHQS for leaseholders
	Sheltered housing residents’ views
	Tenant representatives’ views

	The Council could do more to ensure that the works are consistently completed on time across all areas
	Summary
	Sheltered housing residents’ views
	Tenant representatives’ views

	Those who have had improvement works are satisfied with the quality of internal works, but are less satisfied with external works
	Summary
	Overall satisfaction with improvement works
	Sheltered housing residents’ views
	Tenant representatives’ views
	Satisfaction with Kitchens
	Satisfaction with Bathrooms
	Satisfaction with Exteriors of homes

	Tenants and leaseholders are involved with the works, but the Council inconsistently applies tenants’ choice about electrical wiring
	Summary
	Sheltered housing residents’ views in focus groups
	Tenant representatives’ views

	Eighty-five per cent of the tenants and leaseholders can quickly and easily contact the Council
	Summary
	Contacting the Council
	Responding to views
	Sheltered housing residents’ views
	Appointment system
	Good practice example
	Additional survey questions
	Heating
	Damp

	Satisfaction with the Housing Service
	Satisfaction with the neighbourhood

	Overview of survey participants
	Tenancy type
	Age of respondents
	Length of tenancy

	Survey questions
	Infographic summarising survey results


	Wales Audit Office WHQS Review App 2
	Welsh Housing Quality Standard follow-up report – Caerphilly County Borough Council
	Summary
	Why the Welsh Housing Quality Standard is important
	What we looked at
	How we approached the review
	Overall findings

	Proposals for improvement
	The Council has responded positively to our June 2017 Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) report and statutory recommendations by making significant improvements and as a result we now conclude that it is likely to meet the WHQS by December 2020
	The Council has made significant progress in identifying the investment and resources it needs to complete its WHQS programme by the end of 2020
	The Council has taken steps to determine the value for money of its procurement arrangements
	There have been improvements to its WHQS performance reports, however there is still inconsistent and inaccurate reporting of performance
	The Council now has measurable performance targets to effectively monitor the remainder of its WHQS programme
	The Council has strengthened its arrangements to meet its statutory landlord responsibilities
	The Council has invested additional resources to enhance its WHQS programme management but still lacks a current Local Housing strategy and does not always produce comprehensive Equality Impact Assessments for key Housing policy documents

	This is the Council’s action plan to address the Wales Audit Office’s three statutory recommendations made in our 2017 WHQS report:
	WALES AUDIT OFFICE WHQS REVIEW – ACTION PLAN – AUGUST 2017






	11 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.
	12 Officers Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality - October to December 2018.
	Officers Declarations of Gifts and Hospitality October to December 2018 Appendix 1

	13 Minutes of the Corporate Governance Panel - 11th January 2019.



